M ERBERERBRAE
China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RHASESIMALZBRETR A

Stock Code lRERH 1515

ANNUAL REPORT

2023 FEHE

v

AR RRRRw
UWHEE < Bu

L W\ \ )\
VRN RERRR
LU ) )Y

evee
----




CONTENTS
B &

Corporate Information

AETER

Chairman'’s Statement

EERWE

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENRADNT

Directors’ Report

EXERS

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

Directors and Senior Management

EEkEREEAR

o 3 @9@@ 996

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BB RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

I\‘7|— = Eﬁ%ﬁ%

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

FEEEREmRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBEIRRRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERmEERRE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

m7r = Eﬁ.é/ﬁ%%ﬁ%

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e BRI

Financial Summary — in Accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards

MHRE-RERRYHRS S5 ER

Definitions

%

EHREIRARAT —SoSEEHE



CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEN

Executive Directors

Mr. SONG Qing (Chairman)

Mr. YU Hai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President)
Ms.Yang Min (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. GE Lu

Mr. WU Ting Yuk, Anthony
Mr. KWONG Kwok Kong
Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHOU Peng

Mr. KWONG Kwok Kong (chairman of the committee)
Mr. FU Tingmei
Mr. ZHOU Peng

Mr. WU Ting Yuk, Anthony (chairman of the committee)
Ms. GE Lu
Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. SONG Qing (chairman of the committee)
Mr. WU Ting Yuk, Anthony
Mr. KWONG Kwok Kong

Mr. SONG Qing
Mr. SO Yiu Fung

BITES

RAERE (EFR)
Fikks (B3
BEMNGE @)
BELt (EEYEE)
BELL

AT BT
BEXEE
BEERLE

AmsxE

BB L (EEEL/E)
BEELE
BB E

HENBKRE (ZEETL/E)
Bzt
BEERLE

RBSLE (EECLTE)
EAENB et
BRED e o

5 of
it

.._

Bt

7

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes:

With effect from February 27 2023: (1) Mr. CHENG Libing has resigned
as an executive Director, the chief executive officer of the Company and
an Authorized Representative; (2) Mr. YU Hai has been appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company; (3) Mr.
SONG Qing has been appointed as an Authorized Representative; (4) Mr.
LEE Kar Chung Felix has resigned as a member of the Audit Committee;
(5) Mr. HU Hui has resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee;
and (6) Mr. FU Tingmei has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the

Remuneration Committee;

With effect from June 13, 2023: (1) Ms. REN Yuan has resigned as an
executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer; (2) Mr. LEE Kar Chung
Felix has resigned as an independent non-executive Director, a member of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee;
(3) Ms. YANG Min has been appointed as an executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer; (4) Mr. WU Ting Yuk, Anthony has been appointed as
a member of the Nomination Committee; and (5) Mr. KWONG Kwok Kong
has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee; and

With effect from September 14, 2023: (1) Mr. HU Hui has resigned as a
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee; (2) Ms.
GE Lu has been appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee; (3) Mr. ZHOU Peng has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee; and (4) Mr. KWONG Kwok Kong has resigned as a member of
the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. SO Yiu Fung

14/F,

Kunlun Center Office Building

No. 9, Fuyi Street
Fengtai District, Beijing
The People’s Republic of China
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATFEH

Room 2603, 26/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai,

HKSAR

Harneys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street,

P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman
KY1-1002, Cayman Islands

Harneys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street,

P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman
KY1-1002, Cayman Islands

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai

HKSAR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong SAR

hEARANE
EABIITHEET
B E265%

5 P A [H261%2603%

Harneys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street,

PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman
KY1-1002, Cayman Islands

Harneys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street,

PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman
KY1-1002, Cayman Islands

BEAPRBHELERLE
hEE N RHAE
HEARITEHERE
EIFERABEHR1835E
B AL
17181712-17165% 84

EHERE 5T EME T

MEGSTEM

(g st R BHERBFEG ) Ty
N m B RS HED

EARME

BARAFHITHE

HRIRIEFT 1058

ANFARE8HE

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



As to Hong Kong Law

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207, 32/F
Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen'’s Road Central, Central
HKSAR

China Merchants Bank

2nd Floor, Tower A

156 Fuxingmennei Street
Xicheng District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Room 102, Block 16, Court 2, East Baizhifang Street
Xicheng District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

DBS Bank Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
18th Floor, The Center

99 Queen'’s Road Central, Central
HKSAR

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
25/F, CCB Tower

3 Connaught Road Central, Central

HKSAR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERHBE

Dear Shareholders,

The healthcare industry has always been a key focus for
our country. Developing the healthcare sector and providing
high-level medical services are intrinsic requirements to
meet the people’s aspirations for a better quality of life and
an important prerequisite for creating a better life for the
people. With the introduction of the “Work Plan for Supporting
the High-Quality Development of State-Owned Enterprises
in Operating Medical Institutions” and its related measures
jointly issued by the SASAC, the National Health Commission,
the National Development and Reform Commission, and
other thirteen departments at the end of 2022, state-owned
enterprise-operated medical institutions have been integrated
into the regional healthcare service system since then. They
have become important forces in providing basic medical
services and contributing to the Healthy China Scheme. These
institutions play a crucial role in meeting the growing diverse
healthcare service demands of the people, addressing major
epidemics, and responding to public health emergencies. In the
future, state-owned enterprise-operated medical institutions
will transition towards a progressive and sustainable
development model, as high-quality and sustainable
development is the trend.

Looking back at 2023, the Group successfully completed the
acquisitions of the Liaojian and Jiangneng subsidiaries. These
newly integrated entities have undergone profound integration
within China Resources Group, resulting in significant
improvements in operational quality and performance,
securing a favorable position in regional competition. Practice
has proven that the “merger, integration, and injection”
approach for state-owned hospitals can create greater value
for all parties involved and achieve mutual success. Meanwhile,
the Group actively promotes the development of leading
hospitals and regional integration. We have increased capital
expenditures in alignment with disciplinary development,

Song Qing Ri&
Chairman EEZ £
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combined with refined management and group operations,
to enhance the medical quality and operational efficiency
of our leading hospitals. Additionally, the leading hospitals
take the lead in creating a platform for regional integration,
collaborating with various small and medium-sized medical
institutions within the region. This approach involves
comprehensive planning and management, differentiated
development, significantly improving system efficiency,
and helping multiple small and medium-sized medical
institutions within the region turn losses into profits. The
Group continues to prioritize medical technology as the core,
focusing on disciplinary evaluation and planning as the starting
point, constantly enhancing disciplinary competitiveness,
gradually increasing investment in disciplines, and achieving
notable results. During the Reporting Period, our member
hospitals added 9 provincial key specialties, 31 municipal
key specialties, and 67 new specialty clinics for specific
diseases. We initiated 37 national-level centralized projects
and implemented 323 new technology projects. We conducted
43 new drug clinical trial projects with Good-Clinical Practice
(GCP) and obtained 14 patent authorizations. The Group has
gradually increased research and development investment,
with a 206% year-on-year growth in R&D investment in 2023.
Moreover, we have continued to deepen the construction of
the patient service system, focusing on the evaluation system
for patient service capabilities. We have strengthened the
foundation of hospitals and addressed shortcomings, improved
patient service management mechanisms, centered services
around patients, effectively enhanced the experience of the
masses seeking medical treatment, and achieved significant
improvements in patient satisfaction. Simultaneously, driven
by reform and innovation, we have deepened organizational
restructuring, promoted structural reforms, and accelerated
digital transformation to facilitate high-quality and sustainable
development of our hospitals. During the Reporting Period, the
Group's medical business recorded an increase in conventional
outpatient visits exceeding 10 million, a year-on-year growth
of 97%, and achieved operating revenue of RMB10.11 billion,
a year-on-year increase of 79.8% (both are referred to the
non-restated figures of 2022). On behalf of the Board of
China Resources Medical, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, partners, and employees. Thanks
to your unwavering support, long-term trust, and collective
efforts, China Resources Medical has taken solid strides and
made progress amidst the ever-changing tide.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to focus on the
strategic emerging industries, centering on state-owned
hospital reforms, and drive the improvement of medical
technology levels and healthcare service efficiency through
comprehensive innovation, achieving high-quality and
sustainable development. Additionally, we will continue to
fulfill our social responsibilities, strengthen market value
management, expand communication channels with the
capital market, and convey the investment value of China
Resources Medical, providing solid performance to repay the
trust and support of all shareholders.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
SONG Qing
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEwED

The release of the “Plan for Supporting the High-Quality
Development of State-owned Enterprisesin Operating Medical
Institutions” by the end of 2022 highlights the important
position and positive role of state-owned enterprises in China’s
healthcare service industry. While requiring state-owned
hospitals to accelerate their integration into the regional
public healthcare network, the policy also encourages state-
owned enterprises to innovate their mode of operation and
give full play to their advantages in group operation and
management. Under the guidance of the national healthcare
reform policy, the development of hospitals has moved from
the original emphasis on a single indicator to a comprehensive
and balanced era of high-quality development. From the
perspective of the objective rule of industry development,
group hospitalization has been proved to have a higher
development ceiling than monolithic hospitals, and will be an
important direction for the future reform of the healthcare
industry.

In 2023, the Group, as a leading state-owned hospital group
in terms of scale, gave full play to its advantages of grouping,
accelerated its integration into the regional healthcare
planning landscape, fully unleashed its organizational vitality
through the entrepreneurial mechanism, and enhanced its
core competencies in terms of disciplines construction, patient
services and operation and management in an innovative
manner, thereby achieving reasonable quantitative growth
and effective qualitative enhancement. During the Reporting
Period, the Group completed the acquisitions of LH Subjects
and JE Subject by the end of June 2023 through the “merger-
integration-injection” approach, further expanding its hospital
network and laying a solid foundation for future high-quality
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company confirms that according to the IFRS Accounting
Standards and the accounting policies of the Group, the Group
has retrospectively consolidated the financial results of the
LH Subjects and the JE Subject from June 2, 2022 (the date on
which the Group, the LH Subjects and the JE Subject started to
come under common control). The comparative figures of the
Group's financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2022 (the "Comparative Figures”) have been restated, that is,
the financial results of the LH Subjects and the JE Subject from
June 2, 2022 have been included in Comparative Figures. The
Group's financial results for the Reporting Period have included
the financial results of the LH Subjects and the JE Subject
starting from January 1, 2023. Further details of the aforesaid
transactions and the accounting arrangement could be found
in the announcements of the Company dated February 22,
2023, May 17, 2023 and June 30, 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated April 27, 2023.

With the effect of the aforesaid accounting arrangement, the
consolidated revenue of the Group for the Reporting Period
amounted to RMB10.108 billion (FY2022 (restated): RMB7.901
billion), and the consolidated net profit of the Group for
the Reporting Period amounted to RMB328 million (FY2022
(restated): RMB328 million). Earnings per share of the Company
for the Reporting Period amounted to RMBO0.20 (FY2022
(restated): RMB0.21). Among them, the consolidated revenue
and the consolidated net profit brought by the LH Member
Institutions and JE Member Medical Institutions amounted
to RMB4.096 billion and RMB383 million, respectively. During
the Reporting Period, self-owned hospitals of the Company
recorded a year-on-year improvement in terms of business
volume, revenue and operating profit.

Scale of our operation

As of December 31, 2023, the Group managed and operated
a total of 134 medical institutions in 10 provinces and cities
in the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the number of
conventional out-patient visits and in-patient visits of self-
owned hospitals were approximately 10,140,000 and 550,000,
respectively, representing the respective year-on-year increase
of 10.0% and 10.2%.
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List of Medical Institutions under the Group'’s

Management and Operation

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmRED

FEEEEEERBREBOME

Grade |

Hospitals Clinics &

and Other

Community Medical

Grade Il Grade Il Centres Institutions

Hospitals ~ Hospitals —#REFTKk 2T REM

Province/City A1B /I m =Bl ZHREBER  ftERL  BEES
Beijing b= 3 4 8 26 41
Liaoning b 5 10 10 7 32
Jiangxi PN 1 3 4 3 11
Shandong TS - 1 1 4 6
Shanxi L 7g - 1 - - 1
Jiangsu JLER - 2 - - 2
Anhui T 1 1 16 4 22
Hubei A6 2 - 3 7 12
Guangdong == 1 1 - 2 4
Guangxi Er - 2 1 - 3
Total =511 13 25 43 53 134

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



Operating data for Year 2023

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENwAD R

2023F EEHIE

Number of patients Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)

BEEBWA NRETT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue

Utilization from from from
rate of Number of Number of outpatient  inpatient physical
beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

RIBEAR AR ERAR  FMZRA &R EBREA

Number of
beds in
operation
BERH
Self-owned Hospitals ~ BE &k 18,617
- LH Member - BEMENE
Institutions and RIIEME
JE Member BEKE
Medical Institutions 11,165

83.7% 10,191,416 554,547 3,706,247 5,473,459 226,447 9,406,153

82.4% 4,635,307 318,807 1577311 2,387,143 132,710 4,097,164

Operating data for Year 2022

Number of
beds in
operation

BERUEH

2022F S EMIE
Number of patients Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)
PEAR BREBUA ARETT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue
Utilization from from from

rate of Number of Number of outpatient  inpatient physical

beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

RIGEAR  PZAR ERAX  FZBA  GREA  BRRA

Self-owned Hospitals BB &R 19,193 76.3% 16,373,433 503,382 3,400,955 5,060,994 213,350 8,675,299
- LH Member - ERMEKE
Institutions and RIEMRE
JE Member BRgRE
Medical Institutions 11,544 74.1% 8,733,713 287609 1,401,756 2,312,538 118,827 3,833,121
Notes: N

(1) In respect of the operating data statistics, the abovementioned self-owned (1) TEEHEREN LB A ERAEAER

hospitals refer to all consolidated hospitals.

PRA Bt =BT

(2)  The operating data for years 2022 and 2023 both include annual operating  (2)  2022FEM2023EEEH#E O ERMEMBERT
data of LH Member Institutions and JE Member Medical Institutions. BERNEBEKE Y BREES K-

ENBRRERARAT —T=FERE 13
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BEEmES

Financial data

The table below sets out the key financial figures of the
Group by business segments for the specific years:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R 15 &R

TR EESERBREFENE D
BRI BEN

2023 2022 Year-on-Year Change
2023%F 20228 FILL& 15
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  Percentage
AER®ETRT ARETT ARETR Bt
Hospital Business BhRER
Revenue —E3 9,406,153 7053,146 2,353,007 33.4%
- Revenue from out-patient visits —PIRS EFKWA 3,932,694 2,968,853 963,841 32.5%
- Revenue from in-patient visits —EBEBRA 5,473,459 4,084,293 1,389,166 34.0%
Segment gross profit DEEF 1,734,835 1,086,516 648,319 59.7%
Segment results DEEE 637978 464,875 173,103 372%
Other Business Hitn %%
Revenue X0 701,347 848,141 -146,794 -173%
Segment gross profit NEEF 171,002 219,319 -48,317 -22.0%
Segment results DI 235,868 253,114 -17246 -6.8%
Total At
Revenue =E 10,107,500 7901,287 2,206,213 279%
Segment gross profit DEEF] 1,905,837 1,305,835 600,002 45.9%
Segment results NEEE 873,846 717,989 155,857 21.7%
Notes: [
(1) Hospital business includes: outpatient business, inpatient business (1) BIREHOE BEBRNMZER EREHK-
corresponding to self-owned hospitals.
(2) Other businesses include: operation management services, supply chain (2) HMEROE  A2RER - IOT/OTE R EE

services and other ancillary services provided to participating hospitals and

I0T/OT hospitals.

Hospital Business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of outpatient services
was RMB3.933 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
32.5%, and the revenue of inpatient services was RMB5.473
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 34.0%

EIRARFS ~ AR AR R H AT AR TS ©

ES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the profit of hospital business
segment was RMB638 million, representing an increase of
37.2% over the same period last year. Among them: (1) the
LH Subjects and JE Subject contributed a profit of RMB479
million during the Reporting Period; and (2) the Stock Hospitals
contributed a profit of RMB159 million during the Reporting
Period. After excluding the one-time impairment impact of
Huaiyin Hospital, during the Reporting Period, the profit of
Stock Hospitals was RMB484 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 47.4%. The growth was mainly due to the
further improvement of operation and management efficiency.

Other Business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of other business
was RMB701 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
17.3%, and the profit of other business was RMB236 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.8%.

Material Acquisitions - The Acquisitions of
LH Subject Equity, JE Subject Equity and JE
Subject Debts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS — The Acquisitions of LH Subject Equity, JE
Subject Equity and JE Subject Debts” of this report, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Reporting
Period.

Significant Investments - Investments in
Associates — JR Holdings & JR Renkang

The Board considers any single investment with fair value
accounting for more than 5% of the total assets of the Group
as significant investment. Other than the investments in JR
Holdings and JR Renkang as set out below, the Group did not
have any single investment accounting for 5% or more of the
total assets of the Group as at December 31, 2023.

EEERED

RERERRN BREHDMEBEARES.38
Bor > BB M37.2% « HAp (1)EBREN
MOIRERMNREAANTMDMEBARE
479870 ; RRFEBRDBEREHARNE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE AT

On June 28, 2020, the Group entered into a restructuring
agreement regarding the establishment of two associates
with Jing Mei Group, pursuant to which Beijing Jing Run
Renkang Holdings Co., Ltd. ("JR Holdings”) and Beijing Jing
Run Renkang Hospital Management Co., Ltd. ("JR Renkang”)
were established and held by the Group and the Jing Mei
Group as to 49% and 51%, respectively. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated June 28, 2020 for further
details of the aforesaid transaction.

As at December 31, 2023, JR Holdings and JR Renkang
were associates of the Group. Pursuant to the relevant
arrangements under the abovementioned agreement, JR
Holdings has been the sponsor of Jing Mei Hospital Group and
JR Renkang has been providing hospital management services
to the Jing Mei Hospital Group. The Group’s investment costs in
JR Holdings and JR Renkang amounted to RMB874 million and
RMB2.45 million, respectively. As at December 31, 2023, the
Group holds a 49% equity interest in each of JR Holdings and
JR Renkang, with a carrying amount of investment of RMB918
million and RMB59.15 million, respectively, representing
approximately 7.2% of the total assets of the Group in total.

During the Reporting Period, JR Holdings and JR Renkang
achieved a revenue of RMB223 million in aggregate, resulting
in a combined net profit of RMB185 million. The net profit of
JR Holdings and JR Renkang attributing to the Group was 90.78
million and the Group has received RMB88.88 million FY2022
dividend in total distributed by JR Holdings and JR Renkang.

During 2023, the Jing Mei Hospital Group was the leading
hospitals in Mentougou district and one of the core medical
institutions in the western region of Beijing, and its profitability
remained stable compared to the previous year, and its
operational performance continued to be satisfactory. The
Group believes that the investment in JR Holdings and JR
Renkang, as well as the cooperation with the Jing Mei Group,
fully leverages the respective strengths of the Jing Mei Group
and the Group, and the current cooperation model represents
a deepened cooperation based on the original cooperation,
and it is expected that the relevant investment will be
maintained.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Investment - Investment in UMP
Healthcare Holdings

UMP Healthcare Holdings, listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 722.HK), is mainly engaged in
providing healthcare solutions and service in Hong Kong.
Details of investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings have been
disclosed in the Company’s annual reports in prior years.
Pursuant to the relevant accounting standards, the Company
has categorized the investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. As at
December 31, 2023, the fair value of our investment in UMP
Healthcare Holdings was approximately RMB49.08 million.

Future Plans for Material Investment or
Capital Assets

As at the date of this report, there are currently no concrete
plans to acquire any material investment or capital assets
other than those conducted in the Group’s ordinary course of
business.

Future Outlook

Against the backdrop of China’s long-term economic upturn
and high-quality development, the industry will usher in a
broader space for development and greater opportunities
as the level of economic and social development and the
living standards of the people continue to rise, and the
people's demand for all-round, full-cycle health services
grows. Under the guidance of “Plan for Supporting the
High-Quality Development of State-owned Enterprises in
Operating Medical Institutions “ (No. 77 of SASDF Reform
[2022]), governments and departments at all levels have
introduced and landed complementary policies one after
another to further support medical treatment run by state-
owned enterprises. As an important part of China’s healthcare
service system, the important position and role of state-owned
hospitals have been widely recognised and will continue to
play an important role in China’s healthcare reform. At the
same time, the practice of the medical industry has shown
that entrepreneurial mechanism and group development are
conducive to activating organisational vitality, bringing into play
the scale effect and improving operational efficiency, and we
firmly believe that group development is one of the important
directions for the future development of the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE AT

China Resources Medical will continue to give full play to the
advantages of a state-owned medical group, fully release
the organisational vitality, continue to improve the core
competencies of discipline construction, patient service,
operation and management, and build a medical business
operation model with the characteristics of China Resources
Medical, and strive to achieve further improvement in
operational efficiency and core competencies, so as to lay a
solid foundation for the realisation of the 14th Five-Year Plan
strategic objectives and the development of the 15th Five-
Year Plan. Firstly, we will continue to build leading hospitals,
accelerate the construction of provincial and municipal key
specialties, jointly carry out scientific research projects, and
expand the GCP (Good Clinical Practice) programme, SO as
to promote the overall synergistic development of medical
education and research, play a leading role in refined operation
and patient services, and continuously expand our competitive
advantages in the region. Secondly, we will continue to deepen
the regional integrated management and the construction of
regional medical consortiums, so as to realise the penetrating
management of leading hospitals over medical institutions in
the region in terms of human resources, finances, disciplines,
operations, patient services, EHSQ, information technology,
and so on. Thirdly, we will accelerate the construction of
“one hospital, one speciality” for secondary and primary
hospitals, and build specialities and special services that are
appropriate according to the hospital’s strengths and patients’
needs. Fourthly, we will continue to strengthen the brain
speciality, continue to play a leading role in Guangzhou 999
Brain Hospital, promote the construction of brain hospitals
in Guangxi regional, and further export the capacity of the
discipline in South China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly generated
revenue from the following operations: (1) Hospital
operations; and (2) Other business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved revenue
of RMB10.108 billion, an increase of 27.9% over the same
period last year. Among them, the realized revenue of LH
Subjects and JE Subject was RMB4.096 billion.

(1) Hospital business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of hospital
business was RMB9,406 million, representing a year
on-year increase of 33.4%. Among them: (1) the
revenue of the LH Subjects and JE Subject during the
Reporting Period was 4.096 billion; and (2) the revenue
of Stock Hospitals was RMB5.310 billion during the
Reporting Period, representing a yearon-year increase
of 11.2%. The growth was mainly due to an increase in
the number of visits and improved bed utilization.

(2) Other business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of other
business was RMB701 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 17.3%.

Gross profit and gross margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group's gross profit
increased by 45.9% year-on-year to RMB1.906 billion, with a
gross profit margin of 18.9%. Among them, the gross profit
of LH Subjects and JE Subject totaled RMB765 million, and
the gross profit of other stock hospitals totaled RMB1.14
billion, an increase of 174%. The improvement of gross
profit margin was mainly due to the significant effect of cost
structure adjustment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERE D

Administrative expenditure

During the Reporting Period, the Group's administrative
expenses totaled RMB971 million, an increase of 20.0%, of
which the administrative expenses of the existing business
increased by 3.3% vyearon-year, lower than the growth rate
of revenue, due to the effectiveness of expense control
measures.

Impairment

(i)  Provision for impairment losses on goodwill,
property, plant and equipment, and right of use
assets

Goodwill was allocated to respective cash-generating
unit (the "CGU") groups. According to IAS 36 —
Impairment of Assets, impairment test is performed
by management on respective CGU groups to which
goodwill has been allocated at least annually by
comparing the carrying value with the recoverable
amount of the CGU groups, which is the higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal. During
the Reporting Period, the revenue of Huaiyin Hospital
decreased by more than 60% year-on-year, and has
declined significantly for two consecutive years. Despite
the Group's implementation of a series of measures
such as talent recruitment, business transformation and
organizational remodeling, in 2023, the performance
of Huaiyin Hospital has not turned around significantly,
and its operating loss exceeded RMB30 million. An
external appraiser has conducted an impairment test
on this CGU groups. The fair value of the CGU including
goodwill is determined based on individual asset/liability
items and the key assumption is the estimated price per
square meter of building of approximately RMB2,700.
As at December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of the
CGU was RMB632 million, and its recoverable amount
was RMB246 million. During the Reporting Period, the
impairment on goodwill, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounted to RMB141 million,
RMB209 million and RMB2 million, respectively. The
relevant amounts have been included in the impairment
loss on goodwill, the impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment and the impairment loss on right-of-use
assets of the Group, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(ii)  Provision for impairment losses on financial and
contract assets

As at December 31, 2022, the remaining balance of the
carrying amount of government service fee receivable
of Huaiyin Hospital was RMB73 million, and the loan
receivable of Huaiyin District City Asset Management
Co., Ltd. was RMB41 million. During the Reporting
Period, the relevant parties had no clear payment plans,
and the Group has made related impairment of RMB114
million, which has been included in the impairment
losses on financial and contract assets, net of the
Group. The above impairment assessment was prepared
on an expected credit loss basis in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9. The relevant disclosure and
presentation, recognition and measurement have also
complied with the requirements of IFRS 9.

During the Reporting Period, the Impairment losses
related to Huaiyin Hospital reduced the profit before tax
of the Group by RMB466 million and the net profit of
the Group by RMB447 million,respectively.

Income tax

During the Reporting Period, the Group's income tax expense
was RMB165 million, an increase of 74.3% year-on-year,
mainly due to the increase in profit.

Net profit

During the Reporting Period, the Group's net profit was
RMB328 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
0.1%. Among them, Huaiyin Hospital's one-time impairment
reduced the net profit by RMB447 million for the Reporting
Period and Huaiyin Hospital's one-time impairment reduced
the net profit by RMB153 million during the same period
last year. For reference purpose, had the aforesaid one-time
impairment been excluded in both years, the net profit of the
Group would have increased by 61%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERE D

Liquidity and Financing

We adopt a prudent treasury management policy to maintain
a solid and healthy financial position. The Group funds its
operations principally from cash generated from its operations
and also bank facilities. Its cash needs relate primarily to
operating activities, business expansion, repayment of
liabilities as they become due, capital expenditures, interest
and dividend payments.

As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s consolidated bank
balances and cash, certificate of deposit and bank financial
products amounted to approximately RMB1.28 billion in total
(December 31, 2022 (as restated): approximately RMB3.97
billion) which were primarily in RMB.

As at December 31, 2023, the Group has obtained offshore
revolving term loan facility of HK$3.7 billion (or its equivalent
in U.S. dollar or Renminbi). It is of the term of one year which
shall be automatically renewed if the relevant bank does not
notify otherwise. In addition, the Group has also obtained from
banks in mainland facilities of RMB5.27 billion. As at December
31, 2023, the Group had bank borrowings of RMB2.16 billion
among them, RMB2.12 billion of interest-bearing bank loans
and RMB40 million of financial discount bank loans. (December
31, 2022 (as restated): HK$2.234 billion and RMB333 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB2.328 billion in total) among
them, RMB2.29 billion of interest-bearing bank loans and
RMB35 million of financial discount bank loans). And unutilized
bank facilities of HK$2.6 billion and RMB4.1 billion (equivalent
to approximately RMB6.46 billion). As at December 31, 2023,
the Group has higher current liabilities than current assets,
mainly due to payments made by the Group during the
Reporting Period for the acquisitions of LH Subject Equity, JE
Subject Equity and JE Subject Debts. The unused bank facilities
currently available to the Company are sufficient to repay the
related current liabilities. As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s
offshore bank borrowings carried interests at floating rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at December 31, 2023, on the basis of interest-bearing
liabilities divided by total assets, the Group’s gearing ratio was
15.8% (December 31, 2022 (as restated): 13.1%). In addition,
the carrying value of each of our wealth management products
as at December 31, 2023 did not exceed 5% of the Group's
total asset value.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates
and Other Risks

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign currency risk,
mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong
dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

The Company has accordingly completed the conversion of
foreign currency loans into offshore RMB loans.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
manages the currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers hedging
against significant foreign exchange exposure should such
need arise.

The Group is also exposed to risk of talent shortage, so we
have been taking an active approach to attract, train and retain
sufficient qualified doctors, management personnel and other
medical staff members, otherwise the business of hospitals
affiliated to the Group would be affected to some degree.
Please refer to the paragraph headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Employees and Remuneration Policy” of this
report for those measures mentioned above.

The Group also recognise that our relationship with patients
and partners is key to the resilient development of the Group.
We strive to provide qualified services and medical staffs
with extensive experiences to our patients. By leveraging on
sophisticated medical skills and equipment, we try our best
to cater to our patients’ needs for medical treatments. We
also cooperate with our partners to achieve the sustainable
development of our business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERE D

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees that would have a material
impact on the financial position or operations of the Group.

Pledge of Assets

As of December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any material
pledge of assets.

Subsequent Event(s)

The Group had no other significant subsequent events
occurred after December 31, 2023 which would have material
impact on the performance and the value of the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had a total of 20,172
fulltime employees (December 31, 2022 (restated): 20,622
employees). For FY2023, the staff cost (including Directors’
remuneration in the form of salaries and other benefits) was
approximately RMB3,406 million (FY2022 (restated): RMB2,635
million).

The Group ensured that the remuneration packages of
employees remain competitive and the remuneration level of
its employees was determined on the basis of performance
with reference to the profitability of the Group, industry
remuneration standards and market conditions within the
general framework of the Group’s remuneration system. The
Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives or rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government
(together with the MPF Scheme, the "Defined Contribution
Schemes”). These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes vest fully
and immediately with the employees when contributed into
the schemes. Accordingly, (i) for each of the two years ended
December 31, 2023, there was no forfeiture of contributions
under the Defined Contribution Schemes; and (ii) there were
no forfeited contributions available for the Group to reduce
its existing level of contributions to the Defined Contribution
Schemes as at December 31, 2023.

Other Information

For the latest developments of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
Dispute, please refer to the paragraph headed “Yan Hua 10T
Agreement Dispute” under the section “Directors’ Report” to
this report.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in (i) provision of general healthcare
services; (ii) provision of hospital management services,
and sale of pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables and provision of other hospital ancillary
services to such hospitals in Chinese Mainland. Details of the
principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced by
the Group, as well as the business outlook of the Group
(including key performance indicators of future development
of the Group) are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 25 of this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance for
the year ended December 31, 2023 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the paragraph headed “Business Review" under the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
10 to 13, in the paragraph headed “Financial Data” under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 14 to 17 and in the paragraph headed “Financial
Review" under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 19 to 24 of this annual report.

Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed “Subsequent Events” on page 24 of this annual
report.

Relevant discussion set out in this annual report as
mentioned above forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes
the importance of good environmental stewardship. In this
connection, the Group has strictly adopted and implemented
policies and procedures to conduct environmental protection
work on a standard which is not less stringent than the
prevailing environmental laws and regulations of the PRC.
We believe that we were in compliance with all relevant PRC
laws and regulations regarding environmental protection in
all material respects during the year ended December 31,
2023 and as at the date of this Directors’ Report. No material
environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
sanctions were reported to our management.

The Group has formulated the “Hazardous Substances Safety
Management Plan” and the “Medical Waste Management
System” (BBEEYEEHIE) for all hospitals according
to the relevant requirements of the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People's Republic of China” The
above systems focus on the management of hazardous
substances (containing hazardous chemicals and medical
waste), including storage location, container labelling,
protection, leakage handling and disposal in use. Hospitals
conduct supervisions and inspections mainly on storage
and labelling on hazardous chemicals and conclude the
analysis results on a quarterly basis. As required by the
“Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China’
Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic
of China and Supervision and Management Measures
on Energy Conservation and Ecological Environmental
Protection of Central Enterprises (MR EELIFER
HERIRIBEREGESENE), the Group formulated
the “"Energy Conservation, Emission Reduction and
Environmental Protection Management System’, which
focuses on guiding and supervising hospitals to implement
their main responsibilities, standardizing the management
of energy conservation and eco-environmental protection,
and promoting the green and high-quality development of
hospitals. The Group monitors the outcome of such policies
upon their implementation, so as to ensure the effective
implementation of the above policies.
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Meanwhile, the Group has formulated the “Ultilities Safety
Management Plan’, “Safety and Protection Management
Plan” and “Medical Technology Safety Management Plan’
and passed the "Facility Safety Management Plan” to
ensure the effective implementation of the above plans. The
Group has formulated the “Radiation Safety Management
Plan” and “Radiation Emergency Plan” which focuses on
the management of radiation safety and specifies the
requirements on all radiation equipment, protection and
radiation-related waste treatment. Every year, qualified
testing and rating agencies are engaged to monitor the
radiation level of all radiological equipment and workplaces
in the hospitals. Moreover, the hospitals carry out drills
against contingencies and evaluate and conclude the
responsiveness.

The Company's environmental, social and governance report
will be published on the same day as this report, which
contains details of the Group's environmental, social and
governance measures.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable manner
while balancing the interests of our various stakeholders
including our Substantial Shareholders, employees, patients,
customers, suppliers, business partners and the community.

An account of the Group's relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the “Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares” set out on pages 46 to 47 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to
providing all employees a safe and harassment-free
working environment with equal opportunities in relation
to employment, remuneration management, training and
career development. This commitment is incorporated in
our Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment Policy.
Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that, with due
awareness of all employees throughout the year, the Group
was able to maintain a high standard of health and safety
measures in all company activities. We have in place a fair
and effective performance appraisal system and incentive
bonus schemes that are designed to motivate and reward
employees at all levels, which helps to deliver their best
performance and achieve business performance targets. For
talent acquisition and continuous development, the Group
offers training programs as well as leadership and talent
development programs for talents with different academic
backgrounds. The Group believes that direct and effective
communication is essential for good partnership built-up
between management and employees. The Group holds
regular meetings and forums to brief employees on Company
developments and obtain their feedbacks and suggestions.

As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider, we
consider patients as one of the most important stakeholders.
We are committed to serving our patients to the best of
our ability and continually enhancing the level of service
excellence. The Group has embraced new media platforms
as an effective communication channel with our patients
to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas for further
improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical
and professional standards when dealing with suppliers
and contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout
our group purchasing organization business, the Group has
implemented the Group Purchasing Policy and Principles, and
a Supplier Code of Conduct to facilitate a common means
whereby we can better communicate with our business
partners regarding their compliance with local regulations
governing labor, health and safety, and the environment.
In order to have a better and close monitoring of supplier
performance, our procurement department conduct
supplier performance review annually targeting our major
suppliers and contractors, and will communicate with the
suppliers that have unsatisfactory rating for rectification or
improvements.
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Results and Final Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on pages 118 to 119 of this annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of RMB6 cents
per Share for FY2023 (“2023 Final Dividend”) (FY2022:
final dividend equivalent to approximately RMB3.3 cents per
Share). The proposed 2023 Final Dividend will be payable
to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, June 14, 2024. Based
on the number of Shares in issue of the Company as of
December 31, 2023, the total amount of 2023 Final Dividend
is approximately RMB77.80 million. Subject to the approval
by Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held
on Wednesday, June 5, 2024, it is expected that the 2023
Final Dividend will be distributed on or before Friday, July
19, 2024. The 2023 Final Dividend will be payable in cash to
each Shareholder in HK$ at the average benchmark exchange
rate of RMB to HK$ as published by the People's Bank of
China during the five business days ending on Wednesday,
June 5, 2024 (inclusive), being the date of the annual general
meeting, unless an election is made to receive the same
in RMB. Shareholders will be given the option to elect to
receive all (but not part) of the 2023 Final Dividend in RMB.
To make such election, Shareholders should complete the
Dividend Currency Election Form, which is expected to be
despatched to Shareholders in late June 2024 as soon as
practicable after the record date of Friday, June 14, 2024
to determine Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
2023 Final Dividend, and return it to the Company's branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 10, 2024. Shareholders who
are minded to elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2023
Final Dividend in RMB by cheques should note that (i) they
should ensure that they have an appropriate bank account to
which the RMB cheques for dividend can be presented for
payment; and (ii) there is no assurance that RMB cheques
can be cleared without material handling charges or delay
in Hong Kong or that RMB cheques will be honoured for
payment upon presentation outside Hong Kong. The cheques
are expected to be posted to the relevant Shareholders by
ordinary post on Friday, July 19, 2024 at the Shareholders'
own risk.
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The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Dividend Policy

According to the dividend policy of the Group, subject to
compliance with applicable rules and regulations (including
Cayman Islands laws) and the Articles of Association, the
Company will pay dividend to the Shareholders when the
Group recorded net profit during the period and payment of
dividend would not affect its normal operation. The Company
intends to share its profits with Shareholders in the form of
annual dividend and the remaining net profits will be used for
the Group's development and operations.

The Company's ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the general financial condition of the
Group, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirement of the Group as well as
dividends received from the Company's subsidiaries. The
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Cayman lIslands laws and the
Articles of Association.

The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 123 to
124 of this annual report.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to Shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or
dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

As at December 31, 2023, the Company's share premium
amounted to RMB5,572,218,000 (as at December 31, 2022:
RMB5,614,571,000), subject to a solvency test, is available
for distribution to the Shareholders.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 278 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Borrowings

Details of the borrowings of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended December 31,
2023.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended December 31, 2023, sales to the
Group's five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 6.5% (2022 (as restated): 2.9%) of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 3.0% (2022 (as restated): 1.2%)
of the total sales.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 15.7% (2022
(as restated): 17.4%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 4.6% (2022 (as restated): 5.4%) of the total
purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors
nor any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital), had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of the Group during
the year ended December 31, 2023.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provides that every Director
should be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him/her as a Director, in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/her
favor, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company maintains a directors’ liability insurance
policy against potential legal liabilities and related expenses
that may be incurred by the Directors in the event of any
litigation.
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2023 and
up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. SONG Qing (Chairman)
Mr. YU Hai (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on February 27 2023)
Mr. SHAN Baojie (Vice President)
Ms. YANG Min (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on June 13, 2023)
Mr. CHENG Libing (Resigned on February 27 2023)
Ms. REN Yuan (Resigned on June 13, 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. GE Lu (Appointed on September 14, 2023)
Mr. HU Hui (Resigned on September 14, 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Ting Yuk, Anthony

Mr. KWONG Kwok Kong

Mr. FU Tingmei (Appointed on February 27, 2023)

Mr. ZHOU Peng (Appointed on September 14, 2023)
Mr. LEE Kar Chung Felix (Resigned on June 13, 2023)

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.

Biographical Details of the Directors and
Senior Management and Disclosure of
Information of Directors Pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 101
to 109 of this annual report. Save as disclosed, there are no
other changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the service agreements/letters of appointment of
the Directors can be terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month notice in writing.
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Pursuant to the letters of appointment, each of Mr. Wu Ting
Yuk Anthony, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix, Mr. Fu Tingmei and Mr. Zhou Peng is entitled to an
annual director’s fee of HK$300,000. Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
has resigned as independent non-executive Director on June
13, 2023 and received the annual directors fee on a pro rata
basis.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into or
intends to enter into a service contract with any member of
our Group which is not terminable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than the
statutory compensation).

Remuneration of the Directors and Five
Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are
set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management is subject to review of the Remuneration
Committee and approval by the Board, such remuneration is
determined by taking into account of the relevant individual's
experience, responsibilities, workload and time commitment
to the Group and the operating results of the Group and
comparable market statistics.
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Independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received annual independence
confirmation from all independent non-executive Directors
and confirms that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent and the conditions pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules have been fulfilled.

Director’s Interests in Competing Businesses

Mr. Song Qing is a director and the chairman of the board
of CR Healthcare (the controlling shareholder of the
Company); Mr. Yu Hai is a director, vice chairman and the
general manager of CR Healthcare; Mr. Shan Baojie is the
vice general manager of CR Healthcare; Ms. Yang Min is
the chief financial officer of CR Healthcare; and Ms. Ge
Lu is an external director of CR Healthcare. CR Healthcare
specializes in health industry investment and operation
management, is one of the key health service industry
platform of China Resources Group. CR Healthcare is
committed to the long-term development of China's medical
and healthcare services, actively participates in China’s
medical system reform, and proactively explores and involves
in the investment, operation and management of hospitals
and healthcare industries in the PRC. In addition to being the
single largest shareholder of the Company, CR Healthcare
also operates and manages a number of medical institutions
in certain provinces of China.

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as of December
31, 2023, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its
Associated Corporations

As of December 31, 2023, the interests/short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the Company

Capacity/
Name of Director Nature of interest

Long position/
short position

EXNUA

515,/ EatE

we %A

Song Qing Beneficial owner Long position (Note)

KRB BHERA Fa (fsh)

Ge Lu Beneficial owner Long position

B EmERAA 5=

Wu Ting Yuk, Beneficial owner Long position (Note)
Anthony

HATE N8 EmERAA e (Fish)

Note: This includes also the long positions of the Award Shares, which have been
declared to be granted by the Company to the corresponding Directors on
August 31, 2018 and which has been vested.

Long Positions in Shares of China Resources
Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (“CR
Beer”), an Associated Corporation of the
Company:

Capacity/ Long position/
Name of Director Nature of interest short position
= 510/ =t s Y= 9=
Ge Lu Beneficial owner Long position
B BHEREA S,
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013. Such scheme has expired
on September 29, 2023.

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible Participants

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules,
the Board may grant options to any full-time or part-
time employees, consultants or potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries at its sole discretion and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in
the absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed
or will contribute to our Group (collectively “Eligible
Participants”).
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Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013, after
which time no further option will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force, and effective in all other respects to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
any options granted prior thereto and other rights as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not,
in aggregate, exceed 83,376,300 Shares, being 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the Listing Date (with the overallotment option fully
exercised). As the Share Option Scheme has expired on
September 29, 2023, no options can be granted and no
shares can be issued under the Share Option Scheme
thereafter.

The number of options available for grant under the
scheme mandate of the Share Option Scheme at the
beginning of the Reporting Period is 83,376,300.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue.
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Offer period and amount payable for
options

An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days
from the date of offer, provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the
effective period of the Share Option Scheme. An option
shall be deemed as has been granted to (subject to
certain restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and
accepted by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee”)
and taken effect upon the issuance of an exercise
notice, if the Company receives a copy of the offer
document (including the document for the acceptance
of share option) duly signed by the grantee (the “Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last date
for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable under
any circumstances and shall be deemed as payment of
part of the exercise price. Once accepted, the option is
taken as granted from the date of offer to the relevant
Grantee.

Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

There is no general requirement that an option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.
The period during which an option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (the “Option Period”) shall be the period of
time to be notified by our Board to each Grantee as
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save
that such period shall not exceed 10 years from the
commencement date of the vesting period as stated in
the respective Grantee's Offer Document.
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8. Basis of determining the subscription
price

The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the
"Exercise Price"”) shall be determined by the Board, but
in any event shall not be lower than the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on
the date an option is offered (the “Offer Date");

(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, and
during the year ended December 31, 2023, no share option
had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled or lapsed
and there is no outstanding share option under the Share
Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme has expired on
September 29, 2023.

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as
a means to recognise the contribution of and provide
incentives for the key management personnel including
Directors and senior management, employed experts and
core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
from July 7 2014 (the “Adoption Date”) on which the Board
adopted the Share Award Scheme and is administrated by
the Board and the trustee of the Share Award Scheme.
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In order to provide more flexibility in the administration and
implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme and the scheme rules,
having retrospective effect from the Adoption Date, to the
effect that the Board may, from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, determine if the Award Shares shall be granted
to a Selected Participant with or without payment of a price
per Award Share payable by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price”) which shall be notified by the Board to each
Selected Participant. In determining whether the Selected
Participant shall pay a Grant Price for the Award Shares and
the amount of the Grant Price, as the case may be, the Board
shall take into consideration matters, including but not limited
to the Selected Participant’s position, experience, years of
service, performance and contribution to the Company, its
subsidiaries and/or associated entities. The Grant Price shall
be settled according to the payment schedule determined by
the Board.

The Board also resolved on August 31, 2018 to make further
amendments to the terms of the Share Award Scheme to
the effect that the maximum number of the Award Shares,
which have been and to be awarded by the Board throughout
the duration of the scheme, to be revised to 5% of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company as at the date
of the abovementioned resolution (i.e. 64,833,825 Shares),
representing approximately 5.00% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report, and
the maximum number of the Award Shares to each of the
Selected Participants to be revised to 1% of the total number
of issued Shares as at the date of the abovementioned
resolution (i.e. 12,966,765 Shares).

There are no provisions in the scheme rules of the Share
Award Scheme in relation to the amount payable on
acquisition of the Award Shares thereunder and the period
within which payments or calls must or may be made or
loans for such purposes must be repaid, which would all
be determined by the Board when the Award Shares were
granted.

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the scheme rules. Pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme, the Board may from time to time while
the scheme is in force and subject to all applicable laws,
determine such vesting criteria and conditions and vesting
periods. The Company shall comply with the relevant Listing
Rules when granting the Award Shares.
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Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up
to December 31, 2023, an aggregate of 32,212,216 Award
Shares have been granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions. No
Award Shares were granted under the Share Award Scheme
within FY2023. Details of the interests of the Selected
Participants in the Award Shares are as follows:

Number of ~ Unvested asat ~ Vested during
Award Shares  January 1, 2023 FY2023

EZE2023F 120235
1B1HAXEE HBEERE
Name of Director B4
Song Qing RE 400,000 - -
Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HER 1,500,000 = =
Cheng Libing (resigned on AL (B742023%F 400,000 - -
February 27 2023) 2827HEHT)
Ren Yuan (resigned on June E32 (B1*2023%F 300,000 = =
13, 2023) 65130 8)
5 highest paid individuals 72023 BAEUEER 1,260,000 = =
during FY2023 BENRSNLY
(excluding any Directors) AN (REEER
in aggregate £3) (58

Other grantees in aggregate EHER A (54) 15,959,800 = =
Notes:

1. The Award Shares granted under the Share Award Scheme as set out in the
above table (the "Relevant Award Shares”) were approved by the Board
on August 31, 2018 and were granted pursuant to the relevant agreements
that came into effect in May 2019.

2. 50% of the Relevant Award Shares were acquired by the Selected
Participants at HK$5.27 per Share (which have already been settled
pursuant to respective agreement), and the remaining 50% were granted
by the Company to the Selected Participants at zero consideration.

3. The Relevant Award Shares were vested during the period from FY2020
to FY2022. The first batch of Award Shares were vested on the date when
the relevant annual assessment of year 2019 was completed, the second
batch of Award Shares where vested on the date when the relevant annual
assessment of year 2020 was completed, and the remaining portion of
Award Shares (i.e. the third batch) were vested on the date when the
relevant annual assessment of year 2021 was completed.

4. Upon vesting of the Relevant Award Shares, such Award Shares shall
become wholly beneficially owned by the relevant Selected Participants
without requiring any of them to exercise such Award Shares. As such, no
exercise period is applicable to the unvested Relevant Award Shares under
the Share Award Scheme.

The remaining life of the Share Award Scheme is
approximately 2 months as at the date of this annual report.
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Number of Award Shares

RERHHE
Closing price of
Award Shares
immediately
before the
Unvested as at  relevant vesting
Cancelled during ~ Lapsed during ~ December 31,  date during FY
FY2023 FY2023 2023 2023 (HK$)
2023
MEEEER
BZE2023F HEBHFRE
1820236 120235 128318 RONKHE
MBEERE HHEEXY FEE (B7)

- - - N/A
— — — N/A
— - — N/A

- - - N/A

- - - N/A
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and
Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As of December 31, 2023, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had
or were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or
who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Name of Shareholder

RERTE

Interest of a controlled
corporation

REEE#ED

China Resources Company
Limited
FEZEEBRAS

Mitsubishi URJ Financial Interest of a controlled

Group, Inc. corporation
—EHHMETMER RELEED

L: Long position

Notes:

1. (1) 463,681,516 of these shares are directly held by CRH (Medical) Limited.
CRH (Medical) Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare Group Limited is wholly owned
by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Healthcare) Limited is wholly owned by
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited is wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC Bluesky
Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Inc., which is wholly owned
by China Resources Company Limited; and (2) 10,638,000 of these shares
are directly held by Commotra Company Limited which is wholly owned by
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

2. Mitsubishi URJ Financial Group, Inc. is the sole shareholder of Mitsubishi
URJ Trust and Banking Corporation whilst the latter is directly holding the
entire shareholding interest in First Sentier Investors Holdings Pty Limited.
First Sentier Investors Holdings Pty Limited (via its wholly-owned subsidiary
First Sentier Investors Asia Holdings Limited) held the entire interest in
First Sentier Investors (Hong Kong) Limited and the latter directly held
65,224,166 Shares (representing approximately 5.03% of the issued shares
of the Company).

Capacity/Nature of interest

55/ eatd

FERRREMATRERB K
MERARR (D 2 a

72023F12B31H U AL (RBIEEAR
BAEFEMERSITHAEL) RIRMD AR,
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B MR BRRAABIREE S RPERGSE
EREFE B MAZ R K, Tk
B NEERRMEBEEEARATBEETRAF
5%a I EBIRER o

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding
RERNEBE FRENBEDL
%

474,319,516(L)" 36.58
65,224,166(L)? 5.03

=
B 5T
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives'
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its Associated Corporations’| “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme”
Report, at no time during the year ended December 31,
2023 has any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate been granted to Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, and none
of any such right has been exercised by them; and none of
the Company and any of its subsidiaries has been a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under the age of 18, to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

Interests and Short

in this Directors’

The Acquisitions of LH Subject Equity,
JE Subject Equity and JE Subject Debts

On February 22, 2023, CR Hospital Investment (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) (as transferee) entered
into the Equity Transfer Agreement | with LR Management
(as transferor), pursuant to which LR Management has
conditionally agreed to sell and CR Hospital Investment
has conditionally agreed to purchase 76.10% equity
interests in Liaoning CR Healthcare and 100% equity
interests in Shenzhen CR Healthcare at a consideration of
RMB3,394,607,000, which was settled in cash. As at the
date of this report, Liaoning CR Healthcare holds one wholly-
owned subsidiary and indirectly holds the sponsorship rights
of 31 LH Member Institutions.
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CR Hospital Investment (as transferee) also entered into the
Equity and Debt Transfer Agreement Il with CR Technology
(as transferor) of even date, pursuant to which CR Technology
has conditionally agreed to sell and CR Hospital Investment
has conditionally agreed to purchase 80% equity interests in
the JE Subject at a consideration of RMB244,536,000 and to
purchase the debts owed by the JE Subject to CR Technology
(the principal balance amounted to RMB316,944,600 as
at December 31, 2022), which was settled in cash. As at
the date of this report, the JE Subject directly holds the
sponsorship rights of six JE Member Medical Institutions.

The equity transfers of the aforesaid transactions have
been completed by the end of June 2023. The Company
confirms that according to the IFRS Accounting Standards
and the accounting policies of the Group, the Group has
retrospectively consolidated the financial results of the LH
Subjects and the JE Subject from June 2, 2022 (the date
on which the Group, the LH Subjects and the JE Subject
started to come under common control). The comparative
figures of the Group's FY2022 financial statements has been
restated, that is, the financial results of the LH Subjects and
the JE Subject from June 2, 2022 have been included in the
Comparative Figures. The Group's FY2023 financial results
include the financial results of the LH Subjects and the JE
Subject starting from January 1, 2023.

Each of LR Management and CR Technology is indirectly
wholly owned by CR Healthcare, and CR Healthcare is
indirectly wholly owned by CRH, a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Therefore, both LR Management and CR
Technology are the connected persons of the Company.

Further details of the aforesaid transactions and
the accounting arrangement could be found in the
announcements of the Company dated February 22, 2023,
May 17 2023 and June 30, 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated April 27, 2023.

From June 25, 2023, the transactions between Liaoning
CR Healthcare Group and the connected persons of the
Company, and the transactions between JE Subject Group
and the connected persons of the Company constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company.
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Connected Transactions at Subsidiary Level MEBAREBEZHAERS — AR
- Certain Rental Arrangements with the HRHEENZEEEZH
Wugang Group

On September 25, 2023, the Wugang Group (as the lessor) 2202398250 » RINER (fEA EHE )
entered into three rental agreements with Wugang Hospital EHIHERERE T B RIDQZFr RIS
and Wugang No.2 Staff Hospital (as the lessees) under the BT 5Bz (BEAAMA) DAL TH
Wugang Hospital Group, pursuant to which the lessees shall M ERZ  EILEARSHBAZSHEEEK
lease certain medical buildings and ancillary buildings with 18K B EEY) > 4272 LI 4135,963.38
a total construction area of 135,963.38 square meters fora FHXK > HEFERHARE - BRAGENE
lease period of five years. Major terms of such agreements E{EFITF :

are as follows:

Initial amount
of right-of-use
Lease Term to be recognized
(From the in the statement
Address of Relevant Construction  lease inception Rent and deposit of assets and
Lessee Properties Lease Purposes Area  date) arrangement liabilities
BEAERA
THEHR APl ]
EEA LiEl kY E Sk HERR BEEE (EHAEH) RERFEE2H BRESH
(Sg. m.) (RMB) (RMB)
(FAR) (AE®) (AE#)
Agreement | Wugang Hospital Within the area of Medical buildings 79,04748 1st Lease Year: 52,467645.34
Wugang Hospital, and ancillary 11,513,528.00 p.a.
Yejin Avenue, buildings 2nd Lease Year:
Wuhan City, Hubei 11,628,663.28 p.a.
Province 3rd Lease Year:

11,744,949.91 p.a.
4th Lease Year:
11,862,399.41 p.a.
5th Lease Year:
11,981,023.40 p.a.

Deposit not required

B RIBEER MEERED A BEAER E—E:REE:
ABREBERRR i BEEY 11,513,528.00/F
ER EENREE:

11,628,663.28/F
E-EHAEE:
11,744,949.91/F
EMEREE
11,862,399.41/F
ERENREE:
11,981,023.40/F

ERETRH

EMBRIRAERAT “SCSEERS 49
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Address of Relevant

Lessee Properties

ik E R

Gl

Agreement Il Wugang Hospital No. 5-2, Kang Yuan,
Yejin Avenue,
Qingshan District,
Wuhan City,

Hubei Province

HIbRERED
BUBAEAE
FREb5%2

1382 RiBRER

Within the area of

Wugang No.2 Staff
Hospital as located
at Qingwang Road,
Qingshan District,

Wuhan City, Hubei
Province

Agreement Il Wugang No.2 Staff

Hospital

ALEREBEL
BETRRAE -
RIERRER

1353 REE-BT
1

Lease Purposes

RERR

Office building of
Wugang Hospital

iNElS

Medical buildings and
ancillary buildings

BRABRNER

Total Construction
Area (Sg. m.)

REERAH
(B5%)

Construction

Area

BEEE

5,800.89

51,115.01

135,963.38

Lease Term
(From the
lease inception
date)

HEHR

(LR HES)

(Sq. m.)

(FEARK)

From July 1, 2023
to June 30, 2028
(5 Lease Years)

202357818
F20284F
6A308
(HoEEERE)
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Rent and deposit
arrangement

HERREEZH
(RMB)

(AEH)

1st Lease Period:

1,408,300.00 p.a.

2nd Lease Period:
1,422,256.63 p.a.

3rd Lease Period:
1,436,587.23 p.a.

4th Lease Period:
1,450,831.86 p.a.

5th Lease Period:
1,465,370.51 p.a.

Deposit not required

E—EREE:
1,408,300.00/F
BEHREE:
1,422,256.63/F
B=EREE:
1,436,587.23/F
EMEAEE
1,450,831.86/4F
EREHAEE
1,465,370.51/F

BRESEZH

1st Lease Period:
4,198,800.00 p.a.
2nd Lease Period:
4,240,788.00 p.a.
3rd Lease Period:
4,283,195.88 p.a.
4th Lease Period:
4,326,02784 p.a.
5th Lease Period:
4,369,288.12 p.a.

Deposit not required

E—EREE:
4,198,800.00/4
BEHREE:
4,240,788.00/F
B=EREE:
4,283,195.88/4F
EMEAEEE
4,326,02784/F
EREHAEE .
4,369,288.12/4F

BRESEH

Initial amount of right-
of-use to be recognized

in the statement of
assets and liabilities
(RMB)
BEABARARIZ
MiaEREESE
NE®)

Initial amount

of right-of-use
to0 be recognized
in the statement
of assets and
liabilities

6,41733717

19,134,113.26

78,019,095.77



As at the date of aforesaid agreements, the Wugang Group
is a substantial shareholder of CR Wugang, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, which does not fall within
the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries under Rule 14A.09
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Wugang Group is a
connected person of the Company at its subsidiary level and
the aforesaid transactions constituted connected transactions
of the Company. Wugang Hospital and Wugang No.2 Staff
Hospital are sponsored hospitals wholly-owned by CR
Wugang.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
September 25, 2023 for further details of the aforesaid
transactions.

Continuing Connected Transactions
A.1 CR PMM Framework Agreement

The Company and CRH entered into the new
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical
consumables supply framework agreement on
November 18, 2022 (the “2022 CR PMM Framework
Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years
commencing from January 1, 2023 to December 31,
2025, whereby the annual caps are also renewed
thereupon. The 2022 CR PMM Framework Agreement
and the proposed annual caps for the 2022 CR
PMM Framework Agreement were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting on December 29, 2022.
The annual caps for the purchase of PMM items under
the 2022 CR PMM Framework Agreement for the
three financial years ending December 31, 2025 are
RMBO0.90 billion, RMB1.10 billion and RMB1.20 billion,
respectively.

CRH is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the amount
of the purchase orders under the 2022 CR PMM
Framework Agreement paid/payable by the Group was
RMB871 million.
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A.2 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement and CR

Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement

The Company and CR Bank entered into the new
strategic cooperation agreement on November 18,
2022 (the “2022 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years
commencing from January 1, 2023 to December 31,
2025, whereby the annual caps are also renewed
thereupon. The 2022 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement and the proposed annual caps for the
2022 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement were
approved at the extraordinary general meeting on
December 29, 2022.

The Company and CR Trust entered into the new
strategic cooperation agreement on November 18,
2022 (the “2022 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years
commencing from January 1, 2023 to December 31,
2025, whereby the annual caps are also renewed
thereupon. The 2022 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation
Agreement and the proposed annual caps for the
2022 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement were
approved at the extraordinary general meeting on
December 29, 2022.
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The annual caps under 2022 CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement and 2022 CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement for the three financial years
ended December 31, 2023 were set out as follows:

B E2023F

N )

BRI ERRENER
BEEREE
(BERUSRIE) @

Maximum daily deposit
amount placed with CR
Bank (inclusive of interest
receivable) Note)

BREBRTRERRET
T LR B S RE M
NeERREFEEEK
Flg®

Maximum daily principal
amount and interest in
relation to financial
products to be provided
by CR Bank and CR
Trust (Note)

Maximum service fees and ZE B IR1T KR E B (S T#
commissions for other F LR R E &R
financial products and ERkBRENRS
services to be provided IREERAS
by CR Bank and CR Trust

Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount
and interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period,
and is calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of
each day, without aggregating the amount incurred on the days
before.

In 2023, the actual highest amount of the Group
daily deposit balance (inclusive of interest receivable)
and daily principal amount and interest in relation to
financial products provided by CR Bank amounted to
RMB336 million and RMBO, respectively. In 2023,
the service fees and commissions for other financial
products and services provided by CR Bank were nil.

For the
year ended
December 31,

12H31H
(RMB million)
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For the For the
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HE2024%F #HE2025%F

12H31H 12H31H

(RMB million) (RMB million)
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In 2023, the Group did not have any balance of financial
products provided by CR Trust. In 2023, the service
fees and commissions for other financial products and
services provided by CR Trust were nil.

CRCL is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Bank and CR Trust are subsidiaries of CRH,
therefore both of them are connected persons of the
Company.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated November 18, 2022 and the circular of the
Company dated December 12, 2022 for further details
of the aforesaid transactions.

Supply Chain Cooperation Framework Agreement

On December 29, 2022, the Company and CR
Pharmaceutical (together with its subsidiaries, the
“CR Pharmaceutical Group”) entered into the
cooperation framework agreement (the “Supply Chain
Cooperation Framework Agreement”), which will
expire on December 31, 2024 and pursuant to which
the Group shall provide CR Pharmaceutical Group
Supply Chain Management Services of medical supplies
in relation to establishment of regional platforms and
streamlining of supply chain management procedures
in order to improve the efficiency of supply chain
management of medical supplies of CR Pharmaceutical
Group and reduce the corresponding costs. The
Group shall receive management service fees from
CR Pharmaceutical Group for the abovementioned
services.

The annual caps under the Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement for the two financial years
ending December 31, 2024 were RMB74 million and
RMB84 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the amount
of management service fee income under the Supply
Chain Cooperation Framework Agreement receivable by
the Group was RMB38 million.

CRH is a controlling shareholder of the Company, and
CR Pharmaceutical, as a subsidiary of CRH, is therefore
a connected person of the Company.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated December 29, 2022 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.
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A.4 Hospital Management Agreement in respect of the

Rehabilitation Hospital

On March 12, 2021, Hubei Runkang Healthcare
Management Co., Ltd. (“"Hubei Runkang’, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
(as manager) and Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhen Runtou Consulting’, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Land) (as the principal)
entered into a hospital management agreement (the
“Hospital Management Agreement”), pursuant to
which Shenzhen Runtou Consulting shall appoint Hubei
Runkang to provide comprehensive operation and
management services for its Yuenianhua Rehabilitation
Hospital, Nanning City (the “Rehabilitation Hospital"”)
which include the introduction of management
and operation systems by Hubei Runkang, building
management team of the hospital, and the introduction
of various resources such as hospital brand and
medical technology. It shall also rely on the medical and
technical resources of the Group in enhancing various
disciplines of the Rehabilitation Hospital. The term shall
commence from March 12, 2021 to December 31,
2023 (both dates inclusive), a period of approximately
2 years and 10 months. Under the same terms, priority
shall be given to the Group to renew the Hospital
Management Agreement. During the preparation
period, Hubei Runkang shall charge a fixed monthly fee
of RMB450,000 which should be settled by Shenzhen
Runtou Consulting by the 11th day of the next month.
If it is less than one month, such fee shall be charged
on a pro rata basis. The first installment of such fee
should be paid on or before 5 working days from the
effective date of the Hospital Management Agreement.
Starting from the official opening of the Rehabilitation
Hospital, the service fee shall then be settled by the
Rehabilitation Hospital itself. The service fee comprises
three components: (1) the fixed fee of RMB3.5
million per annum; (2) the income related fee which is
equivalent to 6% of the target income of Rehabilitation
Hospitals, and adjusted by a certain percentage
according to the deviation from the target income
(there could be upward or downward adjustments); and
(3) the floating management fee pegged to operating
profit. The annual caps in respect of transactions
contemplated under the Hospital Management
Agreement for the three financial years ended
December 31, 2023 are RMB5,050,000, RMB9,400,000
and RMB17230,000, respectively. During the year
ended December 31, 2023, the transaction amount
under the mentioned agreement was RMB3 million.
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CRH is the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
CR Land is a subsidiary of CRH; while Shenzhen Runtou
Consulting is a subsidiary of CR Land, it is therefore a
connected person of the Company.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated March 12, 2021 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.

The Information Technology Services Framework
Agreements

CR Hospital Management and China Resources Digital
Holdings Company Limited (“CR Digital”) entered
into the information technology services annual
agreement (the “Information Technology Services
Annual Agreement”) on January 11, 2023 for a fixed
term of one year commencing from January 1, 2023 to
December 31, 2023, pursuant to which CR Digital and
its subsidiaries shall provide the relevant information
technology services to the Group and its Sponsored
Hospitals pursuant to the 2023 Information Technology
Services Annual Agreement. The annual cap for the
information technology services under 2023 Information
Technology Services Annual Agreement is RMB16
million.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the
transaction amount of the Group under the afore
mentioned agreement was RMB14 million. The
Information Technology Services Framework Agreement
expired on December 31, 2023.

CRH is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and indirectly holds the entire equity interests in CR
Digital. Hence, CR Digital is a connected person of the
Company.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated January 11, 2023 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.
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On February 8, 2024, CR Hospital Investment (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and CR Digital
entered into the 2024 IT Services Annual Agreement,
pursuant to which the CR Digital Group shall provide
the relevant information technology services to the
Group and its Sponsored Hospitals, for the term from
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. The annual cap
for the year ending December 31, 2024 under the 2024
IT Services Annual Agreement is RMB34 million. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated
February 8, 2024 for further details.

Certain of the related party transactions as disclosed in
Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements also fall
under the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing
Rules, please refer to the corresponding notes to the
abovementioned Note 41 for further details. However, please
note that the figures of the abovementioned Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements is based on the accounting
treatment that according to the IFRS Accounting Standards
and the accounting policies of the Group, the Group has
retrospectively consolidated the financial results of the LH
Subjects and the JE Subject from June 2, 2022 (the date
on which the Group, the LH Subjects and the JE Subject
started to come under common control), while the statistical
caliber of this section (i.e.,
based on the fact that completion of the acquisition of the
LH Subjects and the JE Subject shall prevail. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

the “Connected Transactions”) is
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B.1 The Sales of Medical Supplies B.1 BEYEHE

On February 8, 2024, the Company entered into the
CR Healthcare Sales of Medical Supplies Framework
Agreement with CR Healthcare, and the Aerospace
Medical Sales of Medical Supplies Framework
Agreement with Aerospace Medical, both for a term
commencing from January 1, 2024 to December
31, 2025, pursuant to which the Group shall supply
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables and medical
devices to the member hospitals of CR Healthcare
(excluding the hospitals of the Group) and the member
hospitals of Aerospace Medical, respectively. The
annual cap for the CR Healthcare Sales of Medical
Supplies Framework Agreement is RMB45 million
for 2024 and RMB75 million for 2025 respectively,
while the annual cap for the Aerospace Medical
Sales of Medical Supplies Framework Agreement is
RMB85 million for 2024 and RMB100 million for 2025
respectively. On even date, the transactions (2023
Medical Supplies Sales”) conducted by the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2023, for the
sale of medical supplies to the member hospitals of
Aerospace Medical in order to meet their emerging
needs with aggregated transaction amount of
approximately RMB23.64 million was also ratified.

As of the date of such agreements, CR Healthcare
indirectly holds approximately 35.76% equity interests
in the Company, and CRCL, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, indirectly holds the entire equity
interests in CR Healthcare and 51% equity interests
in Aerospace Medical. As such, CR Healthcare and
Aerospace Medical are connected persons of the
Company. According to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, the CR Healthcare Sales of Medical Supplies
Framework Agreement, Aerospace Medical Sales
of Medical Supplies Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder and 2023
Medical Supplies Sales constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated February 8, 2024 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.
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B.2 Procurement of Consultation Services

On February 8, 2024, the Company entered into the
Aerospace Medical Procurement of Consultation
Services Framework Agreement with Aerospace
Medical for a term commencing from January 1,
2024 to December 31, 2025, pursuant to which the
Group shall procure medical equipment consultation
services from Aerospace Medical. According to the
Aerospace Medical Procurement of Consultation
Services Framework Agreement, Aerospace Medical
provides medical equipment consulting services and
other services to the Group, including organizing large-
scale equipment research and formulating centralized
procurement equipment purchase plans; organizing
and implementing the formulation of personalized
demand plans for equipment; providing clinical support
for centralized equipment procurement; and organize
publicity and implementation of hospital equipment
centralized procurement system, etc. The annual cap
for the Aerospace Medical Procurement of Consultation
Services Framework Agreement is RMB8.5 million for
2024 and RMB10 million for 2025 respectively.

As disclosed above, Aerospace Medical is a connected
person of the Company, the Aerospace Medical
Procurement of Consultation Services Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated February 8, 2024 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.
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B.3 feHHIEHREERE

B.3 Provision of Supply Chain Management Services

On February 8, 2024, the Company and CR Healthcare
entered into the Supply Chain Management Services
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group
shall provide supply chain management services
to the hospitals of CR Healthcare (excluding the
hospitals of the Group), including provision to the
hospitals of CR Healthcare (excluding the hospitals
of the Group) with integrated and jointly established
supply chain management services of medical supplies
which include establishing regional supply chain
management platforms of medical supplies in specific
regions and streamlining supply chain management
mechanism and procedures of medical supplies,
based on the operational management, business and
other conditions of the hospitals of CR Healthcare
(excluding the hospitals of the Group), in order to
assist CR Healthcare in improving the efficiency and
reducing the costs of supply management of medical
supplies. The corresponding term is from January 1,
2024 to December 31, 2025. The annual caps for the
years ending December 31, 2024 and December 31,
2025 under the Supply Chain Management Services
Framework Agreement are RMB65 million and RMB100
million, respectively.

As at such agreement, CR Healthcare indirectly holds
approximately 35.76% equity interests in the Company
and is indirectly wholly-owned by CRCL, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. As such, CR Healthcare
is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the Supply Chain Management Services Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated February 8, 2024 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.
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B.4 Acquisition of Logistics Services

On February 8, 2024, WRYK (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) and CR Pharmaceutical Commercial
entered into the Logistics Services Framework
Agreement, pursuant to which the CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial Group shall provide logistics services to
the Group, which the CR Pharmaceutical Commercial
Group will provide WRYK with warehousing and
distribution services for medical supplies based on
the operational management, business and other
conditions of the latter. Such services include provision
to WRYK the medical supplies storage, transportation,
distribution services, etc. within specific geographical
areas, in order to assist WRYK in improving the
efficiency and reducing the costs of supply of medical
supplies. The corresponding term is from January 1,
2024 to December 31, 2026. The annual caps for the
years ending December 31, 2024, December 31, 2025
and December 31, 2026 under the Logistics Services
Framework Agreement are RMB5 million, RMB8 million
and RMB12 million, respectively.

As at the date of such agreement, CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial is a subsidiary owned as to approximately
80.13% by CR Pharmaceutical, and CR Pharmaceutical
is indirectly owned as to approximately 53.05% by
CRCL, a controlling shareholder of the Company. As
such, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Logistics
Services Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated February 8, 2024 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.

B.5 Acquisition of Property Management Services

On March 25, 2024, the Company and CR Mixc
entered into the Property Management Services
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which CR Mixc and
its subsidiaries (the “CR Mixc Group”) shall provide
various property management services, including
cleaning, security, fire safety control, etc., to the Group
for a term of two years effective from January 1, 2024.
The annual caps thereunder are RMB41 million for the
year ending December 31, 2024 and RMB48 million for
the year ending December 31, 2025.
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As at the date of such agreement, CRCL (a controlling
shareholder of the Company) indirectly holds
approximately 73.72% equity interests in CR Mixc.
As such, CR Mixc is a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the Property Management
Services Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated March 25, 2024 for further details of the
aforesaid transactions.

The aforesaid Property Management Services
Framework Agreement and its annual caps have also
covered the following transactions of the Company and
their transaction amounts in 2024:

On February 8, 2024, Wugang Hospital and Runjia
Property Service (Wuhan) entered into the New
Wugang Property Services Agreement, pursuant to
which the latter shall continue to provide various
property management services including cleaning,
security, fire safety control, etc., to Wugang Hospital
for a term of one year, with a total service fee of
approximately RMB6.133 million (inclusive of VAT).

On July 31, 2023, Bengang Hospital (the acquisition
of controlling interests of which by the Group was
completed on June 25, 2023) and Runjia Property
Service (Shenyang) entered into Bengang Property
Services Agreement, pursuant to which Runjia
Property Service (Shenyang) would provide property
management services to Bengang Hospital for a term
of one year, with a total service fee of approximately
RMB9.6 million (inclusive of VAT).

Each of Runjia Property Service (Wuhan) and Runjia
Property Service (Shenyang), as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Mixc, is a connected person of the
Company.Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated February 8, 2024 for further details of
the these two transactions.
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Annual review of continuing connected
transactions

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
February 8, 2024, the Company should have complied with
the relevant notification and announcement requirements
under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules regarding the
Bengang Hospitals Property Services Agreements and the
2023 Medical Supplies Sales. Regrettably, the Company
acknowledges that although the Company has put in place
a system for the management of connected transactions,
deficiencies in the implementation of internal controls
have led to inadvertent negligence, resulting in delayed
compliance with the relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules. Recently, when preparing the Company’s annual report
and formulating business plans, the relevant business units
reviewed the transactions and sought advice from the Board
and professional advisors regarding the implications of the
Listing Rules. Therefore, it is advised that the Company, after
obtaining the approval of the Board, promptly publish the
corresponding announcement to disclose the details of such
transactions.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its modified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 51 to 57 of this
annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. The following is the extract of the auditor’s letter that:

“Basis for qualified conclusion

With respect to the provision of property management
services to Bengang Hospital and the sale of medical
supplies to the member hospitals of Aerospace Medical, no
annual caps have been disclosed by the Group. Accordingly,
there was no suitable criteria for the purposes of forming
conclusion relating to these transactions. As a result, we
were unable to determine whether anything has come to
our attention that causes us to believe that the aggregate
amount of these continuing connected transactions set out
in the attached list of continuing connected transaction has
exceeded annual cap as required by Main Board Listing Rule
14A.56(4)"
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“Qualified conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in respect of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company's
board of directors.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group.

c. nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of
the continuing connected transactions set out in the
attached list of continuing connected transactions,
except for possible effect of the matter described in the
“Basis for Qualified Conclusion” section, nothing has
come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.”

“Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 2 of the attached list of continuing
connected transactions of the Group, which discloses that
the continuing connected transactions under the Bengang
Hospital Property Services Agreement and 2023 Medical
Supplies Sales was only approved by the Company's board
of directors subsequent to 31 December 2023 on 8 February
2024. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this
matter.”

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that for the year ended December 31, 2023:

(i)  these transactions were entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group;
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(i)  these transactions were entered into either on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(iii)  these transactions were entered into according to the
agreements governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set out
in such note fall within the scope of discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The connected and continuing connected
transactions of the Group are in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

In respect of the litigation case between the Company
and the Yanhua Parties (i.e. the Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital) regarding the performance of the Yanhua
IOT Agreement in 2019, the Beijing Higher People’s Court
handed down a final judgment (2020 Jing Minzhong No.110)
on November 22, 2021, which rejected the appeal filed by
Yanhua in 2020 and upheld the original judgment in 2019 as
follows: the major details are as follows: (1) the unilateral
termination of Yan Hua IOT Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital is declared to be void and that the
parties shall continue to perform its obligations under the
Yan Hua IOT Agreement; (2) the amount of RMB 14,400,000,
being the damages for breach of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement,
is to be paid by Yan Hua Phoenix to CR Hospital Management
& Consulting; (3) other reliefs sought by CR Hospital
Management & Consulting shall be dismissed; and (4) other
counterclaims of Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital shall
be dismissed. As the Yanhua Parties have been negligent
in complying with the abovementioned final judgment, the
Company then filed an application for enforcement with
the Beijing Second Intermediate People's Court in January
2022, and then accordingly received the liquidated damages
amounted to RMB14,400,000 and related overdue fine
paid by Yanhua Phoenix through the court enforcement
procedure in April 2022. However, due to the Yanhua Parties’
persistent refusal to perform the Yanhua 10T Agreement,
the Company brought a separate lawsuit against the Yanhua
Parties in September 2022 to seek compensation for the
losses suffered by the Company as a result of the Yanhua
Parties’ breach of the Yanhua IOT Agreement (including
the management fee and supply chain fee receivable by
the Company from 2019 to the filing date). Such lawsuit is
currently in the second instance of Beijing High People's
Court. The Company will continue use its best endeavours
and take all appropriate actions to protect the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders. The Company will make
further announcement in accordance with the Listing Rules
as and when appropriate for the future progress of the Yan
Hua 10T Agreement dispute.
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Please refer to the announcements published by the
Company on January 15, 2019, January 21, 2019, April 17,
2019 and November 23, 2021 for more details.

No Director nor any connected entity of a Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company's subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year ended
December 31, 2023.

In addition to certain connected transaction and continuing
connected transactions which have been disclosed in the
sections headed “Connected Transaction” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” to this report respectively, on
May 23, 2019, CR Hospital Management & Consulting (a
subsidiary of the Company) as lessee and the Fengtai branch
of China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (ZEEEMSAS bR BHERME
BRATEASHAT) (a branch company of a subsidiary
of CR Land) as lessor entered into a lease agreement (the
“Lease Agreement”) in relation to the lease of the 14th floor
of China Resources Kunlun Center Office Building, No. 5,
Courtyard No. 9, Fuyi Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, with
a total leasable floor area of 2,225.38 sg. m. for use as the
Group's office from June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2024. Pursuant
to the Lease Agreement, the rent for the period from June
1, 2019 to May 31, 2022 is RMB393,246.90 (including value-
added tax calculated at 9% and excluding utility charges)
per month, and for the period from June 1, 2022 to May 31,
2024, a sum of RMB405,063.67 (including value-added tax
calculated at 9% and excluding utility charges and property
management fees) per month. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated May 23, 2019.
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Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities to
manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2023.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
(E=g:=%EHRAI)) of the Company in accordance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November
4, 2013. Its primary responsibilities include serving as a
focal point for communication among other Directors, the
external auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal
audit function exists) as regards their duties relating to
financial and other reporting, risk management and internal
controls, external and internal audits and such other financial
and accounting matters as the Board determines from time
to time, assisting the Board in providing an independent
review on the effectiveness of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the
Group's financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

As at December 31, 2023 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
KWONG Kwok Kong (chairman of the committee) , Mr. FU
Tingmei and Mr. ZHOU Peng. The Audit Committee, together
with the management of the Company, has reviewed the
accounting principles, accounting standards and methods
adopted by the Company, discussed the matters concerning
risk management and internal control, auditing and financial
reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2023.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
(EEE:HERD]D) of the Company in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for:
(i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and
evaluating the performance-based remuneration and ensure
that no Directors or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

As at December 31, 2023 and up to the publication
date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
currently consisted of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. WU Ting Yuk, Anthony (chairman of
the committee), and Mr. FU Tingmei,and a non-executive
Director, Ms. GE Lu.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee
on November 4, 2013 in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for: (i)
identifying individuals suitably qualified as potential Board
members and selecting or making recommendation to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (ii) reviewing the structure, size and diversity
of the Board and the required skill mix as well as making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to ensure the implementation of the Company's strategic
goal; (iii) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the qualification
of senior management nominated by the Chief Executive
Officer, reported to the Board for consideration and adoption.

As at December 31, 2023 and up to the publication date
of this annual report, the Nomination Committee consisted
of one executive Director, Mr. Song Qing (chairman of the
committee), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. WU Ting Yuk Anthony and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix C3 (i.e. the then Appendix 10) to the Listing
Rules as rules governing dealings by Directors in the listed
securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed
that all members of the Board complied with the Model
Code during the year ended December 31, 2023. As senior
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information
of the Company, they shall comply with the provision of
the Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company,
no incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has
been committed by such employees during the year ended
December 31, 2023.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, June 5,
2024, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, May 31, 2024 to Wednesday, June 5, 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify as members entitled
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, investors
should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
Thursday, May 30, 2024.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed Final
Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, June 12, 2024 to Friday, June 14,
2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
entitlement to the proposed Final Dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, June 11, 2024.

The 2023 Final Dividend will be payable in cash to each
Shareholder in HK$ at the average benchmark exchange rate
of RMB to HK$ as published by the People's Bank of China
during the five business days ending on Wednesday, June
5, 2024 (inclusive), being the date of the annual general
meeting, unless an election is made to receive the same in
RMB. To make such election, Shareholders should complete
the Dividend Currency Election Form, which is expected
to be despatched to Shareholders in late June 2024 as
soon as practicable after the record date of Friday, June
14, 2024 to determine Shareholders’ entitlement to the
2023 Final Dividend, and return it to the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 10, 2024. Shareholders who
are minded to elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2023
Final Dividend in RMB by cheques should note that (i) they
should ensure that they have an appropriate bank account to
which the RMB cheques for dividend can be presented for
payment; and (ii) there is no assurance that RMB cheques
can be cleared without material handling charges or delay
in Hong Kong or that RMB cheques will be honoured for
payment upon presentation outside Hong Kong. The cheques
are expected to be posted to the relevant Shareholders by
ordinary post on Friday, July 19, 2024 at the Shareholders’
own risk.
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If no election is made by a Shareholder or no duly
completed dividend currency election form in respect of
that Shareholder is received by the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 10, 2024,
such Shareholder will automatically receive the Final Dividend
in HKS.

All dividend payments in HK$ will be made in the usual way
on Friday, July 19, 2024. If Shareholders wish to receive the
Final Dividend in HK$ in the usual way, no additional action is
required. Shareholders should seek professional advice from
their own tax advisors regarding the possible tax implications
of the proposed dividend payment.

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 73 to 100 of this annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

Based on the information publicly available and to the best of
the Board's knowledge, information and belief, the Company
has always maintained sufficient public float as required by
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.
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Please refer to the paragraph headed “Subsequent Event(s)”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 24 of this annual report.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on June
1, 2023, Ernst & Young retired as the auditor of the Company
and KPMG was appointed as the auditor of the Company.

The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditor of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2023. KPMG will
retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and is eligible to stand for reappointment.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in
this annual report form part of this director’s report.

On behalf of the Board
SONG Qing
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 19, 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has been committed to maintaining and
improving its standard of corporate governance in order to
enhance the accountability and transparency of the Group, so
as to increase the long-term return of the Shareholders. The
Company confirms that it has complied with all material code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended December
31, 2023.

The Company will review and commit to making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders and
investors.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 (formerly known as
Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors complied with the
Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2023.
Senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provision of the Model Code and the Company confirmed
that there was no incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by such employees during the year ended December
31, 2023.

The Group regards “Strive for Public Health” as its corporate
mission, takes integrity, performance-oriented, people-
oriented and win-win collaboration as our values. We strive
to become a leading medical and health industry group in
China, and a pioneer in the reform of state-owned medical
institutions. The Group promotes a working atmosphere
with sincerity, solidarity, open-mindedness, proactivity. The
Company has formulated its culture handbook in response
to the corporate culture, and timely publicised it to all staff
(especially to the new recruits).
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The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group's operation,
and are committed to achieving the goal of increasing
Shareholders’ value.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of Board during the year ended
December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this annual report
is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Hai (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on February 27 2023)
Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President)
Ms. Yang Min (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on June 13, 2023)
Mr. Cheng Libing (Resigned on February 27 2023)
Ms. Ren Yuan (Resigned on June 13, 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Ge Lu (Appointed on September 14, 2023)
Mr. Hu Hui (Resigned on September 14, 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Mr. FuTingmei (Appointed on February 27 2023)

Mr. Zhou Peng (Appointed on September 14, 2023)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix (Resigned on June 13, 2023)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
101 to 108 of this annual report. The list of the Directors
(by category) is also disclosed in all of the corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board), of which at least one Director has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has received annual independence
confirmation from all independent non-executive Directors
and confirms that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent and the conditions pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules have been fulfilled. The Company also
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules and the condition pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rule have been fulfilled.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgement to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all the non-executive
Directors have made various contributions to the effective
development of the Company.

The Board currently has 4 independent non-executive
Directors who have years of experience in audit, investment,
finance, law and business management. The independent
non-executive Directors are able to provide independent
and appropriate opinions to the Board so as to ensure that
the Board can obtain independent views and opinions that
it requires when exercising its powers and making major
decisions. The independent non-executive Directors (as
other Directors) are entitled to seek further information
and documentation from the senior management on the
matters to be discussed at Board meetings. They can also
seek assistance from the Company’'s company secretary
and, where necessary, independent advice from external
professional advisers at the Company's expense. They shall
not vote or be counted in the quorum on any board resolution
approving any contract or arrangement in which he/her
or any of his/her close associates has a material interest.
Such mechanisms are to ensure that a strong independent
element on, and independent views and input are available
to the Board. During the year ended December 31, 2023,
all the independent non-executive Directors attended Board
meetings regularly and actively participated in the decision-
making process of the Board, and provided independent
views and opinions to the Board when it performed its
duties. In view of the above, and after review, the Board
believes that its mechanism for obtaining independent
opinions has been fully implemented and continues to be
effective.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover to
protect Directors from possible legal action against them.
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The Board is responsible for the performance of the
functions of corporate governance. For the year ended
December 31, 2023, the Board has performed the functions
set out in Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, including
reviewing the Company’'s implementation of corporate
governance and ensuring compliance with the CG Code (in
particular, the principles of good corporate governance) and
disclosure requirements in the corporate governance report.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, Mr. Song Qing
was the Chairman and Mr. Yu Hai (Since February 27 2023)
and Mr. Cheng Libing (from January 1, 2023 to February 27
2023) were successively the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Company has complied with Code Provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive should not be performed by
the same individual during the year.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contribution of the Board and Management

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is
responsible for the approval and supervision of the Group's
general development strategies, the review and approval
of the annual budget and business plans, the consent of
material investment projects related to the Group's business
development, the review on the Group's performance
and the supervision of the work of the management, and
ensures that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company and Shareholders as a whole, operates effectively
and performs the necessary duties, as well as discusses
all the significant and appropriate issues of the Group's
business in a timely manner. All the Directors are entitled
to propose the inclusion of any item in the agenda of the
Board meetings for appropriate discussion. The Chairman has
appointed the secretary of the meeting to draft the Board
meetings’ agendas. Under the assistance of the executive
Directors and the secretary of the Board, the Chairman will
ensure that all the Directors are provided with sufficient and
reliable information in a timely manner required for necessary
analysis based on their expertise.
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The Chief Executive Officer has delegated sufficient authority
for the operation and management of the Group's business
to the executive Directors and other senior management
members, who are in-charge of the daily management of
the Group in every aspect, including implementation of the
Board's resolutions unanimously, and be accountable to the
Chief Executive Officer for the operations of various aspects
of the Group's business, while the Chief Executive Officer
shall be accountable to the Board for the Group's operations
as a whole.

The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Delegation by the Board

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure,
the Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures
for Board Meetings” The “Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings” specifies that the CEO Management Meeting
is composed of executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer,
Deputy President and other senior management, all being
called together by the Chief Executive Officer. As the
approval organization for the Company’'s daily operational
management, the committee is responsible for organizing
and managing the Company’s daily operations and
accountable to the Board.
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Board Meetings

According to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, regular
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended
December 31, 2023, there were only three regular Board
meetings held to review and consider the interim results
and the annual results, respectively, as the Company is not
required to announce its quarterly results under the Listing
Rules. Fifteen other Board meetings were held during the
year.

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without presence of other Directors
during the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board held
eighteen Board meetings. Attendance records of the
Directors at the Board meetings are set out as follows:

ES5EEEE
RIFECEEATHWTARXEC.E.11E
BREEEERREVEFETHR K
HNAHBFTE—XR -AHRIREZE LHRAAAF
BEANMEZFTEES > 8220235F12831H
HFE ERIT=XEHRESFTTIEUD T
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+TEREMESEEEE
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HZE2023F12B31HILFEE - EFF
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Executive Directors WiITES
Mr. Song Qing (Chairman) RBRE EFEL) 18/18
Mr. Yu Hai (Chief Executive Officer) Fieikd HEZ)

(Appointed on February 27 2023) (322023452527 H #EZ1T) 16/16
Mr. Shan Baoijie (Vice President) BENLE (5//EF) 18/18
Ms.Yang Min (Chief Financial Officer) WLt (BEEMFE)

(Appointed on June 13, 2023) (322023465 13 H #E Z1F) 12/12
Mr. Cheng Libing BRir stk

(Resigned on February 27 2023) (58202342527 H §F1F) 0/2
Ms. Ren Yuan (Resigned on June 13, 2023) Fi2i L (FR2023F64 13H §#E) 5/6
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Ms. Ge Lu (Appointed on September 14, 2023) B &+ (FR20234F 95 14H EZ1F) 5/5
Mr. Hu Hui (Resigned on September 14, 2023) tR¥E4c4E (722023494 14 H FFE) 13/13
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HAEBEE 18/18
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong e e 18/18
Mr. Fu Tingmei BEXRLE

(Appointed on February 27 2023) (78202342527 H EZF) 16/16
Mr. Zhou Peng BEskE

(Appointed on September 14, 2023) (722023495 14 H EZ1E) 5/5
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FERESLE

(Resigned on June 13, 2023) (322023465 13 H FF1F) 5/6

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend.

For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete
and reliable statistics will be sent to all the Directors or
committee members at least three days before a meeting is
held. All Directors may propose any business to be included
in the agenda of the Board or committee meetings and
contact the company secretary to ensure full compliance
with all of the Board's procedures and applicable regulations.

In general, the senior management members shall attend
all the regular Board meetings and, if necessary, other
Board and committee meetings to advise on the Group's
business development, financial and accounting, statutory
and regulatory compliance, corporate governance and risk
management matters as well as other significant issues. The
Board may, if appropriate, authorize the Directors to seek
independent and professional advice at the expense of the
Group. Matters discussed and resolved at Board meetings
will be recorded in detail by the Board secretary who shall
prepare and file the minutes or resolutions. Generally,
draft minutes of Board meeting shall be issued to the
Directors within reasonable time for their comments after
such meeting is held, and the final version will be open for
inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or their associates have a material interest and this
provision has always been complied with.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Mr. YU Hai, Ms. YANG Min, Ms. GE Lu, Mr. FU Tingmei and
Mr. ZHOU Peng have been appointed as Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2023, and they had obtained
the legal advice as regards the requirements under the
Listing Rules that are applicable to them as Directors and
the possible consequences of making a false declaration or
giving false information to the Stock Exchange on February
28, 2023, June 14, 2023, September 14, 2023, February 28,
2023 and September 14, 2023 respectively, and all of them
have confirmed their understanding of their obligations as a
Director.

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall
hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.

Any other appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his/her
resignation.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors ) was engaged on a
service contract or letter of appointment for a fixed term of
three years and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years.

ZERERES
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company considers increasing diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in attaining its strategic
objectives and achieving sustainable and balanced
development for the Group, and also for the compliance
with the provisions in the CG Code on board diversity which
became effective on September 1, 2013, the Board has
adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board members
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, communication
styles, interpersonal skills, functional expertise, problem
solving skills, professional qualifications, knowledge and
industry and regional experience and other qualities, and
all appointments to the Board will be based on merits and
will take into account of factors based on the Group's own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The
Company shall strengthen the board diversity as and when
appropriate according to the needs of business development
and corporate governance.

At the end of 2023, the female representation is 22.2% of
the Board and the Company has achieved gender diversity
in respect of the Board. The Board targets to maintain at
least the current level of female representation, with the
ultimate goal of achieving gender parity. In considering
the Board’'s succession, the Nomination Committee would
engage independent professional search firm(s) to help
identify potential candidates for Directors, as and when
appropriate. The Company will continue to promote gender
diversity when recruiting middle to senior level employees
and reserve a group of female executives and potential
Director successors for the future. The Board will continue
to take opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified. During 2023, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size, and diversity of the Board as well as the
selection criteria for Director candidate(s) and the Board
Diversity Policy, to ensure that the Board's composition
complies with the Listing Rules and reflects an appropriate
mix of skills, experience, and diversity that are relevant
to the Company's strategy, governance, and business and
contribute to the Board's effectiveness and efficiency.

EEXERRS
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has  RIRESHIR  IREREZEE G EB®RLU Tt 8

reviewed the following measurable objectives and the
progress towards these objectives:

1. The Board has at least one Director of a
different gender.

EXgE DAL TRMERNES

2 Consider the appointment of new Director(s)
from a wide range of candidates (including
backgrounds, ski | Is, exper ience and
perspectives that would complement the
existing Board) and preferably add gender
diversity.

HEZAL (BERES RE KR RESY]
ERNESERENBRS) PEREERE
ENEEARMEMNESENZ TEREF

—(BEEEE

3 To evaluate the composition and structure of
the Board annually , as well as the diversity of
the Board.

BEIRESEEAAER UREFEZ T
E1ER

4 Establish a pipeline of potential Director
successors which can reach gender diversity.

By —E~NERMRZ TR BEESE
EAEE

BERRERILEFERNEE !

By December 31, 2023, the Board has two female
Directors, the goal has been achieved.
BE2023F12A31H EEEHEMLLMES
BIRE&EM -

The goal of FY2023 has been achieved, and the
Company will continue to look for diverse and
suitable candidates for recommendation and
appointment as Director(s).

2023FHHFEBEM URKFENEZTIE &
BABLUERZERES-

The goal of FY2023 has been achieved, and the
Board evaluation process includes an assessment
of the Board's diversity helping to objectively
consider the Board composition and effectiveness.
2023 F M EEEEMN TZBAREEEEEZ T
1ERETHE - XM E RE S SAEMMER

The goal of FY2023 has been achieved, and the
Board shall seize the opportunity to increase the
proportion of female members over time when
selecting suitable Director candidates and making
recommendations accordingly. The Company shall
also continue to promote gender diversity when
recruiting middle and senior staff, and reserve a
group of female executives and potential Director
successors for the future.

2023 FHHEEEEN  TEEGBENEFEEAN
TriltiR HiEREEN  ESGIEER SRBRHE
MZE BRI LA o AT IR BT IBEEFR E 4R
ETFRHEMZ T RARARBEE—MZESE
ANERBEEEMHEEAN-
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In respect of our staff, the Group strictly complies with the
relevant laws and regulations in formulating the internal
policies of the Group and our member medical institutions,
and adheres to the principle of fair and open employment in
order to eliminate all discrimination based on factors such as
gender, age, race, and region, and provides our employees
with a diverse and inclusive working environment with fair
employment and promotion opportunities, respect and
privacy. There are no mitigating factors or circumstances
which make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
(including senior management) more challenging or less
relevant. As of December 31, 2023, the total number of
employees (including senior management) of the Group is
20,172, among which the number of female employees is
14,453 (71.65%), and the number of male employees is 5,719
(28.35%), The Company expects that in consideration of the
business development, the gender ratio of all employees will
be maintained at the current level in the medium term.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. The
remuneration of Directors and senior management is
determined by taking into account of the relevant individual's
experience, responsibilities, workload and time commitment
to the Group and the operating results of the Group and
comparable market statistics, and is subject to review of the
Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board. The
Company's policy for determining the remuneration payable
to Directors also ensures that Directors are adequately
compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company's affairs, including their participation in Board
committees. The remuneration of executive Directors
comprises basic salaries, pensions, performance bonuses,
etc. Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company, by band for the year ended
December 31, 2023 are set out below:

4,001 to 5,000
3,001 to 4,000
2,001 to 3,000
Nil to 2,000

4,001%£5,000
3,001%4,000
2,001%3,000
£%2,000
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has
not granted any share option or Award Share to (i) Connected
Persons; (ii) service providers; (iii) related entity participants;
(iv) employee participants with a vesting period less than 12
months; and (v) participants without performance targets
and/or claw back mechanism under the Share Option Scheme
and Share Award Scheme adopted by the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company
held one annual general meeting ("AGM") and one
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"). Attendance records
of the Directors at the general meetings are set out as

HE2023F12831HIEFE > RATHER
(WEAEE AL (NRFFIEEE (INEEERES
HE(VEESHEERFHBEHLMNI12E
B RVWARKREEEZK,SRNEH 2
RER B AR BRI ERIRMD o

HE2023F 12831 HLIEFE > ZATLEITT
— R BFAE ((RRBEXG)) k—
TREFA AT (RERFHIAKE)) - FFN
BERAGZHELREIIUWT -

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Hai (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on February 27 2023)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President)
Ms.Yang Min
(Appointed on June 13, 2023)

Mr. Cheng Libing

(Resigned on February 27 2023)
Ms. Ren Yuan

(Resigned on June 13, 2023)
Non-executive Directors
Ms. Ge Lu

(Appointed on September 14, 2023)
Mr. Hu Hui

(Resigned on September 14, 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
Mr. Fu Tingmei

(Appointed on February 27 2023)
Mr. Zhou Peng

(Appointed on September 14, 2023)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

(Resigned on June 13, 2023)
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The 2024 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on June 5, 2024. The notice of the annual general
meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least 21 clear
days before the annual general meeting.

KAT2024F R BB ERE R 2024F6H
SHET REBFAZESHENKREEE
REFRDV2IHETETRE

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Continuous Professional Development for
Directors

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the business and operations
of the Group and is fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations as being a Director as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the
statutory and regulatory development and changes in the
business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a director of a listed company or further enhanced their
professional development by way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

A summary of the training received by the Directors for the
year ended December 31, 2023 according to the records
provided by the Directors is as follows:

EEXERRS
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Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman) RBERE (EFER) 4

Mr. Yu Hai (Chief Executive Officer) FiBhE GEH) v
(Appointed on February 27 2023) (78202342527 H EZ1F)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President) BENLE (5//EH) v

Ms.Yang Min (Appointed on June 13, 2023) 188 & X (1X20234F6/5 13H EZ1T) v

Mr. Cheng Libing DAVESS s v
(Resigned on February 27 2023) (32202342527 H F#(T)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Resigned on June 13, 2023) {E&E % * (322023465 13H gF 1F) v

Non-executive Director JEHMITES

Ms. Ge Lu BRYZ LT v
(Appointed on September 14, 2023) (72202395 14H EZ1F)

Mr. Hu Hui ()b e v
(Resigned on September 14, 2023) (522023495 14 H FE1E)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HHE B4 v

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BRI % v

Mr. Fu Tingmei EiEELE 4
(Appointed on February 27 2023) (78202342527 A EZ(F)

Mr. Zhou Peng BMskE v
(Appointed on September 14, 2023) (322023495 14 H HEZAE)

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix EREEE v
(Resigned on June 13, 2023) (722023465 13H FE1E)
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The Board has established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. Song Qing (chairman); and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, identifying appropriate and qualified individuals
to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the composition
of the Board. The Nomination Committee would consider
the benefits of all aspects of diversity set out in the
Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
communication styles, interpersonal skills, functional
expertise, problem solving skills, professional qualifications,
knowledge and industry and regional experience and other
qualities in reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board and all appointments to the Board will be based on
merits and will take into account of factors based on the
Group's own business model and specific needs from time to
time.

EEEN2013F1MB4BMIRREES
REFE—RBPITES (RBLRE (FR)) K
MBBILIFANITESE (B | tAE B ERE
BIYESE) o

REZEENACKRBAESRNEBEDE-
HIZEROERIEETERE RERE
AR E (BERAE M# LG  MEaE
BEERNATEIEFTENEREEY
RREFEEERLESFHAGEAN GG
BIFRITESNEINE BEREFEEE
NEREFREFEISNE LHEEER

Fe M8 %y °

REEFEZTEER RREETHRTK
SMEEFEEMME UESEHEMME
WEBRHIERZR BRRLEGER A
HEEFEEAMER  EEEEEEE T
{EERFI8BIFRE Z oL HLRNED > 815
BARRKMEN & -BE XIERHEEH
SVEBHIC ARRID - BREER - BAE
BRIT BEER B RITEURMEL
BUREMEE BEESFEZMBEZERN
HERAESERE Uit RAEEB S EBER
ARARFZABEERFAREREL -
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on
the effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required
changes with the Board and make recommendation of
revision to the Board Diversity Policy for consideration and
approval. The Nomination Committee has been provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duty. When
necessary, the Nomination Committee will seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform
its responsibilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Nomination
Committee held five meetings to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the committees and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
considering the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors. The particulars of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee are set forth as follows:

EEERRS

RLZEGRENRIEFT TS TEER
(EREERTZBERINAN) - REEE
SN EAPMENESRMEIEFTEZ T
THRAEFTRHERZZE  UHEE R
o RHEZEERERHENERUBITH
BE-NERRE RLZEGRSKBELE
FERUBETERYE ERAEARRAE-

BE2023F12831HLEFE IRLEESH
TTAREZLUBHEFEREEEZR
B RE RN EURBIIFAITESTZ
BUM EEREEFNRRBFATER
BEZERITRZEFTEEZRESZ RBZE
SEHFEFBHIAT

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

FELE
Name of the members of the Nomination Committee RHRELTEEMBESY BREXE
chairman: EE:
Mr. Song Qing RBIRE 5/5
Members: [DA=
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony tHEMB L 11
(Appointed on June 13, 2023) (22023465 13H EZ1F)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB 5/5
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix ERBILE 3/4
(Resigned on June 13, 2023) (22023465 13H gF1T)

EHBRIERARAS

———

RS S —
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee
on November 4, 2013 which currently consists of one non-
executive Director, Ms. Ge Lu; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
(chairman) and Mr. Fu Tingmei.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing and formulating policies in respect
of remuneration structure for all Directors and senior
management (including the remuneration packages (inclusive
of pension rights and compensation (if applicable)) of
individual executive Directors and senior management) and
making recommendations to the Board for its consideration,
reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual
executive Directors, approving the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts, and reviewing and approving
matters in relation to Share Option Scheme or Share Award
Scheme.

BEEEN2013F1MB4BRIFTNEES
ROE—RFATES (BRYLL) ; ki#
BIYFFRTES PEMBRE (TF) REE
EhE e

FNEZEENACKRBAESNEBEEE-
HXrZEAEERI R EERMEBES
EREREBEAEHFMEBHEE THES
TIRUEHEBEZHAZEETROEERNR
TEERSHREEEAENFMNEE (R
RELHNBESES (NAH)) @ BT &7
HENNITEENRE - HERTEERD
BRIBER UK Rt E R R
BRI REN ST EINE R
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, the & ZE2023F12B31HIEEE HNEETE
Remuneration Committee held five meeting to review the 1T7 AR Z&H ' U2 EESAEREE
remuneration policy for all Directors and senior management, A SMFHMESE G RTEETNRIBERE
assess the performance of executive Directors, and review H#HHEETEZEENRBER -FMEETHE
and approve service contracts of newly appointed Directors. =FIBEEHZIWT :

The particulars of the attendance of the Remuneration

Committee are set forth as follows:

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

HEBE S

Name of the members of the Remuneration Committee ¥ 7 ARERXEH

chairman: TE

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HHENBLE 5/5

Members: RE :

Ms. Ge Lu BRZT N/A R A
(Appointed on September 14, 2023) (522023495 14 H EZ1F)

Mr. Fu Tingmei BiEERLE 4/4
(Appointed on February 27 2023) (72202322527 H EZAT)

Mr. Hu Hui Ehies 1/1
(Resigned on February 27 2023) (122023#2527 H §FE)

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB 2/2
(Appointed on June 13, 2023 and (3220234565 13H EZ (T %
resigned a September 14, 2023) FR20234E9/5 14 H FF(E)

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TREEE 2/3
(Resigned on June 13, 2023) (722023465 13H FE1F)

Audit Committee BREZEY

On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the ZEZZR2013F1H4HHIBEZEZE S
Audit Committee currently consists of three independent IREIE=ZBEIUIEHITES (B): BEYLEE
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (&) ~EEELEREELL) o
(chairman), Mr. Fu Tingmei and Mr. Zhou Peng.
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The Board considered that the members of the Audit
Committee possess sufficient professional knowledge and
experience of accounting and financial management for the
performance of their responsibilities.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in its terms of reference. In view of the amendments to
the CG Code effective for the accounting period beginning
on January 1, 2016, the Group adopted a revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee on January 18, 2016 in
order to comply with certain changes relating to the risk
management and internal control section of the CG Code.
Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time
to time, assisting the Board in providing an independent
review on the effectiveness of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the
Group's financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

EFgRn BEREEENBEEBRDES
R BEEEENRMRER  BEUBTRS
BUBES ©

BEREZEENHB RBAES N HR SR -
20161 A1 BB EEHIIB AN ®
FEATHESIMS  *EBEEN201651
BIsHRMEESIERZETREHE > XU
BREREFEATAEHAEREEKRANEE
E-—HNETEH HIEZSTREMFLHE
thES SN ZEE RN EBESE R
EBEETHAE) 2 EAMEM BN A RS
R EERNEEE MR ES R E
FETRHEENZSFEMMBNESEE
EHEHNBENTIZBRBR AL
BREHE RREE RN EERIE A
MHHEFEHIR BEEELEF &
RAEENMBREGFRRRERRET
EFgRENHMBENEE-
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, the & E2023F12B31HIEEE  BREETHE
Audit Committee held five meetings to discharge its T AR EGZURBTHRBRETIZBHAEER
responsibilities and review the Group's annual and interim EEKPMAEXE FERESS RERS
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and HREF -BEEAMAERREGEIER AL
compliance procedures, reports from the management on BRiEHIE - AEE NP ITRAERERF 2B
the Group's risk management and internal control systems, M ZMEUKBEINEZSET EREES
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control function HEFBEHIAOT :

and procedures and also the re-appointment of the external

auditor. The particulars of the attendance of the Audit

Committee are set forth as follows:

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

HEBE S
Name of the members of the Audit Committee g ARERXEH
chairman: TE
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB 5/5
Members: RE :
Mr. Fu Tingmei BEELE 4/4
(Appointed on February 27 2023) (7220234 2/527 H EZ1T)
Mr. Zhou Peng BlsiE N/A RiE A
(Appointed as a member on September 14, 2023) (3R202345FE9F 14 H EZ (T4
Z5)
Mr. Hu Hui ) e 5/5
(Resigned as a member on September 14, 2023) (BR20235FE9F 14H T Z S
B%)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix ERBREE il
(Resigned on February 27 2023) (7220234 2/527 H §E1F)
Appointment and Remuneration of ShES I BB RV R EE A B <&

External Auditor

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the total fee E{ZE2023F12B31HIEEE  MBZRFE
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Group in respect Sz i,/ F& i 7 £ [E HP BE 4% B4 6T A0 &5 B 4B 28
of audit services is RMB4.5 million. A AR 408 T o
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The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor. Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to
the approval by the Board and the general meetings of the
Company by the Shareholders.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor's report from pages 110 to 117 of this annual report.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
2023 which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as well as the results and cash
flow during that year.

December 31,

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could
prepare financial statements in accordance with statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities within the Group.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

BEZZEaSMIINEZHBEMEE B
RERODEFSFHERESR  2FEE
BEKRERBEEFERRENARIR
RAGEHESAEE-

AEBBIZBMEBARESAER LGS
PHERRNPBRSENRAE N EERSE
MOEN7ER B I LB R E A o

EFHMBRRNER

EERABRSUFERAEBRATFRBRASE
EMBERRRAFEFXRERBEERENTE
H & E2023F 12831 HILFE M FHIMKRAY
HfEe

EERD RV B®RKRE  AEBRERST
BIEERE IJ‘EﬁH—fﬁx MEYIEE E 5T

R WRBERG S EIFE S EEIENH
B A (&5 51 o

EXAERFREAREFE R UERE
E R RBOEERERAEEBN G 5 BURR
RUBBER-RETEERELEEANE
B WRMENGES R IERERAER
AESECCESRER U= - P

EXUEETENTEREECERESN
BRERRBENEBRSEHABERNERNE
RABRBARZE -
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Risk Management and Internal control

The Board would review the Group's risk management
and internal control systems at least once a year. The
Board confirms that it is responsible for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and is responsible
for reviewing the effectiveness of these systems. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group's business objectives
and the Board can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. During the
year ended December 31, 2023, the Board, as supported
by the Audit Committee as well as the management
report and the internal audit findings, has performed an
annual review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems in
different aspects of the Group such as financial, operation,
compliance and risk management, and has also assessed
the accounting and financial reporting functions and the
environmental, social & corporate governance function of
the Group, estimated the resources and budgets for training
programmes and appraised the staff members' qualifications
and experience. In respect of continuing connected
transactions, the Group has implemented a series of general
management policies controlled by multiple departments
to improve corporate governance structure and monitor
the implementation of internal control policies, including
financial control system, anti-fraud and legal monitoring
system, operations and compliance management system,
risk management and assessment policies and internal audit
rules.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy
and system for employees and those who deal with the
issuer (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the audit committee (or any
designated committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive directors) about possible improprieties in
any matter related to the issuer. The Company has also
established relevant policy that promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations.

The Board considers that the abovementioned systems
(including the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group) are effective and adequate.

EEXERRS
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The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
comprehensive audits of each department, subsidiary and
member of the Group to facilitate the management’s control
on the assets of the Group. In addition, it offers consulting
services in respect of internal control to each department of
the Group to assist them in optimizing and enhancing the risk
management and internal control systems and the operating
processes. As authorized by the management, the internal
audit department conducts an investigation on internal
corruption. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the
internal audit department did not discover any circumstances
involving fraud, non-compliance or violation against laws,
regulations and rules or any material incidents due to lack of
internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management and
internal control systems cover the existing businesses of
the Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with the
business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying with
the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the relevant
laws and regulation and safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected
significant event that may impact the price of the Shares
or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered as inside information and needs to
be disclosed as soon as practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09
and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors
and the company secretary are also responsible for approving
certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the
Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to
time.
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Mr. So Yiu Fung has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from July 20, 2018.

The primary contact person of the Company with Mr. So is
Ms. Yang Min, an executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer.

Mr. So currently serves as the principal company secretarial
director of CR Corporate Affairs Limited. He is currently also
the company secretary of certain listed companies of China
Resources Group. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. So has over
17 years of experience in corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, company secretary and accounting.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, Mr. So has
complied with the requirement of taking no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

Constitutional Documents

On June 1,
annual general meeting of the Company to adopt the
fourth amended and restated Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company in order to fully implement
the key powers and duties of the Board and conform to the
latest requirements of the Listing Rules and the Cayman
Islands Companies Act. The fourth amended and restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
have been uploaded to the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

2023, a special resolution was passed at the

EEXERRS
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To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the re-election of individual
retiring Directors. Except where the Chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show
of hands, all resolutions tabled at the general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. Poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forums for communication
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information
on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands for Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to propose a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the paragraph below.

Pursuant to Article 57 of the Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
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If within two (2) month of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for establishing investors' confidence
and attracting new investors. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables investors to make the
best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. Updated
and key information of the Company is also available on the
Company’s website at www.crmedical.hk. The Company
also replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely, if any.
The general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for communications between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Chairman, as well as the chairmen of
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committee and where appropriate, the chairman
of the independent Board Committee, will be available to
answer questions at the general meetings.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

EEXERRS
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The Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the arrangements on communication with
the Shareholders in 2023 and issued the “Shareholder
Communication Policy of China Resources Medical Holdings
Limited’ and confirmed that it has included channels for the
Shareholders to communicate their views on various matters
affecting the Company and that the Company has taken
appropriate and sufficient steps to solicit and understand the
views of the Shareholders and stakeholders, and the Board is
satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of such
policy. The summary of the shareholders communication
policy is set out in the following paragraphs.

The above-mentioned policy aims to maintain continuous,
timely and effective communication with Shareholders
(including potential investors and analysts where appropriate)
to ensure that these stakeholders can obtain timely,
consistent and comprehensive information about the
Company when appropriate. The applicable channels include
(1) disclosure through the Company's financial report (i.e.,
annual report and interim report); (2) announcements,
circulars and other regulatory disclosure information
submitted to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the
continuous disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules,
which will also be immediately published on the website of
the Stock Exchange; (3) the general meeting of the Company;
and (4) other communication activities with investment
markets, including roadshows, industry forums, etc.

The Company also believes that general meeting is an
important opportunity for constructive communication
between the Board. The Company can issue a written
request to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company in accordance with the content and requisite
conditions stipulated under Article 57 of the Articles of
Association so as to request the Board to convene a general
meeting. The Chairman and the chairmen of the committees
under the Board, and in their absence, other members of the
relevant committees or their designated representatives shall
attend the meeting and communicate with the Shareholders.
The Company encourages its Shareholders to actively
participate in general meetings.
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The Company also organizes various activities from time to
time, including press conferences and one-on-one meetings
for investors, roadshows, media interviews, investor
promotion activities and industry forums, etc., to facilitate
communication with Shareholders and investors. The
Directors and employees of the Company must abide by the
disclosure responsibilities and requirements set out in the
Company'’s inside information policy when they have contact
or dialogue with investors, the media or other external
stakeholders.

If any Shareholder of the Company have any questions
about his/her shareholding under his/her name, he/she
should submit to the Company's share registrar (the contact
information of which is set out as below). Shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders can raise comments or
inquiries or to request the company’s public information
at any time via e-mail at ir@crmedical.hk or by post to
the registered address of the Company (in the case of a
Shareholder, through the share registrar of the Company).

The Company understands the importance of protecting
the privacy of Shareholders. Unless otherwise stipulated
by laws, the Company shall not disclose information of any
Shareholder without consent of any such Shareholder.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: 14/F, Kunlun Center Office Building
No. 9, Fuyi Street

Fengtai District

Beijing, the People’s Republic of China

Email: ir@crmedical.hk
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TEEERRS
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited EBFTRFESELBRAE
Address: Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor ik EABFERRKER
Hopewell Centre 18358 & Ay
183 Queen’s Road East 17181712-17165% 84
Wanchai
HKSAR
Tel: (852) 2862 8688 BEE - (852) 2862 8688
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Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing, aged 59, joined the Group in August 2018
as an executive Director and the vice Chairman, and was
re-designated as the Chairman in April 2021 and then
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee
in December 2021. Mr. Song holds a bachelor's degree
in Chinese medicine from Anhui University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine in Hefei, the PRC, and obtained his chief
pharmacist title from the general logistics department of
the People’s Liberation Army in April 1999. Mr. Song has
extensive experiences in corporate management, and has
over 30 years of experience and sophisticated background
in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Song is currently
the chairman of CR Healthcare, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and also takes the role as the
Company's Chairman in order to lead the healthcare segment
of China Resources. The Company believes that with Mr.
Song’s extensive experience in corporate management and
mergers and acquisitions, and his deep understanding of
the healthcare industry, he will lead the Group to promote
business development, actively participate in the reform
of state-owned enterprises hospitals, accelerate the scale
expansion plan of the Company, further leverage advantages
of China Resources Group and further synergize the
collaboration between the Company and CR Healthcare. Mr.
Song was the director of China Resources Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 3320) from May 2016 to August 2018,
and also its president from June 2017 to August 2018. Mr.
Song was the chairman of China Resources Sanjiu Medical
& Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (which is listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange; stock code: 000999) and he is currently
the chairman of DIRUI Medical Technology Co., Ltd. (which
is listed on ChiNext of Shenzhen Stock Exchange; stock
code: 300396). He also served as an inspection pharmacist
of quality inspection department, a pharmacist in charge
and the director of production department, the director of
the enterprise management department and an assistant to
president of Shenzhen South Pharmaceutical Factory. Mr.
Song served as an assistant general manager, the director of
technology center, the director of medical & pharmaceutical
department of Sanjiu Enterprise.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EShEREERAR

Mr. Yu Hai, aged 56, joined the Group in February 2023 as
an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer. He
is currently the vice chairman and general manager of CR
Healthcare, and served as the senior vice general manager
of CR Healthcare from January 2020 to February 2023 and
as the chairman of Liaoning Healthcare Industry Group Co.,
Ltd. from July 2018 to January 2020. Mr. Yu worked in Benxi
Municipal Government, Liaoning Province from July 2008
to July 2018, and served as the deputy mayor of Benxi City
etc. Prior to that, Mr. Yu held various positions at government
departments including the deputy director of the Social
Development Division of the Department of Science &
Technology of Liaoning Province, the deputy director of the
High-tech Development and Industrialization Division of the
Department of Science & Technology of Liaoning Province,
the deputy director of the Bureau of Science and Technology
of Nagchu District, the Tibet Autonomous Region, and the
principal officer of the Industrial and Social Development
Division, the Scientific and Technological Commission of
Liaoning Province etc. Mr. Yu holds a doctor of science
degree in pharmaceutical affairs management from the
School of Pharmacy, Shenyang Pharmaceutical University.

Mr. Shan Baojie, aged 52, joined the Group in August 2021
as a non-executive Director and was re-designated as an
executive Director in December 2021, and he is also the
vice president of the Company. Mr. Shan obtained a master
degree in Accounting from Renmin University in Beijing in
June 2002 and a bachelor degree in Chemistry from Wuhan
University in Wuhan in July 1992. Mr. Shan is also currently
the vice general manager of CR Healthcare, the Company's
controlling shareholder, and is also taking the office as a
director of a number of its subsidiaries. Prior to joining CR
Healthcare, Mr. Shan was with the Group from 2011 to
2016 as the executive general manager and then the vice
general manager, and he was also an executive Director of
the Company from February 2016 to November 2016. He
had served in a variety of roles at the State Food and Drug
Administration from 1998 to 2011, and also completed a
training program at the World Health Organization in 2007,
where he gained experience in the U.S. pharmaceutical
supervision and management system. From July 1992 to July
1998, Mr. Shan worked in the general manager's office of the
Northeast Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.
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Ms. Yang Min, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director and the Chief Financial Officer in June 2023. She
is currently the chief financial officer of CR Healthcare.
Previously, Ms. Yang served as the general manager of
the finance department of China Resources Gas Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 1193) from December 2019 to May 2023, and she has
successively served in various positions of the aforesaid
company from November 2009 to December 2019 including
senior deputy general manager of the finance department,
deputy general manager of the audit department (acting
head of department), deputy general manager of the finance
department, assistant general manager of the finance
department, senior manager of the finance department,
assistant to the general manager and financial manager
of its subsidiaries, and the expatriate responsible person
of finance. Prior to that, Ms. Yang served successively
as manager, senior auditor and auditor of Ernst & Young
Huaming LLP Shenzhen Branch from September 2002
to November 2009.Ms. Yang holds a bachelor’s degree in
management majoring in accounting from the School of
Economics and Management of Northwestern University and
is a Certified Public Accountant of the PRC.
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EEREREERASR

Non-executive Director

Ms. Ge Lu, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee in
September 2023. She was appointed as a non-executive
director of China Resources Gas Group Limited (stock
code: 1193) in September 2023, an external director of
China Resources Digital Holdings Co., Limited in November
2021 and an external director of CR Healthcare in August
2021. She is also a designated external director of the
business unit(s) of China Resources Group. Ms. Ge served
as positions including the vice general manager, chief
information officer of China Resources Pharmaceutical
Commercial Group Limited GEHBHEmEERFRAE)
and China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (Z£8
B2 EEE A PR/AE)) and the general manager assistant of
Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (JtREZEK D BRAE)
(now known as China Resources Pharmaceutical Commercial
Group Limited GEHEBEBEEBHBRAB)) from January
2010 to August 2021. Ms. Ge has over 30 years of working
experience in the pharmaceutical industry and specializes
in supply chain management, logistics management and
information systems management and planning in the
pharmaceutical distribution field. Ms. Ge holds a master’s
degree of business administration from Tsinghua University
(BZEKXZ) and a bachelor's degree of computer science
from Beijing Jiaotong University (At R35@AZ), and holds
the title of Senior Engineer.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, aged 69, joined the Group in
August 2018 as an independent non-executive Director
and the Chairman, and then resigned as the Chairman
in April 2021. Mr. Wu was appointed as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee in November 2022, and a
member of the Nomination Committee in June 2023. Mr.
Wu is a leader in the healthcare industry and has extensive
management experience in medical system. Mr. Wu joined
the board of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority in 1999
and was formerly its chairman from 2004 to 2013. He has
so far been the longest-serving chairman of the Hospital
Authority. He has led the team of the Hospital Authority
to manage all public hospitals and public clinics in Hong
Kong and implemented the public health policy of the Hong
Kong Government. He has also actively promoted a number
of public and private medical co-operation projects during
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his tenure. Mr. Wu is currently the principal advisor to the
State Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine of
the PRC, a member of the Chinese Medicine Reform and
Development Advisory Committee. He was a member of
the State Council’s Medical Reform Leadership Advisory
Committee and an advisor to the Public Policy Advisory
Committee of the National Health and Family Planning
Commission. Other important public positions that Mr.
Wu has served include a member of the 12th and 13th
Standing Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference National Committee, and a member
of the Chief Executive's Council of Advisers on Innovation
and Strategic Development and the Task Force on Land
Supply of Hong Kong, and has been awarded JP and GBS
by the government of Hong Kong. Mr. Wu also served as
the chairman of the Chamber Council of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce from 2010 to 2012, and is
currently a member of its consultation committee. Mr. Wu
was a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY"”) from 1985 to 2015,
and served as chairman of the EY's Far East Region from
2000 to 2005. He is currently the chief advisor to MUFG
Bank, Ltd., the chairman of The China Oxford Scholarship
Fund, an honorary professor of the Faculty of Medicine of
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Peking Union
Medical College Hospital, and an honorary fellow of the
Hong Kong College of Community Medicine. Mr. Wu also
has directorships in certain listed companies of the main
board of the Stock Exchange: he is an independent non-
executive director of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(stock code: 1105), Power Assets Holdings Limited (stock
code: 6), China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 966), Cstone Pharmaceuticals (stock code:
2616), Ocumension Therapeutics (stock code: 1477) and Hui
Xian Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 87001), and
is also the chairman and non-executive director of CLARITY
MEDICAL GROUP HOLDING LIMITED (stock code: 1406),
and the chairman and independent non-executive director
of Venus Mecttech (Hangzhou) Inc. (stock code: 2500). He
was an executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited (stock code: 444) and an independent non-executive
director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock code:
270). He was also an independent non-executive director of
Agricultural Bank of China Limited (stock code: 1288) from
2009 to 2015. He was also a director of the Fidelity Funds
from 2011 to 2014. Mr. Wu is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the
honorary chairman of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants (Australia) Hong Kong Branch.
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EEREREERASR

Notwithstanding Mr. Wu's engagement as an independent
non-executive director of eight listed companies (including
the Company) and an non-executive director of one listed
company, Mr. Wu confirmed that he would devote sufficient
time to act as an independent non-executive Director based
on the following:

° Mr. Wu is neither a full-time member of the
abovementioned companies nor involved in the day-
to-day operations or management of such companies.
As such, he has no executive and management
responsibility therein;

o he is not a chief executive officer or full-time executive
director of any listed company;

° with his background and experience, Mr. Wu is
fully aware of the responsibilities and expected
time involvement for an independent non-executive
director. He has sufficient understanding of his role
as independent director in different listed companies
and of estimating the time required for attending to
the affairs of each listed company. He has not found
difficulties in devoting to and managing his time with
numerous companies and he is confident that with his
experience in being responsible for several roles, he will
be able to discharge his duties to the Company; and

° Mr. Wu's role in the Group is non-executive in nature
and he will not be involved in the daily management
of the Group's business, thus his engagement as an
independent non-executive Director will not require his
full-time participation.

Based on the foregoing, the Directors are of the view that
the various positions currently held by Mr. Wu will not result
in Mr. Wu not having sufficient time to act as an independent
non-executive Director or not properly discharging his
fiduciary duties as a Director.
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Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 76, joined the Group in
September 2013 as an independent non-executive Director
and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and has been
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on
March 23, 2018. He was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on June 13, 2023 and resigned
from such position on September 14, 2023. He was the
chief executive officer of Pok Oi Hospital, a well-known non-
profit hospital in Hong Kong. As the chief executive officer,
Mr. Kwong provided corporate governance and management
support to the board of directors for development,
management and supervision of the units under Pok Oi
Hospital for the past 10 years. He joined Pok Oi Hospital as
an internal audit manager in 2003. Mr. Kwong is a director
of Yuen Long District Healthy City Association Company
Limited, a non-profit organization supporting the government
to promote public healthcare messages to people in the
district. Before joining Pok Oi Hospital, Mr. Kwong served
as the principal auditor of the Audit Commission of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Kwong served in the Audit Commission of the
Government of Hong Kong since 1980. Mr. Kwong has been
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1982.

Mr. Fu Tingmei, aged 57 joined the Group in February 2023
as an independent non-executive Director and also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
He currently serves as an independent nonexecutive director
of the following companies which are listed on the Stock
Exchange: China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(stock code: 3320), Guotai Junan International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1788), COFCO Joycome Foods Limited
(stock code: 1610) and China Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 2016; also listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601916)). Mr. Fu was an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0392)
from July 2008 to June 2017, an independent non-executive
director of CPMC Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0906) from June 2008 to July
2019 and an independent non-executive director of Postal
Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1658) from May 2016 to March
2023. Mr. Fu has over 30 years of experience in investment,
finance, law and business management. Mr. Fu holds a
master's degree in law and a Ph.D. degree in law from
London University, the United Kingdom.
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EEREREERASR

Mr. Zhou Peng, aged 47 was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee in September 2023. He is the founder of Deep
Blue Ridge Capital ("DBR Capital”). DBR Capital is a multi-
strategy investment firm based in Hong Kong. Mr. Zhou has
20 years of experience in global mergers and acquisitions
and capital markets. Before founding DBR Capital, Mr. Zhou
worked in Deutsche Bank (Hong Kong) and Credit Suisse
(New York), and cooperated with the world’s top institutional
and corporate clients to complete a number of cross-industry
and cross-product transactions; and Mr. Zhou's career
began in Bank of China. Mr. Zhou holds a master’s degree
in business administration from Columbia University in New
York.

Mr. Wu Xinchun, aged 53, was appointed as the vice
president of the Company in December 2018. He is also the
deputy general manager of CR Healthcare. From September
2016 to November 2018, Mr. Wu served as the chairman
of China Resources Wugang (Hubei) Hospital Management
Co.,Ltd. and Wugang CR Gas*. From September 2001
to November 2018, he was the director of technology
management department, technology quality department,
innovation department, intellectual property department and
general manager of information and innovation department
of Wugang Group*, executive director and general manager
of Wugang Modern City Services Group*, executive director
and general manager of Wuhan Yangtze River Water* and
assistant to general manager of the headquarters of China
Baowu Iron and Steel Group and Wugang Group* , etc. And
He also served as deputy secretary general of China Iron
and Steel Industry Association and independent director of
Kingray New Materials Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (a
company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600390). Mr. Wu holds a doctor degree in engineering from
Wuhan University of Technology and was granted the title
of senior engineer at a professor level from Titles Evaluation
Committee of Hubei Province in December 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Ju, aged 51, is currently the vice president of the
Company. He is also the deputy general manager of CR
Healthcare, the chairman of China Resources Healthcare
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd., Runneng Medical Management Co., Ltd
and Guangzhou Runchuan Healthcare Management Co., Ltd.
Mr. Liu previously served as the general manager of the
Finance Department of CR Healthcare, the vice president of
the Sanjiu Brain Hospital, etc. He was the vice president of
the professional committee of primary medical education of
the China Medicine Education Association, the researcher
of the Guangdong Institute of Public Health and Economics,
the vice president of Guangdong Medical Education
Association, Guangdong Medicine Price Expert and certain
other national/ provincial academic positions, and director
of China Resources Wandong Medical Equipment Co., Ltd.
(currently known as Beijing Wandong Medical Technology
Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
Stock code 600055.SH). Mr. Liu holds a master degree in
Health Administration from Flinders University in Australia,
and is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a Chinese Senior Accountant.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RS

kpmg

To the shareholders of
China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 118 to 277 which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I L BETER S

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RAETETEESRBRFIMNEZE AL > VA
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HAHGEHBEREANBARALAEENS
consolidated financial statements of the current period. B -ELEBIBEERAERGEEMBRREEET
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit Bt LA ERNE S FETREMN KM
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and T HELEIERHEFBNER-

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of goodwill

8 E

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4.

55 24T & B IR M 52 17X R W1 522489 & 51 B ©

The Key Audit Matter
R Bt HIH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZEEAEBEFPENMENN

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
goodwill of RMB3,599 million in relation to business
acquisitions, which represented 26% of the Group's
consolidated total assets.

2023F12831H EEEMEFWERESHE
ARM3,5998 8 HENR EEEGRSEERE
BJ26% ©

Goodwill was allocated to respective cash-
generating unit (CGU) groups. Impairment test is
performed by management on respective CGU
groups to which goodwill has been allocated at
least annually by comparing the carrying value with
the recoverable amount of the CGU groups, which
is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal.
BEROEEENNREELENAEA BEEES
FRIONESEHENENIREELEMAARET
—RREAFR A EARREEELEEUARNNRE
EgHEHEPKCTEE BIEAEBEEARABEREE
MANREE) (FLLE -

The value in use of the CGU groups were
determined by management using discounted
cash flow forecasts. The key assumptions of the
discounted cash flow model included revenue
growth rates, gross profit margins and discount
rates.

ReELEAANNEREEN HEEEEARALIR
RenEBlBEE MRRERERENTERR
BIEWGEERER BN KRR

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment of
goodwill included the following:

R EEREFMRITHNESEFaE

° understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of management’s key internal
control in respect of the goodwill impairment
assessment;

s THKTEEEEMBERENGIFEHNEER
BB IERIRR ST REIRIE N 5

o assessing management’'s identification of
CGU groups and the allocation of assets and
liabilities to CGU groups with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e ZERTEAENNFRE THEEEHIRE
ELEMANRSEEREBGNREREELSE
fIABRIBVIE T 5

o on a sample basis, comparing the key
assumptions used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts under value in use, including revenue
growth rates and gross profit margins, with
historical performance and other available
external information;

s HWEEBEABETHMRRERETFANEIER
® (BERRIEREXRENX) BELRIRKEM
FISSMNER B RHETTLEE 5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

The Key Audit Matter
RAREtHIA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZERAESEFHRINAREN

If the value in use of CGU groups are lower than the
carrying amount, management will also assess the
fair value less costs of disposal of the CGU groups.
The key assumptions of the fair value less costs of
disposal model include price per square metre of
buildings.
WREESBMUMANNERAEERNERESEE B
BETRIGREELEEMANNARBERRE
A AREBEBREENARLINTIERZEES
TR AREFHER-

We identified impairment assessment of goodwill
as a key audit matter because the key assumptions
in determining the recoverable amount of the
CGUs involves a significant degree of management
judgement and may be subject to management
bias.

R EmERETLRAEAARSEHSZTE RER
ErEREELBUTKEEENTERRIRKE
BEEHE IEFEEEEREERENER -

on a sample basis, with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists, evaluating: (i) the
methodology adopted for recoverable amounts
measured under both value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal approach with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards; and (ii) the discount rates used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts under value
in use, and the key assumptions of fair value
less costs of disposal model, including the price
per square metre of buildings, by performing
independent expectation based on external
available information;
EMEABEEERBE T Mg EO)2EE
AT RREMRBEEREBERRANEBERE
BN AE St E IR B REPA RN 750% 5 Kelii)fsE
HEETHRBESRETBAMANAERE MK
NABEREENAERIENTERS (BES
THRKBFHNER) > HEARBINETEER
YEH B 5T 5

evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management for each of the key assumptions,
including the revenue growth rates, gross profit
margins and discount rates adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecasts under value in
use and considering the possibility of error or
management bias;

TMEEEENSRIERK (BEFEABE T
RRERERAMEMN B DIEREE - EFNEXR
BRIRE) EITTHNHREDT > L EEBHIBHERK
EIRERBIBERAAIAEN ;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I L BETER S

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
RSt EE ZEHEEETPEMAREHEN

performing a retrospective review of last year's
impairment assessment and comparing the
cash flow forecasts under value in use with the
current year's results to assess the reliability
of management's forecasting process, making
enquiries of management as to the reasons for
any significant variances identified and whether
these have been considered in the current
forecasts; and
HE—FENRETGETEMNER > LR
BETHNREREVAELAXFEENEZETL
B UEBEEERAEFNTFE S BLATEEIR
NERNERREAEEEEEANEAZRSES
BERRENEEEBFELEN ; &

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessment with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

BERTEAEANRE  TRESHMBREA
BRI ESTLAVIREE R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. \We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AREEmBRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB")) #ZE2023F12831HLLEE (UARHESIR)

REVENUE & B 10,107,500 7,901,287
Cost of sales HE AR (8,201,663) (6,595,452)
Gross profit EF] 1,905,837 1,305,835
Other income Hug A 6 189,887 228,887
Other gains and losses, net HA Wz & k518 /3 28 7 (107,097) (163,868)
Selling and distribution expenses  $HE KD IHE A (2,728) (19,532)
Administrative expenses THER (970,769) (808,661)
Finance costs MHBER 9 (131,835) (71,148)
Impairment losses on financial THERGHNEERE

and contract assets, net E518 75 %8 (129,347) (27.806)
Impairment loss on right-of-use FREEERERE

assets 16 (1,863) -
Impairment loss on property, ME~ME KRB

plant and equipment BIEEE 15 (208,926) (510)
Impairment loss of goodwill 2R E R 8 17 (141,018) (108,324)
Share of profits and losses of: LR ER .

A joint venture —ME&aERE - (4,217)

Associates i — BN 90,780 92,285
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AT F 8 492,921 422,941
Income tax FTi5i 12 (165,031) (94,660)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR R 327,890 328,281
Attributable to: FEAL

Owners of the Company PiN/NETEZZ =N 257,680 265,855

Non-controlling interests JEIER S 70,210 62,426

327,890 328,281

EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAEEERER

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BFEAELSR

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BH

PARENT 14

Basic (RMB yuan) B (AR D) 0.20 0.21

Diluted (RMB yuan) #8 (AR 0.20 0.21

$£128F277EM M A ILE BRI —
R o REEENRATRGERERENE
IFE NN EAEE

The notes on pages 128 to 277 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year are set out in note
13.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEEBmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) E.£2023%F12831HLEEE (UAREFIR)

2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
(B %)
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B 5 AREFTT AREF T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 327,890 328,281
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hth 2 E A
INCOME
Other comprehensive income REBHBEEFEER
that will not be reclassified to DEERBEmNAEM
profit or loss in subsequent 2HEWA
periods:
Re-measurement (losses)/gains RERMFEINER
on defined benefit plans, TE (B8 &
net of nil tax B RIEE T 32 (14,306) 1,606

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEZmKA4L%E

FORTHE YEAR 313,584 329,887

Attributable to: e -
Owners of the Company PN/NETEZ 2= DN 247,087 267,027
Non-controlling interests JEIER R 66,497 62,860
313,584 329,887

The notes on pages 128 to 277 form part of these financial 5128E277EMHEALEHFRERN—
statements. BB e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MBI R

At 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) 1220235 12831H (UAREF]R)

2023
20234

RMB'000
ARBT T

2022
20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB’000
ARET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS SEREMEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BE KRB 15 4,863,851 4,987.692
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 497,843 429,984
Goodwill GRS 17 3,599,182 3,740,200
Other intangible assets HhErE&EE 18 45,304 68,657
Investments in associates REE AT ZEKE 19 982,350 980,453
Receivables from invest-operate- RERE — &EE
transfer (“IOT") hospitals — B3 (M0T.) Bix
2 FEWRRIR 20 37,434 54,965
Financial assets at fair value UrnBEFTEEH
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") BEF AEGR
(MUrnEBEER
HES g5t ABm))
NEREE 21 49,084 65,604
Other financial assets at Hahiz @i At £
amortised cost NEREE 22 - 526,586
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 33 42,178 26,303
Due from related parties & UK BE Bk 75 7RIB - 5,283
Other non-current assets HMIERENEE 23 107,887 165,560
Total non-current assets JEmBNE EARER 10,225,113 11,051,287
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Inventories 78 24 302,076 367475
Trade and bills receivables FEW B 5 RIB K
R 25 1,535,652 1,490,670
Contract assets BHEE 26 8,257 21,872
Prepayments, deposits and SEENE RN o
other receivables H h e W Rk IE 27 270,499 380,631
Due from related parties FEE Wit ) Bt 75 7R 1B 41(b) 32,213 1,062,448
Other financial assets at Hth i@ At 2
amortised cost R EE 22 = 324,301
Restricted and pledged bank BRI A B 5
deposits RITER 28 44,285 18,879
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIRSEEY 28 1,236,097 3,100,011
Total current assets MBS ELLE 3,429,079 6,766,287
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
trE MBI RR

At 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) 1220235 12831H (UAREF]R)

2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
(B %)
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AREEFT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade and bills payables BB S RIER
e R 29 1,731,495 1,734,297
Other payables and accruals H i & TRIB &z
FEstE B 30 1,670,544 1,698,992
Due to related parties & 1 Fe#) Bt 75 7R I8 41(b) 369,181 303,978
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITER 31 1,277,874 1,310,636
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(b) 45,028 38,518
Deferred income IEIEUT A 22,809 2,488
Tax payable eI E 90,442 35,401
Total current liabilities MENEEARRE 5,207,373 5,124,310
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ nE (8l T EEFH
ASSETS (1,778,294) 1,641,977

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERMBAR

LIABILITIES 8,446,819 12,693,264
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREmasd
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s+ BIR{TEMN 31 884,846 1,017,263
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(b) 103,642 35,306
Defined benefit plan obligations RERMFEEE 32 364,426 374,858
Deferred income IR FEWTA 23,060 41,449
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEESE 33 33,783 71,316
Provision B 34 1,930 23,884
Due to related parties P& RA B 75 /18 - 449,017
Other liabilities Hth&®s 22,066 26,271
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEMEEE 1,433,753 2,039,364
Net assets BEZE 7,013,066 10,653,900
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At 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) 1220235 12831H (UAREF]R)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
(E5))
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AE®EFT
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of ZEATHEF A
the Company FE 1k 1 2
Share capital [N 35 267 267
Reserves # 36 5,811,794 9,505,944
5,812,061 9,506,211
Non-controlling interests JEIER T 1,201,005 1,147,689
Total equity ‘B 7,013,066 10,653,900

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 277
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 19 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yu Hai
Fis
Director

EF

The notes on pages 128 to 277 form part of these financial
statements.

FN8E277TEMN &SRR 2024FE3 8
1OREEESHEREETZ  TAHUTR
REE .

Yang Min
Lok
Director

EX

F128E277TEMN AL EMBEHRETN—
B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

=

nin

BREmEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) £.£2023%F 12831 HLEEE (UARETIR)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Finance costs

Share of profits of a joint venture

and associates

Interest and investment income
Dividend income on a financial

asset at FVTPL

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of deferred income
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on deregistration of a

subsidiary

Gain on lease termination
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Change in fair value of

financial assets at FVTPL

Foreign exchange differences, net
Equity-settled share-based

payment expense

Impairment losses on financial

assets, net

Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets

Impairment losses on goodwill
Write-down of inventories

Change in inventories

Change in trade and bills

receivables

Change in contract assets
Change in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Change in amounts due

from related parties

Change in trade and bills payables

Change in other payables

and accruals

Change in amounts due to

related parties

Change in defined plan obligations
Change in deferred income

Change in provision

REKEEINHEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) #{£2023F12831HIEEE (UAREFIR)

492,921 422,941

9 131,835 71,148
(90,780) (88,068)
6 (85,333) (93,350)
6 (3,871) (3,249)
8 552,590 426,449
8 51,753 53,263
8 6,520 6,694
(15,279) (23,533)
7 - (5,677)
7 - (44)
7 - (201)
7 2,385 309
7 16,520 (5,629)
7 77,689 158,878
= 2,164

129,347 27.806

210,789 510

141,018 108,324

216 19

1,618,320 1,058,754
65,183 (17.336)

(118,768) 110,733
7517 (1,560)

4,198 100,450
(1,515) (15,529)
9,713 (152,760)
(164,739) (141,871)

(68,447) 20,724
(41,711) (2,400)

17,211 8,537

(21,954) 3,225
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
maRERERKR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) #ZE2023F12831HIEEE (UARESITR)

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023

Cash generated from operations REMELXRESNE 1,305,008 970,967
Interest received BUF B 53,513 36,458
Income tax paid BEfPTER (163,398) (143,837)
Net cash generated from operating A& EBFFBIRE S5
activities 1,195,123 863,588
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KERETFNIRERE
ACTIVITIES
Investment income on financial UnnfBEstEEE
assets at FVTPL HET ABmSR
BEREWG 10,529 28,867
Dividend received from a financial BUARBEEBEE
asset at FVTPL BEST ABm SR
BEEWRZEER 3,871 3,249
Purchases of items of property, BEYE - BEX&
plant and equipment REIEE (486,681) (466,277)
Proceeds from disposal of items of FBEEY¥ - HMEKZE
property, plant and equipment HEMEXRIE 54,983 6,129
Receipt of government grant for WER D 2 ~ R B Re 5% 18
property, plant and equipment Z BT 4B 8,768 5,020
Purchases of financial assets at BEUAABES=ZER
FVTPL HES)st ABm W
THEE (2,473,600) (3,686,396)
Proceeds from disposal of financial BR&UAAEETER
assets at FVTPL HEHMT ABEN
EREEPERIE 2,473,600 3,886,396
Purchases of other financial assets B 5 E fthig # 85 pl A&
at amortised cost HENEREE (210,000) (690,801)
Proceeds from disposal of other BE B H IR i A
financial assets at amortised cost FtEMELREE
FriSm I8 1,082,178 877038
Repayment from 10T hospitals REBIOTEPE 21BN 7,388 12,488
Dividends received from a joint B—HE&ERBEUER
venture MR = 1,189
Dividends from associates KEBMEATNKE 88,883 =
Investments in associates REERB 2 RE - (4,900)
Disposal of a subsidiary EE—EREAE - 5
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B A ) = 173,918
Settlement of consideration for the #BFWEHEB AT Z
acquisition of subsidiaries 1B 38 (3,768,032) =
(Increase)/decrease in restricted and FREITMEF BIRIFERITIER
pledged bank deposits (gm) (25,406) 3,440
Settlement of balances due from 5B FE N BE R 5 IIB &S BR
related parties 611,424 (643,386)
Net cash flows used in investing KREEHPTH
activities HEne 35 (2,622,095) (494,021)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREREBWMR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) &£2023%F128318LEEE UARESR)
2023 2022

20234 20224
(restated)

(E7))
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REREEHHN

ACTIVITIES BEhs
Repayment to the Sponsored ) SRR BR PR R

Hospitals - (260)
New bank borrowings ERITRER 39(b) 5,553,984 8,613,930
Repayment of bank borrowings IRITEMNER 39(b) (5,772,797) (8,619,960)
Principal portion of lease payments FEEMHAS IS 39(b) (46,468) (30,387)
Dividend paid BENRE (42,353) (129,601)
Dividends paid to non-controlling IR FIEERRKRE

shareholders ZRE (13,181) (543)
Repayment of other payable and EEHMEMMIER

accruals FESTE R - (474)
Interest paid BENFHE (116,268) (56,396)
Net cash flows used in MEEEFFIARE

financing activities e FEE (437,083) (223,691)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN BEMIFSEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  GeizZl) /15458 (1,864,055) 145,876
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRERIREEEY

beginning of year 3,100,011 2,951,401
Effect of exchange rate changes, net FE SR &) 22 2858 58 141 2,734

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RIS RIREEEY
END OF YEAR 1,236,097 3,100,011

The notes on pages 128 to 277 form part of these financial 5128F277E MMM EBLHHFREN
statements. —& e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HmRMEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of the registered office
of the Company is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, PO Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-
1002, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business
of the Company in Chinese Mainland is located at 14/
F Kunlun Center Office Building, No. 9 Fuyi Street,
Fengtai District, Beijing, the People's Republic of China
(the “"PRC").

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's
immediate holding company is CRH (Medical) Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
and the ultimate holding company is China Resources
Company Limited (“CR Co."), a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC. None of them produce financial
statements available for public use.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) were mainly
engaged in (i) provision of general healthcare services;
(i) provision of hospital management services, sale
of pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables and provision of other hospital ancillary
services in Chinese Mainland.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements.

EHEBRERERABNHEHS
EMRUIABEREET AT - AAFF
M= Rt U B 4th Floor, Harbour
Place, 103 South Church Street, PO
Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman lIslands Z</A &) 7£ #° B P9 ih
NEEEEMBUNPEARHENE
(ThrE)) IR E R EEEHINR
EmPORFE141Z5

REREMR AEBNERIZERAT
~EHER (BR BRQE (—HBR
REBERRESEMMINARE) > &
RERATAPEEBARAR (TH
BERH) (—EARFBEALZINEE ®
F) ZFATHEFHRITARERDN
LUREEE

TEE> ARBREMBAT (B
MAEE) T2RERPEAM)E
MG EBERT (N RHEBREER
HHEEm BRASMEREM
BUR R Hoth B B 7 £ AR 75 ©

TRBEEMBRABZFHFBNMBR
RUTEEABHIFE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets
at FVTPL which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in RMB and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

As disclosed in Note 38, the comparative information
has been restated to account for business combination
under common control completed during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB1.78 billion. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group has unutilised bank
facilities of approximately HKD2.60 billion and RMB4.10
billion (equivalent to approximately RMB6.46 billion
in total). The directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group's cash flow forecast for the next twelve
months and are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient facilities to repay the liabilities. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company consider it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

MBEREERRERE2RNESS
ZHBERMBREEHEIRES
DERB 2 3 88 B KR B o BR B A L

MEEN ARAMBEREREELEME
AR FRIEFINGRER MBI R IUA
REI&K FIESREUERELN
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B IR EE E2023F 128318 IEF
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R2023%F 128310 A EEES XH)
BIRTTREBEN26EETKARE
41.087T &N HE AR ¥64.6f87T) ©
AABIEECBRAEBKRK+ZE
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ERAHRFERERERURESMTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
I ==

(Expres

A F5 e R MY 5E

sed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FBRSBAEIEREES » UARESIR)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Intra-group balances
and transactions, and any unrealised income and
expenses (except for foreign currency transaction
gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

The Group has applied the following new and amended
IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB to these
financial statements for the current accounting period:

o International Financial Reporting Standard
(“IFRS") 17, Insurance contracts

o Amendments to International Accounting
Standard ("IAS") 8, Accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

° Amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of
accounting policies

° Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes. Deferred
tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction

o Amendments to |AS 12, /ncome taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two model rules
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The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group's results and
financial position for the current period have been
prepared or presented.

In addition, the accounting policies that are first
adopted by the Group in 2023 are set out below:

Business combinations under common
control

An acquisition of a business which is a business
combination under common control is accounted
for using the pooling of interests method whereby
the assets and liabilities acquired are accounted
for at carryover predecessor values from the date
when the Group and the acquired business are first
under common control. The difference between the
consideration paid by the Group and the net assets or
liabilities of the business acquired is adjusted against
equity. The results and cash flows of the acquired
business under common control are consolidated from
the date when the Group and the acquired business
first came under common control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2023 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

Effective

for accounting
periods
beginning on
or after

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation 1 January 2024
of financial statements:
Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current (2020
amendments ")

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation 1 January 2024
of financial statements: Non-
current liabilities with covenants
(“2022 amendments”)

Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: 1 January 2024
Lease liability in a sale and
leaseback

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of 1 January 2024
cash flows and IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures. Supplier
finance arrangements

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects 1 January 2025
of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Lack of exchangeability
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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(a) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

The Group's investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the Group’'s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group's share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and a joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's investments in
the associates or joint venture, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint venture is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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(b) Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities
and assets includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.
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(b) Business combinations and goodwiill

(continued)

Any contingent consideration is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (“CGU"s), or groups of
CGUs ("CGU groups”), that are expected to
benefit from the combination. The CGUs or groups
of CGUs are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.
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(b) Business combinations and goodwiill

(c)

(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU/CGU group to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the CGU/CGU group is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU/CGU
group and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the CGU/CGU group retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at
FVTPL at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.
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(c)
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(c) Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred
tax assets and financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or CGU's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a CGU for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated
to an individual CGU if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of CGUs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

(e)

(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;

or
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(e) Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

(e) BABET @

(b)
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Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 12%
Fixture and leasehold Over the shorter of

improvement lease terms and 10%
Medical equipment 10% to 20%
Motor vehicles 10%
Office equipment 20%

Allocated land Not depreciated
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(f)

(g9)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents
buildings and related improvements under
construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

(f)

(g)
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(g)

(h)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Intangible assets (other than
gOOdWI") (continued)

Operating rights under IOT arrangements

The operating rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
economic lives of 16 to 30 years.

Good Supply Practice licence for
pharmaceuticals (“GSP Licence”)

The GSP Licence is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life of 46 months.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying
assets. At inception or on reassessment of
a contract that contains a lease component
and non-lease components, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components and to account for the
lease component and the associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

(g)

(h)

) BREEE (BERIMN @

IOTZ HF FRIAEE1E

SRS B AR PR E RSB S
B W ¥ H AL 5t pl (6 & £ 1P
16ZE30F U BEAR EHEH -

B EniE (IGSPsFAAE )

GSP5F J 58 % Al 25 i (E fAl B (E S
BAER Wi st R EAEEE
HAAGME B I B4R A H o

HE
FEBRSNPBTEEREN
CEHENEIHEHE - HEH
RHIBEBABEMEFE—RIEA
ERpEEZ ERERIE R
BHBHEHENESHEE

FEEER AN

AEEHMEHEERAE —ER
KREtE&H % GEHRHEERKER
BEEMRERI) - AEBERERE
E8aBMUMERBEENRKRRERE
REMEERINEREEE-
REsHESS RIFHERDZ
BHRRBR N ENTGHE  AE
BERBATRELS A LAESD
FHREE D URBHEI DX
ERAERES D IEAE—FHED
DARRe

ERBRIZRAMRAR —T_—FERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M HRRMEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(h) Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms as follows:

Leasehold land
Leased properties
Medical equipment

50 to 60 years
1 to 9 years
1 to b years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

(h) A& @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

(h) Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at
the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)
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(h) Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term
leases (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies
at lease inception (or when there is a lease
modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income.
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(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’'s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

Financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’'s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned
business model are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

(i)
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(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(i)

(k)

Derecognition of financial assets

(continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

(i)

(k)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

(k) Impairment of financial assets

(continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort, including both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group's historical experience and informed
credit assessment, that includes forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M HRRMEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(k) Impairment of financial assets

(continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

— Financial instruments for which credit

risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

(k)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

(k) Impairment of financial assets

(N

(continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

The Group's loans and payables are recognised
initially at fair value and net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(n

(FRBAEIEPEI > UARIBIIT)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

(m) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

n

(m) 4
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(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired
and held by the Company or the Group (treasury
shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost.
No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement
of financial position comprise cash at banks and
on hand and short-term highly liquid deposits
with a maturity of three months or less, that
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments and are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Group's cash
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(r)

(s)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

(r)

(s)
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(s)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is not recognised:

° when the deferred tax arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss;

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

° those related to the income taxes arising
from tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

(s)
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(t)

(u)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the statement of profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments or deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value
of the non-monetary assets and released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful lives of the relevant assets by equal
instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(u) W=D @

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes
a variable amount, the amount of consideration
is estimated to be that which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When
the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Provision of general healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of in-patient
services is recognised over time because
the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time
when the services are provided.

Provision of other services

Hospital management service fees are
calculated based on pre-set formulas set
out in the arrangements. Revenue from
the provision of hospital management
services is recognised over time because
the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group

(u) W=D @

EREREKA @)

(a)

(b)

TR e BERE

12 1 1 Be AR 75 B9 U a8 By
B REEEFRER
Ry LU B 2 #E B A & [ 42 it
BYF] mk

REMZRBO U @ ER
R AR 75 A BF ) L B 50 o

rERAMRE

BREERBENDREZ
F2HhANNERALG
B RHEBREERBH
W FER B RES RAAE
FREBESMERTAE
B 52 YA & o

EHERERARAR —F SRR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(u) W=D @

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)
(b)  Provision of other services (continued)

Revenue from the sale of medical products
is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the
medical products.

Revenue from the provision of other
hospital-derived services is recognised at
the point in time when the consultation
reports are issued to the customer or when
the consultation services are completed.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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(v)

(w)

(x)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets
are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for
impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment
is received or a payment is due (whichever
is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of
the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

(v)

(w)

(x)

BNEEERTEFBRERIR
BB BRI ER] - MNR A&
EEBEEP AN BHEMLR
ZHRAEZEFEREERARERE
W ARENEERSBAB RN
WEBREAEB cMNEERTEET
BESG HFEERE3ER
REERENGTERT -

BHAaR

= 7 & E B RS AR RR A 78 an S AR 75
Z A WEIE R R RIR IR
(UREERE) K HEIBAK
BER-EXEERBSNENE
(B 7K A8 A 729 an 50 AR 75 BY 42 1 12
BREER)  ANEREERSA
W o

BT

BREXRER/FE VR -BEX
REEUARETLEER AN > 1
MELTFERG  HETER
GREENRFTRERLCSE
E

(@) ARAMFEBRESEM
A ZERNHTRMETILZ
BHNEEERMGF-

(b) BRIRAS EEIG RN R
(FFERR) ARBOE
E2 ERGLUEEREF
fg0 -

(c) BRI ATRIRIE -

ERBRIZRAMRAR —T_—FERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(x)

(y)

Contract costs (continued)

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the asset relates. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme
and a share award scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees for grants is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised in employee benefit expense, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’'s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

(x)

(y)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

(y) Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions
are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood
of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to
an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(y) Share-based payments (continued)

(z)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and
share awards is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Chinese Mainland are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

(y) VAR (R 1 @

(z)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

(z) Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

Certain subsidiary of the Group provided defined
benefit plan to its certain employees. The liability
recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit plan obligations is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss
at the earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or
curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises
restructuring-related costs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(z) Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales”
and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by function:

o service costs comprising current service
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses

on curtailments and non-routine settlements

° net interest expense or income

(aa) Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared, because the Company's
memorandum and articles of association grant
the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

(bb)Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is the Company's functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(bb)Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising
on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of foreign operations
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of foreign operations which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB
at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Control over the hospitals under IOT agreements

The Group entered into a series of IOT agreements
with certain not-forprofit hospitals and their sponsors
in which the Group agrees to make investments to
the hospitals and/or the sponsors to improve the
medical facilities of the hospitals in exchange for the
right to manage and operate the hospitals and receive
performance-based management fees for periods
ranging from 16 to 30 years. The operating rights are
expected to be transferred back to the hospitals or their
sponsors after the end of these periods.

Management assessed whether or not the Group
has control over these not-forprofit hospitals through
the IOT agreements and whether the Group has
the practical ability to direct the hospitals’ relevant
activities unilaterally. In making that judgement,
management considered the composition of the
internal governance bodies and certain committees
which oversee the operations of the hospitals. After
assessment, management concluded that the Group
does not obtain the decision making power under
these bodies and committees to direct the relevant
activities of the hospitals, and the Group does not
control these hospitals. Instead, these 10T agreements
are considered management contracts to generate
management service income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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sed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FBRSBAEIEREES » UARESIR)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the recoverable amounts of the CGU groups to which
the goodwill is allocated. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the higher of value in use (“"VIU")
and fair value less costs of disposal (“"FVLCOD"). For
VIU, management estimates future cash flows from
the CGU groups and chooses a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. If the value in use of CGU groups are lower
than the carrying amount, management will also assess
the fair value less costs of disposal of the CGU groups
based on the best information available to estimate the
fair value, taking into account the costs of disposal.
Further details are given in note 17
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its VIU and FVLCOD.
Further details are given in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The present value of the defined benefit obligations
depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations. Details of key
assumptions and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in note 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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sed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FBRSBAEIEREES » UARESIR)

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
facilitating decision-making process of resource
allocation and performance assessment. During the
reporting period, the Group has changed the structure
of its business units based on their services that
causes the composition of its reportable segments to
the following:

(@) Hospital business: includes outpatient business,
inpatient business corresponding to self-owned
hospitals.

(b)  Other business: includes operation management
services, supply chain services and other ancillary
services provided to participating hospitals and
IOT/OT hospitals.

Comparative figures in the segment information have
been adjusted to conform to the current period's
presentation.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment results, which are measurements of adjusted
profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit/
loss before tax except that fair value gains/losses on
an equity investment at FVTPL, investment income
on financial assets at FVTPL, investment income on
other financial assets at amortised cost, unallocated
income and gains, foreign exchange differences, net,
impairment of goodwill other unallocated expenses and
losses are excluded from such measurement.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

Segment assets exclude goodwill, unallocated
investments in associates, financial assets at FVTPL,
other financial assets at amortised cost, cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’'s revenue
and results, and assets and liabilities by reportable
operating segments.

Segment revenue and results

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEFEEE @

UTRRAIREEENHHAERR
WM EEUREENERBIDANT

DE U R A

Hospital Other
business business Total
Blrx% =RiESS st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREBFT AREFR
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE200E1ANALEE
Segment revenue AEU 9,406,153 702,251 10,108,404
Intersegment revenue AEEINE - (904) (904)
Consolidated revenue SE W 9,406,153 701,347 10,107,500
Segment cost AEARA (7671,318) (530,345) (8,201,663)
Other income HetA 104,432 202 104,634
Share of profits of associates ELEE AR - 90,780 90,780
Other gains and losses, net Btk R ESEFE (12,306) - (12,306)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (2,207) (521) (2,728)
Administrative expenses THER (845,686) (25,595) (871,281)
Finance costs MBER (22,436) - (22,436)
Impairment losses on financial and contract  &RRANEEREGEFE
assets, net (107,865) - (107,865)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRREERERSR (1,863) - (1,863)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME- -BERRERESR
equipment (208,926) - (208,926)
Segment results DNEEE 637978 235,868 873,846
Investment income on other financial HEiig@ M At EN
assets at amortised cost SRBEERENA 18,831
Other unallocated income and gains E KD EWA R YR 72,795
Fair value gains on an equity UAnBEEEEEHAEL
investment FVTPL NWRAREANEERR (16,520)
Impairment loss of goodwill HERESE (141,018)
Foreign exchange differences, net ERERFH (77,689)
Other unallocated losses and expenses Bt R DEEERER (237,324)
Profit before tax a0 492,921
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

REDEER @

(continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Segment revenue and results (continued)

DEUW IR R EE @

Hospital Other
business business Total
Blrx% A% a5t
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E71) (B75) (B7)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT INEL S
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE202F1283181LEE
Segment revenue D EN 7,053,146 848,968 7902,114
Intersegment revenue NEENE - (827) (827)
Consolidated revenue LelE 7053,146 848,141 7901,287
Segment cost AERA (5,966,630) (628,822) (6,595,452)
Other income 2 A 89,682 14,367 104,049
Other gains and losses, net HitmkESEER 13,208) (51) (13,254)
Share of profits of associates FEEBE AR - 92,285 92,285
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (7995) (11,442) (19,437)
Administrative expenses TBER (649,716) (60,708) (710,424)
Finance costs MHER (13,805) (13) (13,818)
Impairment losses on financial and SHRENEERERRIE
contract assets, net (21,877) (643) (22,520)
Impairment loss on property, plant and NE BERRERESE
equipment (510) - (510)
Share of losses of a joint venture EhE—EagraEE (4,217) - (4,217)
Segment results NEEE 464,875 253,114 717989
Investment income on financial assets at WA RBEGEEEEEEH A
FVTPL BENEREEREWA 25,115
Investment income on other financial Hitg@Em At 2mn
assets at amortised cost SREEREUA 31,777
Other unallocated income and gains Hitk AR R a 76,457
Impairment loss of goodwil HERESE (108,324)
Foreign exchange differences, net ERERTE (158,878)
Other unallocated losses and expenses HitkAEEERER (161,195)
Profit before tax Giohpaled 422,941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &RESIE R @

(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities IHEERER
Hospital Other

business business Total
LRSS Hi%E% )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT

As at 31 December 2023 120235128310
Segment assets NHEE 8,365,531 1,431,481 9,797,012
Unallocated assets FOEEE 7,906,017
Elimination of intersegment receivables A E R E W IBIEE (4,048,837)
Total assets mEE 13,654,192
Segment liabilities Has 5,033,251 12,531 5,045,782
Unallocated liabilities XNEER 5,644,181
Elimination of intersegment payables D ERE FIBR (4,048,837)
Total liabilities mef 6,641,126

Hospital Other

business business Total
LRSS HiE% fmst
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E71)) (L) (7))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

As at 31 December 2022 12022128318
Segment assets NHEE 8,540,411 1,328,933 9,869,344
Unallocated assets FOREE 10,961,140
Elimination of intersegment AW IER (3,012,910)
Total assets mEE 17817574
Segment liabilities ek =L 4,795,974 81,954 4877928
Unallocated liabilities x0E&aR 5,298,656
Elimination of intersegment 2 ERE I FIBIR (3,012,910)
Total liabilities FA=YE 7163,674
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REDEER @

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the PRC, all of the
Group's revenue from external customers are generated
in the PRC, and substantially all of the Group's non-
current assets, excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax assets, are located in the PRC.

REVENUE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information

Types of goods or services AR TS 58 R

4.

HEE R

AEBZEETHUNPE ~EH

KEIIEEFWmT B PEEE

BERXELAEEZ2MFERPEE (F
BREREMTIARBELERBEE) 91

FEAREY °

(a) UWazzE#I B4

2023
20234

RMB'000
AR®ET T

2022
20224
(restated)

(%)
RMB’000
ARETT

In-patient EBAR TS 5,473,459 4,084,293
Out-patient PIE2ERT% 3,932,694 2,968,853
General healthcare services REBERT 9,406,153 7053,146
Other services Ht R 701,347 848,141
Total = 10,107,500 7.901,287
Timing of revenue recognition UL x5 AY BF Y

Point in time T {E BF R 3L 4,597,431 3,738,758
Over time R—ERBFRN 5,510,069 4,162,529
Total a5t 10,107,500 7901,287
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

(b) BAIHRT

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance
obligations is summarised below:

General healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of general healthcare
services is mainly derived from hospital services
provided at the consolidated hospitals, which is
recognised when the related services have been
rendered to customers.

For in-patient services, customers normally
receive in-patient treatment which contains
various treatment components. Since the
patient simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits of the Group's performance in the
medical treatment, the relevant revenue of in-
patient services is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The progress towards the complete
satisfaction of performance obligation is measured
by direct measurements of the value of individual
products or services transferred by the Group to
the customer.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time, i.e. when
the services are provided.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

(b) Performance obligations (continued)

Other services

For the hospital management services rendered
on various aspects of daily operations of
the hospitals, the contracts contain multiple
deliverables. As such services have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer, it is therefore
regarded as a single performance obligation.

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards
the complete satisfaction of performance
obligation is measured by direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred by the
Group to the customer. The relevant revenue is
recognised based on pre-set formulas set out in
the arrangements.

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceuticals,
medical devices and medical consumables to non-
consolidated hospitals is recognised when control
of merchandise is transferred to the customer,
i.e. when the merchandise is delivered and
simultaneously accepted by the customer.

Revenue from other hospital ancillary services
is recognised at a point in time, i.e. when the
consultation reports are issued to the customer or
when the consultation services are completed.

The Group takes advantage of practical expedient
in IFRS15 and does not disclose the remaining
performance obligation as the Group's sales
contracts either have an original expected
duration of less than one year or the revenue is
performance-based.
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6. OTHER INCOME

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HAugA

2023 2022
20234 20228
(restated)
(E71)
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AR®ETTT
Interest and investment income on: K| BREBWA :
Financial assets at FVTPL UanEEEAEES
FABENEREE 10,529 25,115
Other financial assets at amortised Hig@EmAast 20
cost EREE 21,291 31,777
Bank deposits RITER 53,513 36,458
Dividend income on an equity UanBEIEAEESHA
investment at FVTPL BB ARENREWA 3,87 3,249
Government grants* BT B 30,445 29,110
Rental income AW A 5,624 4,900
Canteen income BEWA 29,534 31,249
Compensation received BB = 14,725
Others HAth 35,080 52,304
189,887 228,887
@ There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these 3 HEAZEHLEANKRBTREXTE
subsidies. EHIFo

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Change in fair value of
an equity investment at FVTPL

7. HihWas KR EEFEE

2023
20234

RMB'000
ARBTT

HAnEESEEREEEHHA
BmlRARENAAER

2022
20224
(restated)

(E51)
RMB'000
ARBTT

EeE) (16,520) 5,629
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ [ERZ=EBEE (77,689) (158,878)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BEE—BRB AR N - 5,677
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 88 —RIH B A SWE - 44
Gain on lease termination KRIEHAE WS - 201
Loss on disposal of items of HEME BE RER
property, plant, equipment and BYEEBEER
intangible assets (2,385) (309)
Write-down of inventories FEMR 24(p) (216) (19)
Others Hith (10,287) (16,213)
(107,097) (163,868)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. #Mai#FHE
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging: AEBNRAAELKNBRUTEIE
/Y
2023 2022
20235 2022%F
(restated)
€27)
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 4,477,328 3,630,392
Depreciation of property, ME-BERREBITE
plant and equipment 15 552,590 426,292
Depreciation of FRESENE
right-of-use assets 16(a) 51,753 53,263
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESH
(included in cost of sales) (5t ASHE BA) 18 6,520 6,694
Total depreciation and amortisation & RS54 %A 610,863 486,249
Wages, salaries, bonuses TE e TEARER
and allowances 3,097,741 2,413,231
Equity-settled share-based payment  ZiER & H UMD TR
expense, net R - 2,164
Pension scheme contributions* BRE B
Defined contribution scheme REMDETE 290,791 218,371
Defined benefit scheme RERMGE 17,487 1,462
Total employee benefit BERAZ KR
expense (including directors’ (BIEESNE) (HIEF10)
remuneration) (note 10) 3,406,019 2,635,228

Lease payments not included in the ~ ABIEREESAEFEN

measurement of lease liabilities HENH 16(c) 9,403 7686
Auditor's remuneration ZEEH & 4,500 7454
* There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group * T E DB a2 ((EART) BE
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. R IEAHEAE
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AR e MBI R M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEHR

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBEER2TOT
2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
(%))
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®BFT AE®BFT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITERFE 109,810 51,110
Interest on lease liabilities HESEMNE 5,052 4,791
Others Hh 16,973 15,247
131,835 71,148

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. ESRBEHE M

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for RIESAMSXZMABRATES L
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing HRA N FE(ABERF)E383(1)(a) &
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of OER(AS (REESEFEZER) &/
Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a) and (b) of the ) 280 EFMABHFERIBNE I
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BUF

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
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10. EFERBHZME @

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

(a) WIIFHITES

FRINFBIUIERNITESZTNIE
W

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk Anthony tHENBLE
(BAE BT AE) 273 257
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BEYL St
(BB S %) 273 257
Mr. FuTingmei (BE3E%5) (i)  BIES= &) 229 -
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy B2t ()
(M2 L) () - 235
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix 2= BB S A (i)
(EREEAE) (i) 123 257
Mr. Zhou Peng (BEESE4E) (iv)  BHBSEE(V) 81 -
979 1,006

(i) On 30 November 2022, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy resigned
as an independent non-executive director.

(ii) On 27 February 2023, Mr. Fu Tingmei appointed as an
independent non-executive director.

(iii) On 13 June 2023, Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix resigned as an
independent non-executive director.

(iv) On 14 September 2023, Mr. Zhou Peng appointed as an
independent non-executive director.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2022: Nil).

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

120226118308 » B ML T FHE
BUIIERITES

122023528270 BEELEES
ERABIUFRTES-
12202365130 » RIS L BT
BUIERITES

122023698148 BB GLEEEE
RHBUFRTES-

FERNHEEMMEMBIIERNTE
EHENE (20224 : ) o

EWRRIERARAT —S=FERS
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-
executive directors

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. EFRBH ZME @

(b)

BITESRIFRITES

Performance  Equity-settled Retirement
Salaries and related  share-based scheme Total
allowances bonuses payment  contributions  remuneration
REHY RESEEU FESTN
Fre R TE4L BRAR TR HEI R & & 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT
Executive directors: HiTESE .
Mr. Song Qing (K& 4) RAELE 316 - - 16 332
Mr. Yu Hai (F/&5% %) (i) FiERE 1,593 2,864 - 88 4,545
Mr. Shan Baojie (BE A% 4) BEALE 1,378 1,764 - 95 3,237
Ms. Yang Min (138 %Z 1) (i) B2 L) 615 - - 56 671
Mr. Cheng Libing (RAIZEE45 %) () BRI ETSE4() 140 - - 10 150
Ms. Ren Yuan (fEi& % 1) (ii) EEZ ) 577 - - 24 601
4,619 4,628 - 289 9,536
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Mr. Hu Hui (81855 4) (iii) A 52 4 i) - - - - -
Ms. Ge Lu (BE&Z ) (iii) B i) - - - - -
4,619 4,628 - 289 9,536
Performance  Equity-settled Retirement
2022 20228 Salaries and related  share-based scheme Total
(restated) (B51) allowances bonuses payment  contributions  remuneration
REHH RESEEUN RIR
Frae R TE4L BRAR TR sHEI R it & & 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT
Executive directors: HiTES .
Mr. Song Qing (RiBL4E) RBERE - - 71 = 71
Mr. Cheng Libing (BRI E4E4) () AR EE4() 1,767 2,269 7 58 4,165
Ms. Ren Yuan (fE&2 % 1) (ii) FERZ L) 1,343 1,215 53 46 2,657
Mr. Shan Baojie (B E A% 4E) BEARLE 786 1,878 - 55 2,719
3,896 5,362 195 159 9,612
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Hu Hui (8318 %5 4) (iii) BB S (i) - - - - -
3,896 5,362 195 159 9,612
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(b) Executive directors and non-

executive directors (continued)

(i) On 27 February 2023, Mr. Cheng Libing resigned as an
executive director, Mr. Yu Hai was appointed as an executive
director.

(ii) On 13 June 2023, Ms. Ren Yuan resigned as an executive
director, Ms. Yang Min was appointed as an executive
director.

(iii) On 14 September 2023, Mr. Hu Hui resigned as a non-
executive director, Ms. Ge Lu was appointed as a non-

executive director.

During the year, no remuneration was paid or
payable by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments
or benefits in respect of termination of directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly,
to the directors; nor are any payable (2022: Nil).
No consideration was provided to or receivable
by third parties for making available directors’
services (2022: Nil). There are no loans, quasi-
loans or other dealings in favour of the directors,
their controlled body corporate and connected
entities (2022: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director
or a chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2022: Nil).

The above directors and chief executive's
remuneration only included during the tenure of
each director and chief executive of the company.

(b) RITEFRIIFRITES

()

(i) 2023528278 > I R E BT
RITER TEAEESZTANTE
$o

(i) 2023F68 130 » FEZ L TEHEH
TES BRLLEZAALANTE
$o

(i) 2023598148 » HIB S £ BEEIE
HITER BRI ESTEHIFNT
BEo

FRAEERERESZTH
I EAMEEAENALRER
BN A 7 £ [ B 2 o5 B oY B B
1B (20226 @ ) o

FER TERKEEEREME
BAEERAES A REHENK
BB EHAE  HESARE
FER (20224 : 48) - BB ARM
EERENFE=BRERBNE
WBR (20224 : #|®) - BBAFR
EE -HEARAABEB KRG
ERNER EERREMRS
(20224 : #|)

FAMEEFHRIAREXNRR
BEEAMERIZEE (20224 :

H) o

NEEERBHMEERERS
BRESRBINEHRNZMNE -

EHRMIRARAT —T_=FERS
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1" AlisksHES
The five highest paid employees during the year FRAEURSHEEEEMS (2022
included two directors (2022: three), details of whose F =) ER BEMEFBEN L
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of MK EE10 BRIFEAFER =% (2022
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three F.MB) BeHER MEAEKRAT
(2022: two) highest paid employees who are neither EEIEH) S BAOT
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

2023 2022

20234 20224

(restated)

(E27)

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREF T AR¥ETF T

Salaries & allowances < B AL 3,465 2,022

Bonuses B4 4,034 1,825
Equity-settled share-based R A B MR MD IR

payment expense i - 53

Pension scheme contributions IBRIRE ST EHRR
(defined contribution scheme) (REMHARETE) 293 93
7,792 3,993
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES N AfiRa#HEES w
(continued)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive MENF T BEENIEEE RIEEE
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within R EEHBUWT

the following bands are as follows:

Number of employees
EE#E
2023 2022

20234 20224
(restated)

(E7)

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 TE

2,500,000 7T - 2
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 B TE
3,000,000 7T 2 -
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,0018B &
3,500,000 7T 1 -
3 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid or payable FRCAEEEDAURSHEES
by the Group to the five highest paid employees as NHEMEAMESESEMALRER
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as 0 7 £ B BRF 2 B2 B o B B A (8
compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil). (20224 : ) o

EMRRERAMRAT —TOEERE 19
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12. INCOME TAX

The PRC enterprise income tax has been provided
at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the estimated
assessable income arising in the PRC during the year.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2022: Nil).

BDER — FREl A

Current — Chinese Mainland

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. FR{5#R

EHEELEGHFERRBAE B
NEBHBEFIRPECEMER25%
(2022%F :25%) c AR AEBER K
FERAIECEBELATHAHERR
R FIL N TR E AR SR EE
(20224 : §®) ©

2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB’000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARBT T

Charge for the year KEEER 217,132 133,529
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBRE 1,307 1,188
Deferred (note 33) IEIE (FTsE33) (53,408) (40,057)
Total tax charge for the year REEMNIEE R 165,031 94,660

The Group operates in multiple jurisdictions, which will
enact tax laws to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the OECD in forthcoming years. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of Pillar Two model is expected to be on the
income taxes. So far it has concluded that the Pillar Two
model is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

FEEEZEEEEEEZEES M
ZERERERERRBERHRE
UEBHASHEBERNSE AR
o A< & B IE fE 5T 1l 2 A — IR AR H PR
BRNBHEE -BEBRIAL &&
B A EZIRIR P R EHEER
BHRRELEEATE-
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the PRC statutory tax rate, in which the
principal place of business of the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries is located,

is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate
of 25% (2022: 25%)

Lower tax rates enacted by specific
jurisdictions

Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous periods

Profits and losses attributable to
a joint venture and associates

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses utilised from previous
periods

Effect of tax losses and
deductible temporary
difference not recognised

Deferred tax credit upon
derecognition of sponsorship
rights and service contracts

Super deduction on eligible research
and development costs

Others

Tax charge at the Group's effective
tax rate

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to RMB30,306,000 (2022: RMB30,764,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” in the

R 37

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FRBAEIEBEE » UARESTIR)

to the tax charge BEERIOT ¢

2 7 F) E 492,921
FRE A ERZE25%
(20224F : 25%) K9TRIE 123,230
BEBAREETH
BERE 40,128
FIBTHAR BN AR VA
1,307
FEh—EaE AR KREE
NEIF)E KR8 (22,695)
RETRUA (93,108)
LR IEN A 52 49,860
BIEHARE S AR 18
(813)
RERMBEIER
AR ERERNTE
67,122
RIEERBINERRE SR
EENREERIBIER
BB E R ARBARIERE
Hh -
AEBERURENREER
165,031

BAERNBRAKRBS DB LRBPAEE
BEEMBNPEEERRFENR
A EMERNRIBEMARREER

422,941

105,735
20,124
1,188
(22,017)
(251,605)

265,394

(4,983)

19,199

(24,025)

(723)
(13,627)

94,660

DEBMEATNREAHAR
30,306,0007T (20224 : AR

30,764,0007T) BB EFGIBmR KL

consolidated statement of profit or loss. MELBE AR B EE o

EHRRERARAT

— BT CFEWRE

—_—<—
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

13. DIVIDENDS 13. K8

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTT

Dividend recognised as distribution MRAXREEANDEMKE !
during the year:

Final 2022 - HK3.7 cents 2022FKH — 8K
(2021: HK12 cents) B3 781U
per ordinary share (20214F : 12384) 43,436 133,042
Less: Dividend for shares held RN RE SRR
under the Share Award 1D BIRR S
Scheme (1,083) (3,441)

42,353 129,601

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Final dividend proposed after the  #R&HAREB T IK

end of the reporting period: R E -
Proposed final 2023 - RMB6.0 DR 5%2023F K HA
cents (2022: HK3.7 cents, — BREERARE6.0D
equivalent to approximately (20224 : 3.781L >
RMB3.3 cents) per ordinary TEHNAREIIND)
share 77,801 43,436
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to KREEEIKKRPREHBFTARATKE
the approval of the Company's shareholders at the AR RITHRREFARS EH#HtE-

forthcoming annual general meeting.

194 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR AR M

(BB HERBEEN » LARBIIR)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SREABINABELRESADE
BREGFEEABGFENBEART
257,680,0007T (20224F : 265,855,000
7t (BA)) REFERBETEBERNM
M H5801,264,292,0000% (20224 :
1,262,019,0008%) 5t& o

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent of
RMB257680,000 (2022: RMB265,855,000 (restated)),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,264,292,000 (2022: 1,262,019,000) in issue during the
year.

AREBEEHE2023F12B31HIEFEW

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2023.

BEERTHNEEHRESEBR-

At 1 January 2023 R2023%1818
Cost [J%: 586,307 2,673,477 322,115 1,750,465 36,478 355,667 136,795 5,861,304
Accumulated depreciation and  REHTERRESE

Impairment loss - (170,880) (112,699)  (471,277) (11,833)  (106,923) - (873612)
Net carrying amount FEEFE 586,307 2,502,597 209,416 1,279,188 24,645 248,744 136,795 4,987,692
At 1 January 2023, net of 20231818

accumulated depreciation NRRME 586,307 2,502,597 209,416 1,279,188 24,645 248,744 136,795 4,987,692
Additions RE 1,481 13,601 62,350 440,178 4,590 69,511 86,499 678,210
Disposals EE - (679) (3,415) (23,409) (819) (8572) (3,641) (40,535)
Transfers =t = 70,713 2,892 = = 3,767 (77372) =
Depreciation provided during FRTESH

the year - (94,404) (35,449)  (355,833) (5,727) (61,177) - (552,590)
Impairment loss RESE - (119,452) (2,716) (86,083) = (539) (136)  (208,926)
At 31 December 2023, net of #2023% 128318 »

accumulated depreciation NREE 587,788 2,372,376 233,078 1,254,041 22,689 251,734 142,145 4,863,851
At 31 December 2023: #2023E128318 :
Cost %N 587788 2,757,112 383942 2,167,234 40,249 420,373 142,281 6,498,979
Accumulated depreciation and B3t ERAESE

impairment loss - (384,736) (150,864)  (913,193) (17560)  (168,639) (136)  (1,635,128)

Net carrying amount REETRE 587788 2,372,376 233,078 1,254,041 22,689 251,734 142,145 4,863,851

EHEREBIERAERAR —E - —FERS
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(continued)

Allocated
Land

i
RMB000
ARETT

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings

#F
RMB'000
ABEFR

(FRBHEBES » UARKEIIT)

Fixture and
leasehold
improvement
FiR
REEEYUR
RMB'000
AEBTT

Medical
equipment

BRRfH
GIVE
AEETT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e MBI R M

Motor
vehicles

A
RMB'000
ARETR

Office
equipment

BARRE
RMB'000
ARETT

15. YE - -BEKRHZEw

Construction
in progress

HRIE
RMB'000
ARBTT

Total

&4
RMB'000
AEETR

At 1 January 2022 1#2022%1818
Cost MA = 975,803 198,637 807526 16,658 120,783 82,620 2,201,927
Accumulated depreciation REE - (100,027) (77753) (209,533) (7795) (52,212) - (447320)
Net carrying amount REETE - 875,776 120,784 597993 8,863 68,571 82,620 1,754,607
At 1 January 2022, net of 1202241818

accumulated depreciation NKREAHE - 875,776 120,784 597993 8,863 68,571 82,620 1,754,607
Additions RE - 31,990 38,335 307390 4,542 82,842 110,152 575,251
Acquired on acquisition of B A RS

subsidiaries - 229 43,890 115,118 2,685 9,886 6,789 178,597
Business combination under HEEHTHEBEH

common control 586,307 1,655,463 28,584 515,865 11,937 126,820 10,166 2,935,132
Disposals RE = (1,076) (1,288) (25,542) (189) (998) = (29,093)
Transfers g% - 11,078 14,057 30,108 845 16,334 (72,422) =
Depreciation provided during ERFERE

the year - (70,853) (34,946) (261,744) (4,038) (54,711) - (426,292)
Impairment loss HEEE - - - - - - (510) (510)
At 31 December 2022, net of 120228128318

accumulated depreciation NREEE (75

(restated) 586,307 2,502,597 209,416 1,279,188 24,645 248,744 136,795 4,987692
At 31 December 2022: R20225128318
Cost B 586,307 2,673,477 322,115 1,750,465 36,478 355,667 137305 5,861,814
Accumulated depreciation RitHE - (170,880) (112,699) (471,277) (11,833) (106,923) (510) (874,122)
Net carrying amount REETE 586,307 2,502,597 209,416 1,279,188 24,645 248,744 136,795 4,987692
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The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office properties
and medical equipment used in its operations. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50
and 60 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of office
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 9
years and leases of medical equipment generally have
lease terms between 1 and 5 years. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

AEBEAAMEA

FEEMECERERANMAFTER
BEKGBHEAEESR - —RIENB
RIBLUEKEPT A E RERFAERR50
FRE0OFHNEE LM BREBEELEL
IR IFR > BERER M RIE A
FEHEENHEEHRRBEE /1EIF
BERxmmHEHENEERREE/1ES
Fo-RMEHSSEIEBETR

(a) BHAEEE
FERFRNERAREERAEK

BB :
55,248 4,249 - 363,835
9,924 97 - 11,146
36,657 = = 36,557
1,108 13,060 - 75,315
(39,332) (4,701) - (53,263)
(2,775) (831) = (3,606)

As at 1 January 2022 2022%1818 304,338

Additions hE

Additions as a result of R/ AHIBAR
acquisition/consolidation of MRE

subsidiaries
Business combination under HEEH THERAH

common control 61,147
Depreciation charge during ERNEER

the year (9,230)
Lease termination AEKIE
As at 31 December 2022 120228128310 (E5)

(restated) and 1 January 2023 2023F181H 357,380
Additions B 632
Depreciation charge HEER (8,814)
Impairment loss RERE (1,863)
As at 31 December 2023 12023%12831H 347335

60,730 11,874 - 429,984
94,389 26,136 39 121476
(38,671) (4,251) (17)  (51,753)

- - - (1,863)
116,448 33,759 302 497843

As at 31 December 2023, the land use certificate
of a leased land with a carrying amount of
RMB13,989,000 (2022: RMB23,251,000) was not
yet obtained by the Group.

F22023F 128310 » &EE H K
ESEREE A AR 13,989,000
7t (20224 : AE123,251,000
7o) WA E T M T AT

EHEEITRERAT R SFERS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

16. LEASES (continued) 16. *E.E (€=))
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEEEAHEABA @
(b) Lease liabilities (b) FHEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FREEEENEREREESN
movements during the year are as follows: TS &
2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
(EF))
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AE®EFT
At 1 January BM1B1H 73,824 62,475
New leases wHE 121,314 6,882
Additions as a result of R & &S B AR
acquisition/consolidation of MRE
subsidiaries - 30,727
Business combination under HEZES THERSH
common control - 7934
Accretion of interest recognised FREZHF BIEE
during the year 5,052 4,791
Payments during the year FEMN (51,520) (35,178)
Lease termination HEKIE - (3,807)
At 31 December 7128311 148,670 73,824
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BREAER 45,028 38,518
Non-current portion JERNERER > 103,642 35,306
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEEENREBEN T EMRERE
disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements. MizE44F0 I 85 o
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16. LEASES (continued) 16. *E.E (48)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEEEHEBA @
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) BRIHERZEE ISz B
relation to leases are as follows: F
2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
(%)
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR ®&F T AER#EF T
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEBENFE 5,052 4,791
Depreciation charge of FRREENITEER
right-of-use assets 51,753 53,263
Expense relating to short-term B HAMER NS
leases 9,403 7686
Gain on lease termination HE&IEWE - (201)
Total amount recognised in R R AR ER
profit or loss 66,208 65,539
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in (d) TREIRBRHBIEEMHBHRFRMH
note 39(c) to the financial statements. FE39(c) I EE o

EHREIIRERAR S FERS

199



iR M RRMEE

17. GOODWILL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

17. B2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023
20234

RMB'000
ARBT T

2022
20224
(restated)

&%)
RMB’000
ARBTT

At 1 January: M1B18 :
Cost B A 5,576,023 4,003,757
Accumulated impairment Rt RE (1,835,823) (1,727499)
Net carrying amount BREEFRE 3,740,200 2,276,258
Carrying amount at 1 January M1B1HNEREE 3,740,200 2,276,258
Impairment A (141,018) (108,324)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEI B A B - 171,564
Acquisition of subsidiaries under WEEHEEZEGI T B AR
common control (note 38) (fF5E38) = 1,400,702
Carrying amount at 31 December 1 12831HMEREE 3,599,182 3,740,200
At 31 December: ®128318 :
Cost D% 3,848,524 5,576,023
Accumulated impairment Rt RE (249,342) (1,835,823)
Net carrying amount IRME{EFRE 3,599,182 3,740,200
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17. GOODW"_L (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwiill
Year ended 31 December 2023

The Group re-evaluated internal management structure
after the completion of acquisition of the subsidiaries
under common control (note 38) and reorganised its
business units for internal management purposes (the
“Reorganisation”) during the year ended 31 December
2023. The Group re-allocated goodwill using a relative
value approach to its CGU groups at the date of

Reorganisation.

Goodwill is allocated to CGU groups according to the

internal management structure as follows:

CGU groups
WREEEEAAER

ARBT T

17. H& @
7 2 1Y (B R
Bt E2023F12531H IEEE

REE2023F12A31HIEFE > &
BN B EFER THNE RS
(Y5E38) U AR EERBENTE
MeTh WA B EEBREREE
HEA (TEA) - sEBENREABH
ERENEEZRBEENOEEH
W EEBMAR

HEERBEANNEERBIRREE
EEMARR AW

2023
20234
Accumulated
Cost impairment
%N REtRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AER®EF T

Net carrying
amount
AREVFE
RMB'000
ARHF T

Bengang CGU Group AR EEE B4R 116,861 - 116,861
Fukuang CGU Group mEIREELEMAR 595,488 - 595,488
Fuxin CGU Group EMIREELEMAR 278,649 - 278,649
Guangxi CGU ERIREELEN 31,411 - 31,411
Huaikuang CGU Group ERIREELEMAR 402,398 - 402,398
Jiangong CGU RERETELEN 44,080 = 44,080
Naoke CGU Group RIREEE B AR 1,031,567 - 1,031,567
Pingkuang CGU FRIREELEN 289,054 - 289,054
Ruizhou CGU Group BRI I < 7 4 BB 4R R 62,907 - 62,907
Sinophi CGU Group SinophilR & E L B (U

#HAl 249,342 (249,342) —
Tiemei CGU BEIREEL BN 57743 - 57743
Wugang CGU Group HiREEE B4R 465,031 - 465,031
Xukuang CGU BRERESESEM 215,736 - 215,736
Beicheng CGU IEWIREEEEN 8,257 = 8,257
Total 4Bt 3,848,524 (249,342) 3,599,182
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17. B5Z @
BHEEENR @
B 2023125315 IF EE (48)
HEESENANNTWERES
ERBEREBESEETE -ZSEE
FEREEKEEBH AN EERES
HHWIRERETERET Lt ERE
BEFERANEIEREZEYIWMT :

17. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU groups is first
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on a
five-year budgets approved by management. The key
assumptions used in estimating VIU is as follows:

2023
20234

Average Average
annual gross
revenue profit
growth rate margin
during the during the
forecast forecast
CGUs/CGU groups period period

TERHAR Y
THEE TERIHARERY
REEEBA/ReEEEMMER Wi R TFHEFRE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT
Bengang CGU Group AEIRSELEMAAR 1.6% 15.6%
Fukuang CGU Group BIERSELEMAER 2.7% 18.9%
Fuxin CGU Group B¥IREESEMAR 2.5% 25.3%
Guangxi CGU ErRREEL BN 75% 19.8%
Huaikuang CGU Group EERESELEMAER 35% 18.9%
Jiangong CGU BRERETELBN 1.5% 22.8%
Naoke CGU Group RIREEA B AR 3.5% 21.0%
Pingkuang CGU SEIREEL BN 4.9% 10.1%
Ruizhou CGU Group IHMNIREEAE B AR 79% 14.1%
Sinophi CGU Group SinophilR & E £ EAIAA 7! 5.7% 3.7%
Tiemei CGU BIERTEFTEQ 3.1% 21.5%
Wugang CGU Group HiIREEE B4R 4.9% 22.2%
Xukuang CGU REREEL BN 11.2% 16.7%
Beicheng CGU IEMIREEEEA 8.0% 21.9%

202 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEAES » UARETIR)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 15% (2022: 15%), which reflected
specific risks relating to each CGU Group. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-
year period is 2.5% (2022: 3%). This growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
relevant markets.

Since 2022, Sinophi CGU Group has been experiencing a
graudal loss of medical staff. Despite the implementation
of various measures to improve its performance, the
operating situation of Huaiyin Hospital in the Sinophi
CGU Group continued to deteriorate in 2023. Taking
into consideration the potential external challenges
and expected business and market developments, the
recoverable amount of the Sinophi CGU Group has been
determined based on higher of VIU and FVLCOD.

The carrying amount of Sinophi CGU group was written
down to the recoverable amount of RMB245,769,000,
determined based on FVLCOD. The FVLCOD of Sinophi
CGU group is determined based on the fair value of
individual asset/liability items, less costs of disposal.
The key unobservable input is the estimated price per
square metre of buildings. The fair value measurement
was categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the
inputs in the valuation technique used.

As a result of the assessment, impairment of goodwill
of RMB141,018,000, property, plant and equipment
of RMB208,926,000, and right-of-use assets of
RMB1,863,000 were provided during the year were
included in impairment loss of goodwill, impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment and impairment
loss on right-of-use assets. As the CGU group has
been reduced to its recoverable amount, any adverse
change in the assumptions used in the calculation of
recoverable amount would result in further impairment
losses.

BENRENE @

FERRREREFFANRATAEIRES
15% (2022%F : 15%) » R T RIS
EEBAANNERES R AR
HHBATFRIEERENIEER
#225% (20224 1 3%) o ZEERR
HBEEETESE LN RBTFHEIEREEX.

H20224 € > SinophilR & & &£ B A&
MK BEAE - BEEHTESER
MU EEFRIT > HSinophiIlREEL
BN ERERIN2023F 8K
ERNTFERIE - EREIEEIN KRB
EMFEHREF TS EE > SinophilR
TELEBMANTKREEHREEEAME
AEERAABEREERANERS
Eo

SinophilREELBEMAANNEEERD
OB ZE mT Uk Bl & 28 A R #245,769,000
T BRAEREDERBEANEBERE
B ASEE o SinophilR s EE B4
AR ARBEREERATIRIZEER]
BEE/BEEENAABEREEN
AEE - FEFTHRERHEAEBFN
FE B ARMEFHES - BIEFMER G
RN EABE ZANBESER
DEABB=MRANEE

ARETH G FREMBE X
BERREREREEEFDARE
141,018,0007% ~ A R #208,926,00070
K NER#1,863,0007cHY B E > BRAE
BEFFABBREBE YE -BEKR
REHEGERERREERERSR
FeARNRTEEEMUAMNE THE
H P glol & 28 > 5t 8 7)Y [0l & 28 s P
EANBRRNERANESH I EE
RE—DREBE-

ERBRIZRAMRAR —T_—FERS
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17. GOODW'LL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. B5Z @

Cost

%N
RMB'000
AR¥FTT

2022
20224
Accumulated

impairment
KETRE
RMB'000
ARET T

HENEENR @
#FE2022F 125315 I EE

Net carrying
amount
REVFE
RMB'000
ARF T

Ample Mighty CGU BHREEEEN 3,917.722 (1,727.499) 2,190,223
Bei Cheng CGU RS ELE B 8,257 = 8,257
Sinophi CGU SinophiI % & 4 B il 249,342 (108,324) 141,018
4,175,321 (1,835,823) 2,339,498

Acquisition of subsidiaries W& LRSI T
under common control BT 1,400,702 - 1,400,702
Total 4Bt 5,576,023 (1,835,823) 3,740,200

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
and sponsorship rights with carrying amounts of
RMB2,190,223,000 are allocated to the cash-generating
units of Ample Mighty Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries (the
“Ample Mighty CGU") for impairment testing. Goodwill
acquired through the business combination of Jinan
Bei Cheng Hospital Company Limited with a carrying
amount of RMB8,257000 is allocated to the cash-
generating unit of Jinan Bei Cheng Hospital Company
Limited (“Bei Cheng CGU") for impairment testing.
Goodwill acquired through the business combination of
Sinophi China Hospitals Limited with a carrying amount
of RMB141,018,000 is allocated to the cash-generating
unit of Sinophi China Hospitals Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Sinophi Group CGU") for impairment
testing.

EREB MBI EE R BEME
IREEAR2,190,223,000cE 9
EEARAIZEZ2ENBRABEESR
RARKRENBARNREEL B
(TEHREEELB M) UERER
Ao BBEBILBBRARABZE
BeaffExEERAEAART
8,257,0007t E R E AL BT
ERAB (TIEWMBREEEEMI) B
HeELEBUUFERERNA BB
Sinophi China Hospitals Limitedz 2
BeaftWBE EERAFEAMAR
#141,018,0007c > E2FLESinophi
China Hospitals Limited & & KB AT
IR EE BN (TSinophiEBIREE
B L)) UERERIE o
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Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the gradual
loss of medical staff at the hospitals of Sinophi Group
CGU due to the establishment of new public hospitals
in Huaiyin region had an unprecedented negative
impact on the business and operation of the Sinophi
Group CGU. Its impact on the future prospect of
Sinophi Group CGU could only be determined after
the strategic planning and budgeting process that
underpinned the year end impairment review. Taking
into consideration the potential external challenges
and expected business and market developments, the
recoverable amount of the Sinophi Group CGU as at the
end of the reporting period estimated by management
based on the current estimate of value in use has been
significantly reduced as compared to the previous
estimate, resulting in the write down of recoverable
amounts of RMB656,775,000 and the recognition of
impairment loss of goodwill allocated to the Sinophi
Group CGU of RMB108,324,000.

The recoverable amounts of Ample Mighty CGU and Bei
Cheng CGU have been determined based on value in
use calculations using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management by reference to a valuation
report prepared by an independent professional valuer.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 16%, which reflected specific risks relating to Ample
Mighty CGU and Bei Cheng CGU. The growth rate
used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-
year period is 3%. This growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the relevant
markets.

28R E A @
B FE2022F12531H IF F/Z (8)

HZE2022F12831HLEEE  #EEE
BIFT AL B PR AL 3L 2 SinophiEEE IR &
EXBABRENBREABEL K
HSinophiEEIREE LB EFKEN
SEELFMARNEGERE-HY
SinophiEBREELBAREKA S
Z2RE ARIFERBERTNE
BRAEEMNBEEREFTERE S ARE -
ZRENBENRKENTEREREED
LERE EEERERENEREE
58 [E5tSinophiEEIB S EE B
REEMARN T WOIEEERE EXHE
M EE K1 R /L & B ] Uk [o] & B8 UR
AR 656,775,000 R 2D B F
SinophiEEREEEBEANEERE
BB AR %£108,324,0007T °

BEERTELEARIHMREELS
Lz WElIEEREERAEESE
miEER  ERNRERERATE
REhEEE2EHIIEX(EEMR
MHNEERSRESHNRELEH
BRMBREMERT - BARESR
SRARERERDI15% RRT Eif
REETBUKRIHRSELBEMN
HEAEA R - AR EEBEL FH
ZHRERENERER/3% - ZIB R
RANBBBERTE LNRAFHER

%o

EHEEITRERAT R SFERS
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Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

The recoverable amount of the Sinophi Group
CGU has been determined based on value in use
calculations using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a ten-year period approved
by senior management by reference to a valuation
report prepared by an independent professional valuer.
Management considered that a forecast period of
ten years is appropriate because a longerterm and
continuous process are required to make up for the
number of lost staff as part of the long-term strategic
plan, and it will continue to affect the operating
conditions of Huaiyin Hospital in the following years.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 15%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the ten-year period is 3%.

Goodwill acquired through acquisition of
subsidiaries under common control amounted to
RMB1,400,702,000.

2 1Y E Al @
B FE2022F12531H IF F /= (#8)

Sinophife B R & E LBl 2 AR [O&
BB ERAEESEMETEMN > £
BHNRERERANDERSREEE
2EBUFXGEEMRROGEERS
REEHNWERETERENMHRSE
MER - EEER S ARFR R
et BN —BDMERAETIHER
ERRANKEERE SERFETE
HEBREARBENZE R R AL
TERARLBRE - BANRKEER
SRR ERD15% AR EB
BT+FHRZIRERENERER/3%

BRWBERES THWE QS WE
HmEE R AR1,400,702,0007T ©
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HitmA B &E
Operating
rights under
IOT GSP
arrangements Licence Total
IOTZHE T2 GSP
G Bk a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®ETT AR®TFT AER®BFT
31 December 2023 2023%FE12831H
Cost at 1 January 2023, 72023 181HH
net of accumulated A > H0BR R ET
amortisation and impairment  #85 & (& 68,657 - 68,657
Amortisation provided during £F 79 5 # %
the year (6,520) - (6,520)
Disposal BE (16,833) - (16,833)
At 31 December 2023 20232128318 45,304 - 45,304
At 31 December 2023: 72023%F128318 -
Cost D% 103,678 4,185 107,863
Accumulated amortisation and & 5t 85 K R E
impairment (58,374) (4,185) (62,559)
Net carrying amount IREEFEE 45,304 - 45,304
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18. Ht BT EE @

Operating
rights under
IOT GSP
arrangements Licence Total

OTEHE T2 GSP
S SEIE =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ABRBTT  ARBTT ARETR

31 December 2022 2022F12831H

Cost at 1 January 2022, net 532022518 1H®
of accumulated amortisation s > R 25t

and impairment HiHRE 75,351 = 75,351
Amortisation provided during £F P9 12 85 #

the year (6,694) - (6,694)
At 31 December 2022 72022%F12831H 68,657 - 68,657
At 31 December 2022: 720225128318
Cost D% 149,639 4,185 153,824
Accumulated amortisation and & 5+ #4 & B (&

impairment (80,982) (4,185) (85,167)
Net carrying amount ERT{E 3 %8 68,657 - 68,657
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REtEQARZIRE

2023 2022

202345 20224

RMB'000 RMB’000

AREFTT AREF T

Share of net assets DMEEEFE 982,350 980,453
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BEATERMT -

Place of
Particulars of registration and
capital held business

FFELRER S REEME

Beijing Jing Run Renkang Registered capital of ~ PRC/

Hospital Management RMB5,000,000 Chinese Mainland
Company Limited
("JR Renkang”)

BTRRBCREREEERAR SMEXARE HE/ FEIRH,
(TRB{C R 5,000,0007%

Beijing Jing Run Renkang Registered capital of ~ PRC/
Holdings Company Limited RMB1,000,000,000  Chinese Mainland
("JR Holdings")

TRRBCEERERAT  FMELARE i,/ hE R

(TR 1,000,000,0007%
Run Xiao Yi (Beijing) Registered capital of ~ PRC/
Technology Company RMB10,000,000 Chinese Mainland

Limited ("Run Xiao Yi")

BOBHE IR BRAR  HEMEXARE i,/ RE R
(FE/NE)) 10,000,0007T

Percentage of ownership interest
attributable to the Group Principal activity
AEERMEMEEEGE DL FEER
2023 2022
2023 20224

49% 49%  Provision of hospital
management
services

RUBREERE

49% 49%  Provision of
corporate
management
services

READEERY

49% 49%  Provision of
technology
development
services

Rt Rl A 3 AR S

The above investments are indirectly held by the
Company.

JR Renkang and JR Holdings are considered material
associates of the Group and are accounted for using the
equity method.

EHRETBRERBEEEE -

RBCERERBERRRAEERD
ERBMERT REREIETIER

EWRRIERARAT —S=FERS
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19.

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information in respect of JR Renkang and JR Holdings
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REE AT ZE @

TERRA\ATAARNBCENRBER
WHMHERBRE MAEBENERRE
RN ERECT THRE LEHA
MEMBRETHREEETHR

JR Renkang JR Holdings
B TR

RMB'000 RMB'000

Gross amounts of the associates BN\ B 4858

ARETT ARBTRT

Current assets MBIE E 127,927 1,038,413
Non-current assets ERBEE - 871,487
Current liabilities mENAaE (7,218) (35,812)
Net assets BEEFE 120,709 1,874,088
Revenue U &= 142,802 80,327
Profit and total comprehensive FEAMBREEINALLLE

income for the year 108,956 76,310
Reconciliation to the Group's BAREERBKELTN

interest of the associates: e i AR
Proportion of the Group's ownership Zx&EEHEHA A LLE 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the ZAREEMDIEHE AT

associate and carrying amount of EEFBENZZREN

the investment REE 59,147 918,303
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEEATZIKRE @

(continued)

JR Renkang JR Holdings
RECE RBER

RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARBTT

Gross amounts of the associates PN

Current assets MENEE 137816 1,024,289
Non-current assets ERBEE = 856,409
Current liabilities mEEE (7128) (20,462)
Net assets BEEFE 130,688 1,860,236
Revenue & 154,118 90,533
Profit and total comprehensive FEMEREERALLLE

income for the year 118,936 69,399
Reconciliation to the Group's BAREEREE AT

interest in the associates: 7 B AR
Proportion of the Group's ownership Z~E BB ER LS 49% 49%

Group's share of net assets of the AEBEMDIEHHE AT
associates and carrying amount of BEFERZZILEN
the investments EREE 64,037 911,516
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not

individually material:

Share of the associates’ profit and
total comprehensive income for

the year

Aggregate carrying amount of the

Group's investments in
the associates

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

2023
20234

RMB'000
ARBTT
LB QAT FEN B R
EEWAMREE

AEBRBERTZ
REMIREE
4,900

19. NEE AT ZIRE @

TRIRTHRAEBBEBIFERY
BMEADNRBYHER

2022
20224
RMB’000
AREF T

4,900

20. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS

RMB'000
ARETFT

20. R EIOTE e FEUR TR IE

2023
20234

2022
20224
RMB'000
ARMT T

Receivables from 0T hospitals 2% BI0TEE x> FE UK FR 1B 59,630 80,585
Impairment A (15,541) (15,541)
44,089 65,044

Less: Current portion included 78 : st AT FIE

in prepayments, RE & R EHME

deposits and other FIBEZ BERER

receivables 27 (6,655) (10,079)
Non-current portion JERNHERER 2 37,434 54,965
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20. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS 20. REHIOTE [z 2 FEULERhIE @)

(continued)

Pursuant to the |OT arrangements with certain not-for- RIEHEE TIFENEBRNIOTLHE
profit hospitals, the Group made investment amounts AEBBIOTERFHKRETRE &
to the 10T hospitals that will be repaid to the Group LR ERALAER (EBEEKE
(the “Repayable Investment Amounts”) in return for S8 UIBEIOTERMNK SR A
the operating rights of the IOT hospitals over a tenure HA16EI0F - EEER BT HARIK
ranging from 16 to 30 years. The Repayable Investment AR B URRIOTE ARS8
Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and will be repaid FENHEERETFEAER-

to the Group in equal annual instalments during the
tenure of the 10T arrangements.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of KEIOTERZEWRIBEZ REEE
receivables from |OT hospitals are as follows: BEZEHNT
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREF T
At beginning of year F4) 15,541 16,541
Impairment loss AER R - (1,000)
At end of year FR 15,541 15,541
21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 21. UanEEtEBHEEE
ABEGTHNEMEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®FT ARET T
Listed equity investment, ETRAKRE BAREE
at fair value 49,084 65,604
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21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued)

The listed equity investment was classified as financial
assets at FVTPL as the Group has not elected to
recognise the fair value gain or loss through other
comprehensive income. It was held for long-term
strategic purposes. The Group does not intend to
dispose of it within twelve months after the reporting
period and classifies the investment as non-current
assets.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
AMORTISED COST

21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UAanEBEt=BHES
AT ERMEE®
HRAEEEZERBZBEMEEWA
R ANEBERGDLEE W LEmK
ARENEAUA L EEHBEAHR
Bt A BGENEREE NEFEEER
HEEAR AEEBEEANKSHE
+_ERRNEEZERE  WHHED
HMAEREBEE-

Atz B A 5t BRI B R

BE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREF T

Unlisted debt investments, at FLEHEBRE
amortised cost A A AR - 850,887

Analysed into: A=

Current portion TENER - 324,301
Non-current portion JETRENEL - 526,586
- 850,887

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's other financial
assets at amortised cost represented unlisted debt
investments with fixed interest rates ranging from
3.35% to 4.20% per annum and maturity dates 2023 to
2025.

2022 12831H > AEEHMZ
BIERAENEHEEAIELD
BHERE BENEXASFEIIGNRE
4.20% > EIHAH £&2023F F20255F ¢
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayment for property,

23.

HthIEREBEE

2023
20234

2022
20224
(restated)

(E5)
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB'000
ARBTT

ME BB RRERYREA

plant and equipment 21,563 79,236
Relocation assets (note) wmBEE MIsh) 76,269 76,269
Other receivables HhpE W s1a 10,055 10,055

107,887 165,560

Note:

In 2019, the operation of 999 Medical Clinic (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“999
Clinic”) was suspended as the location of the site was included in the
local urban renewal plan. The Group entered into an agreement with
a real estate company in which the property of 999 Clinic would be
demolished and a new property with a floor area of no less than that of
the demolished property would be given to 999 Clinic as compensation
when the construction and the development of the new property have been
completed. Accordingly, property with a carrying amount of RMB76,269,000
was classified as to other non-current assets.

INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

24.

GER

120195 B EM AT EEHMtE) > FILE
BT =NBEMZE (R AREE2E ((=hM
FE) WEE AEEEA—BEMEATEIT T —
R BE R = NPT B IR > 7 5T AT
MERRFER  RHEEERT D RRFRYE
R ERHG = APIZEERME - EIL - ARE
B AR76,269,000THYEB D RARHMIER
BHEE

=8
@) HEMBRRENNTEERE

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

(restated)

G=7)

RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFTT AREFTT

Pharmaceuticals o 262,369 312,961
Medical devices and medical B yE A A B8 B FEM

consumables 39,707 54,514

302,076 367475

EHRRIERAIRAR

T CFERS



216

FEIEIRRMEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

24. INVENTORIES (continued)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in profit or
loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories EBEE&&EFEREE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Z& @

(b) BRI ABENFES
BOMWMT -

2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT

sold 4,477,328 3,630,392
Write-down of inventories FEME 216 19
4,477544 3,630,411

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

25. BEINE ZRIEREBKRERE

2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
(E27)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AB®F T AB®FT

Trade receivables U E 518
Public medical insurance program ‘A B Rt 1,608,931 1,550,867
Other customers HMER 372,299 369,589
Bills receivables FEW E 4R 132 6,698
1,981,362 1,927154
Impairment A (445,710) (436,484)
1,535,652 1,490,670

The Group's trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The credit
periods ranged from 30 to 180 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

FERARZRPNXSEREEZUEE
#ER BMERRIN TEFREER
BRI EHAAARI0E180K &
& B 270w SR W ER B9 B U IR AE 15 &R
BEE WRAFESEGEFT - LBEE
EERRE SREEETHERAH
fEER e AER W ELEWE HMIEK
RN BEFRT AT AERR IR
HthEEHEmEn - BIRE S RER
BRBRERES -
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AR e MR R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

25. RN E ZRIEKREBIREE

()

REBESHARBREZRBEREKRR
BERE DT (IRIR R B A RIREB
BEFEWT

2023 2022

20234 20224

(restated)

(E%)

RMB'000 RMB’000

AREET T ARET T

Within 1 year 18R 1,496,569 1,390,832
1 to 2 years 1824 28,450 53,877
Over 2 years BiE2E 10,633 45,961
1,535,652 1,490,670

The movements in the loss allowance for trade
receivables are as follows:

WE ZMIEEGEEHEINES SR

&
T

2023
20234

2022
20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB'000
ARBT T

RMB’000
AEBTT

At beginning of year T4 436,484 83,560
Acquisition/merger of subsidiaries W& S HITB AT - 307,032
Impairment losses, net REREREE 73,611 28,835
Amount written off as A R O] BY 35 TR IE S 2R

uncollectible, net (64,385) 17.057
At end of year FER 445,710 436,484

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

REREANRAEEEEETRE
D ERAEERE BEXE
REFRUGEEXNEEER P E5
DABIAR H o ZEHE KRR T BRI
BER ERBEURERSBHAY
ESHNARMEBESM  BAlRRRAEK
REERRAANGENFBENE
Bl o
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

25. RN E B RIEKRBIREE

(continued) (48)

Trade receivables from public medical insurance BETENEENHNER A LEE
program have no due date for which individual credit fRER st 8 FRIE N F HA B o FE U H th
evaluations are performed. The credit risk of trade ERFNEZMRENEERRERE®S
receivables from other customers is evaluated using a XEPEETAE -

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

22023%F12831H

Past due
bkl

Less than 1t02 Over 3
Current 1 year CES CELS

Bl DI 1226 HBE3F

Trade receivables from public ERAEBBERRTE
medical insurance program: IE

Expected credit loss rate TAEEEREX 16.2% = = = =
Gross carrying amount wEREE ARBTT)

(RMB'000) 1,608,931 - - - -
Expected credit losses TBREERE

(RMB’000) NGS5 260,083 - - - -

Trade receivables from other EUWEMEZENEZRIE .

customers:
Expected credit loss rate TREEEBEX - 2.2% 5.4% 94.0% 100.0%
Gross carrying amount HEREE AREBT T

(RMB'000) - 182,067 6,424 42,173 141,635
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE

(RMB'000) ANREFT) - 4,021 348 39,623 141,635

As at 31 December 2022 122022%F12831H

Past due
B HA
Less than 1t02 2t03 Over 3

Current 1 year CELS CELS CELS
B Al DRME 1225 2E3F HBIE3E
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

(&7 (€27 €27 €27 €27

BRAHBRRREBIE !

Trade receivables from public
medical insurance program:

Expected credit loss rate TEEEEREX 215% - - - -
Gross carrying amount HEREE ARBTT)

(RMB'000) 1,550,867 - - - -
Expected credit losses TAHEERE

(RMB’000) AREFD 333,206 - - - -

Trade receivables from other RKREMEENESFIE

customers:
Expected credit loss rate TREEEBEX - 0.2% 2.0% 15.9% 100.0%
Gross carrying amount HEREE AREBT T

(RMB'000) - 169,841 57,961 47520 94,267
Expected credit losses TAHEEEE

(RMB'000) (AR¥FT) - 295 1,156 7,560 94,267

2023FEM2022F12831H  FEIRE
EHR12831 H TR AR [ oY 5 18 BF RS
A—ER BHEEEBERIKC

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for bills
receivables as at 31 December is within one year and
the loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
was assessed to be minimal.
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AR e MR R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

26. CONTRACT ASSETS

26. SNEE

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234 20224

128318
RMB'000
ARBTT

128318
RMB'000
ARBTT

Contract assets arising from BHEERB
Hospital management services BIREIERP 21,603 29,120
Impairment BB (13,346) (7.248)
8,257 21,872

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of hospital management
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on the performance rating assessments of the Group.
The amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables when the rights to
consideration become unconditional, i.e. when the
performance rating assessments are finalised.

GHREEEMIEHE R EERT PR
AW mman s A RERI
WEURR AEBPRFSHRT(E B
REERF LA EFEGRT BIETAE
RERTER)  BERENEENS
BEMDEREREZRIE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

26. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for
contract assets as at 31 December is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. ENEE®

BHEERI12B31BFEREIEE
ERENT :

2023 2022

2023% 20224

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥F T AREF T

Within one year —FR 2,762 13,609
After one year —F% 5,495 8,263
Total contract assets BHREEMRRE 8,257 21,872

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of
contract assets are as follows:

NEEREBEREGENEZSHBE RN

-1 o)

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT

At the beginning of year F4]) 7,248 =
Impairment losses REEBEER 6,098 7248
At the end of year FR 13,346 7248

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The expect credit loss rate for contract assets at the
end of the reporting period is 62% (2022: 25%).

RERESHARAREEEETRE
D EEBEEEEREB ZHtER
PR T BER ML R B FEURR
SHEESNBERBESEHS BaI
KR BRREEBERRBANGERE
BENER RBREHEFR aNEE
NFERRE ERIBER62% (2022%F :
25%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MBI R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 27. ARIAREEREME
OTHER RECEIVABLES e
2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)
E=27)
Note RMB'000 RMB’'000
B 52 AREBFT ARETT
Prepayments to suppliers B 4 FE 7 2 (T B TR T R 23,762 45,533
Current portion of receivables R BI0TEE b 2 FE U R IE
from 10T hospitals BYBIHR &R > 20 6,655 10,079
Other receivable from RENRICBEBEINEM
“Yan Hua Hospital” (note) FEU R IE (B ) 189,747 189,747
Others HAh 146,854 185,292
367,018 430,651
Impairment B (96,519) (50,020)
270,499 380,631
Note: M 5T
Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Company Limited RIEBRNBRALRRCEEEREEEERR
(“Yan Hua Phoenix”) is the sponsor of Yan Hua Hospital, and Yan Hua AE) (MFRICEE) MFRICERRR2019F1821HiEE
Hospital unilaterally terminated the 10T agreement entered into between BHEARIEAAXNER REBBRRICERTILN
the Group, Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital (the “Yan Hua 10T I0T#% (MFR1CIOTIRE) - AEMMBER2019F4817
Agreement”) from 21 January 2019. The Group has submitted a civil claim HRFEEIOTHRZZZEIERTRE P RARER
statement against Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital in relation to ERXRERRFAREESFARICE R RRCER > EXA
the Yan Hua |OT Agreement dispute to the Beijing Second Intermediate B E M B BRI ER2019F1 B21HE A E
People’s Court on 17 April 2019 to seek the court’s ruling that the unilateral RS FRACIOTIRZREY -

termination of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital on 21 January 2019 shall be void.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e MBI R M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 27. FAIRIE-RESREME

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (continued)

On 18 December 2019, the Beijing Second Intermediate People’'s Court
issued a judgement in favour of the Group. Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital filed an appeal to the Beijing Higher People’s Court in January
2020. On 22 November 2021, the Beijing Higher People’s Court handed
down a judgment (2020 Jing Minzhong No.110) which rejected the appeal
filed by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital and upheld the original
judgment, and adjudged that such ruling shall be final.

Having considered the terms of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, the Group has
further claimed that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital should be liable
for damages for breach of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement. Accordingly, the
Group classified the related receivables and operating right under the 10T
arrangement with Yan Hua Hospital as other receivable.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
other receivables are as follows:

U R I8 @)
ffisE @ (4&)

R2019F 128188 ERTEZFRARZEREM
BRI R AEBE BT o MICE R RCER
BiR2020F 1 ARt R EMRAREREE Lo
®2021F 118228 It RT B R AR EREMR AR
(2020RER#£1105%) > B ERCBEM AL E TR
REHY E& MEREIRFIR WA T ILHRBERE IR

EBEFRACIOTIHRMER > ZERE—F BRI
BERFCERARZVERMEIOTHREZENS
it > A 52 B R E B BRI OT 2 Bk T BOAR R FE LG
TEFARRE A & R ) 8 72 H e R E

Hith W IE R EGREFENEHE
i

2023 2022

20234 20224

(restated)

(E27)

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFIT AREF T

At beginning of year F4 50,020 37969

Acquisition/merger of subsidiaries W& S HIB AT - 13,376

Impairment losses, net AERIEFRE 49,463 (219)
Amount written off as K UK [B1RY M 35 SR IR 5 RE

uncollectible, net (2,964) (1,1086)

At end of year FXR 96,519 50,020
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AR e MR R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS

28. HEMIRE FEY R RHI%E
MEBRIFIRITER

2023
20234

2022
20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB’000
AEBTT

RMB'000
AR®ET T

Cash and bank balances B& MIRTT4EER 1,280,382 3,118,890
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BIERIRITER (25,655) (17.759)

Restricted bank deposits FR&IMEIRITIER (18,630) (1,120)
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIREEEY 1,236,097 3,100,011

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB1,252,371,000 (2022: RMB3,075,142,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Chinese Mainland’'s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

RHREBR AEBUAREBHE
NIRERBITEFRSESARE
1,252,371,0007T (20224 : AR
3,075,142,0007T) - AR ¥ W ASEB H
SBMAEMEE  EREFEAZ
ShE BRI RGBS EER(TES
EBRE AEEZBEREETIN
BRBMEBNRTHARBERBRAHE
tmEEo-
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

28.

29.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED BANK
DEPOS'TS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and restricted and pledged bank deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of
delivery of goods, is as follows:

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERIREFEY RIREHIMHE
MERRETER @

IRTHRE UG HRTERFHFRR
WAMB - BHEMEREFRANTF—X
E-BARAF RIAEBENNER
TERME LEEZENEHRERZ
AR EREA B o RITAEER R SR M
MERFBRTERIEAGERTFR
MHAEENBRZRT

BB ZRIEREMRE

REMANENEZRERENLRE
ARE DD ER XN EmBHELN
Lk

2023 2022

20234 20224

(restated)

(BE%)

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥F T AREF T

Within 60 days 60K 796,279 584,092
61 to 180 days 61E180K 594,773 764,810
Over 180 days 180K LA E 340,443 385,395
1,731,495 1,734,297

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally granted on a credit term of 0 to 90
days.

BNESRERENREARE  —
ARIZOEIORMEEME L -
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AR e MR R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30.

Hth B RRIER st E R

2023
20234

2022
20224
(restated)

(E5)
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB'000
ARBTT

Staff cost payables FEfT B T4 648,491 619,892
Deposits from suppliers HEmRES 57,003 40,121
Other PRC tax payable HMtESFERE 34,178 36,777
Unpaid administrative expenses RANITHER 28,521 37212
Payables for purchases of property, BEYWXE -BMENZREZ
plant and equipment FEfIFRIE 150,955 159,608
Unpaid consideration for acquisition WEEHIE AT Z RSB
of subsidiaries 16,415 35,434
Advances from healthcare security 2K B B (R & IR
administration 45,043 150,449
Contract liabilities (note) aH85E () 113,101 167,920
Others Hih 576,837 451,579
1,670,544 1,698,992
Note: Pt -
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: SHEENBEATT

2022
20224
(restated)
(E71)
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TTT AR#TTT

Short-term advances received from customers: BUWREFEIEER
General healthcare services e BREARES 109,779 159,143
Other services HAth AR5 3,322 8,777
Total contract liabilities BHaEEE 113,101 167,920

Contract liabilities primarily arises from the considerations received from
customers before the Group satisfying performance obligations. It would
be recognised as revenue upon the rendering of services. The contract
liabilities balance as at 1 January 2023 and 2022 have been substantially
recognised as revenue during the respective years.

EHRRIERAIRAR

AHBEIERAEEBTRASTIANHBEKSE
FHREBEL -HRNRHIRHERRED AU 5
2023F K2022F 1 B1HW N B BERAIEMNE
RAEE AR AU
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e MBI R M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 31. st R IRITER
BORROWINGS
2022
20224
(restated)
(&)
Effective Effective
Interest Interest
rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%) RMB’000
BEANZE®%) ARETxT BEAINR®% ARETFT
Current RE
Borrowings — unsecured B — LT 1-6 1,277,874 1-6 1,310,636
Non-current JERE
Borrowings — unsecured B —EIKE 1-4 884,846 1-6 1,017,263
2023 2022
20234 2022£
(restated)
(&%)
RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBFT AE®EFT
Analysed into: DUWT -
Borrowings repayable: BEMER .
Within one year or on demand —FARAFZER 1,277,874 1,310,636
In the second year B_E 20,846 33,268
In the third year and after B=FE/RMUE 864,000 983,995
2,162,720 2,327899
As at 31 December 2023, all of the bank borrowings are FR2023%F 128318 FrBAIRITERT
dominated in RMB. MARMEEE
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AR e MR R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

32. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
OBLIGATIONS

Total estimated benefit payable to

32. RERAGEISE

2023
20234

2022
20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB'000
ARBT T

RMB'000
AEBTT

st RIRA B EF

retired staffs 4azE 395,892 391,282
Less: current portion recorded in B ST AEMENRIBR

other payables and accruals fEstE R REZ D 31,466 16,424

Carrying amount IREE 364,426 374,858

The Group operates unfunded defined benefit plans for
qualifying staff of certain hospitals. Under the plans, the
qualifying staff are entitled to retirement benefits.

The plan exposes the Group to interest rate risk and
the risk of changes in the life expectancy for the
pensioners.

FERABETEBRENGERARE
BEEHEENRTERMNFTE -REZF
stE ER A BT ERRKER -

Z 5t B {5 74 £ 6 1 B ) =X R B R AR AR
TENESWEENER-
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

32. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
OBL'GAT'ONS (continued)

The movements in the present value of the defined
benefit obligations are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. AERAGETEE®

RERNBEZREESHUT !

2023 2022

20234 20224

(restated)

(E27)

RMB'000 RMB'000

AE®BFT AE®BTT

At 1 January ®1B1H 391,282 37478

Acquisition of subsidiaries BB E R - 14,853

Business combination under HEZEG THEBSH

common control - 366,291

Service cost ARFS AL AR 17,487 1,462

Interest cost EIRSY2 %N 10,798 11,905

Benefit paid B EF (37,981) (39,101)
Re-measurement losses/(gains) in ~ REMEEWARNEHT=

other comprehensive income 518, (W) 14,306 (1,606)

At 31 December ®12831H 395,892 391,282

The remeasurement of the defined benefit obligations
represent mainly actuarial (gains)/losses arising from
changes in demographic assumptions, financial
assumptions and experiences adjustments.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

Discount rate BRIR =
Life expectancy SERE—

REBNEENEHRSHEETEZEHAN
AORBRR -FHRRMERAENE
EMELNBEE Wm) 8o

REBMNEBEERMHBEMLEER
BENENERABEMGES AFER
$o

BERREANIZFERRUWT ¢

2022
20224

(restated)

(7))

2.20% - 2.80% 2.35% - 3.15%
88.4 88.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MBI R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

32. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
OBLIGAT|ONS (continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is
shown below:

32. RERAFESEw

RBREHR HEZRKRHTEEHR
E oM TR

Increase Increase

(decrease) (decrease)

in defined in defined

Increase benefit  Decrease benefit

in rate/year  obligation in rate/year obligation

RERHE RERHE

F=/ 0 I E==pll

FRUEM CRL) FEURLD CiL)

RMB’000 % RMB'000

AREF T AREFTT
2023 20235

Discount rate ARIR = 1.00 (38,526) 1.00 46,724

Life expectancy JEst S 1 year 1 year

— 12,805 —&F (12,798)
2022 20225
(restated) (E5)

Discount rate EEETES 1.00 (36,496) 1.00 44,110

Life expectancy FEstE 1 year 1 year
—F 12,088 —4F (12,080)
EHBEERARAT —E=—FERE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

32. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

33.

230  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based
on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes
in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. AERAGETEE®

EX2IHNBREDTERE—ES
AMSH > & AR B RRERS
ARTERRVLEAEZCMERTE
BHNEREENFE -BREDTE
REZRRWEE MAAAEMEKRR
AR T8 EX2FMBRE DT
AUORBAERBANEENEREL
HABBRRAARI BB I EEE -

33. IREMRIA

FREENBEEBEREEZEZFU
T

RIEMIERA R

Depreciation

allowance

in excess

Right-of-use of related

assets  depreciation Others

U
A
ARBERE
RMB'000
ARETTL

B ARTE
i E A
RMB'000
ARETT

ERREE
RMB'000
ARBFT

st
RMB'000
AEETT

At 1 January 2022 1202281810 93,027 21,124 3,935 1,143 119,229
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to (Gt A) /NBBZZEERE

profit or loss (note 12) (MizE12) (28,657) (3,630) 218 3,470 (28,599)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 120226128318 K

31 December 2022 and at 20231B1HZ

1 January 2023 BEIERESE 64,370 17494 4,153 4,613 90,630
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss 3t A8 % 2 EIERIE

(note 12) (Ff5312) (36,085) (1,358) (594) (3,089) (41,126)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 2023&F12831HZ

31 December 2023 BEERIEEE 28,285 16,136 3,559 1,524 49,504
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33 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

Deferred tax assets

Impairment
of financial
assets
THEEZ
HE
RMB’000
ARETFT

33. IREMRIE @)

RIEMIEE E

Lease
liabilities

Tax

losses Others Total

HEER
RMB'000
ARBTTT

HEAR
RMB'000
ARBTTT

Hf
RMB'000
AEBTTT

3
RMB'000
ARBTFT

At 1 January 2022 1202251818 10,297 1,854 21,124 884 34,159
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to  EXEt A/ (18) FEERRK 2

the consolidated statement of EILRIE (z12)

profit or loss during the year

(note 12) 1,875 13,404 (3,630) (191) 11,458
Gross deferred tax assets at 20225128318k

31 December 2022 and at 2023518182

1 January 2023 BREIRBEE 12,172 15,258 17,494 693 45,617
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to  ERFT A/ (B) GEEBRREZ

the consolidated statement of EIERIE (HE12)

profit or loss during the year

(note 12) 2,799 425 (1,641) 10,699 12,282
Gross deferred tax assets at 1202381283182

31 December 2023 BETRBEEE 14,971 15,683 15,853 11,392 57,899

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

BIBMES  HRELERREENE
BEEMBRTRRPIEH - LUTRE
AEBPLYFHRE M S AVELEIRERER
BIDH -

2023
20234

2022
20224
RMB'000
AREF T

RMB'000
ARBTT

Net deferred tax assets recognised HixE& M FERRIREFEST

in the consolidated statement of ZIRERIBE EFE

financial position 42,178 26,303
Net deferred tax liabilities iR & B AR R R

recognised in the consolidated ZIRERIBE EFRE

statement of financial position (33,783) (71,316)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) EEMIBEE  (BE) F5E 8,395 (45,013)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2.4(s), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB157.899,000 (2022: RMB99,359,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses arising in
Chinese Mainland will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Chinese Mainland. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Chinese Mainland and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Chinese Mainland in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

IRIERIBE E @)

RIEMIEE2. 4(s)FT S B 5T EER » AEEE
W R LR ET IR 75 A 1B A R 157,899,000
76 (20224 : AR #99,359,0007T) FER
RERIBE E > RRAERREEA#
B REBE T ARSER R IRERRFEA
HZEEHRIKE - NP EAMEENR
BEEN—EE2AFHBER AR
BEELBEBEN AN RKEZRRF
e

BIEPBEEEMERE HEFRPEA
MBI ERECEDIIEEES
IR EHUI10% N TEIRI - B #E
ERBE2008FE1H1HEEXN BAR
2007 12B3 B2 EBFIEEN W E
MEHAEAMEIIEGEENEEER
ZEEREHE AR ERRENTE
RREEX-RAEEMS  BARES
10% o A It > F#E2008FE1 B 1 HFA
EXNlm *EEBEEEMEETER
Bl Py B% 32 B9 B B A Bl D EC B BR B
TEIRTR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

At 31 December 2023, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Chinese Mainland. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Chinese
Mainland for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB3,639,930,000
(2022: RMB3,160,138,000 (restated)) at 31 December
2023.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

The provision mainly represented management's best
estimate of the Group's liabilities arising from the
settlement of the pending medical dispute litigations.
The estimation is reassessed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.

IRIERIBEE E @)

R2023%F 128310 IERAEE R
R P9 3 AR 32 2 B B A Bl B TE IR
Mz R EH W & BT TEIRIR M
HRIEIER BEERA EEWB LS
£ 0] 78 R A9 A8 2Kk 45 Bic A8 BE UK 5 B9 BT BE
MEE - R2023F 128310 » W ERE
SRR TR 18 & & 2 B 7Y o [ P 3 S 8
NEZREMEERERBEN
%A AR 13,639,930,0007T (20224 :
AR #3,160,138,0007T (EF)) ©

ARBARRZARELE S EEE
RIPRISMER

BEITERMEEERNAERR AR
MARNBERFIZFAELENEGEPRN
EERREMGS st B ERFEERMN
sl WAEBERYIER FETES] -

ERBRIZRAMRAR —T_—FERS



iR M RRMEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEBHES » UARETR)

35. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. g7
B 15

2023 2022
20234 20224

HKD'000 HKD'000
THET TAT

Authorised: EE

3,040,000,000 ordinary shares of 3,040,000,0008%

HK$0.00025 each S R%0.000257 7TV @ AR 760 760

Issued and fully paid: ERITRER :

1,296,676,516 ordinary shares of 1,296,676,5165%

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT

HK$0.00025 each S 20.0002574 o HY & @8 B 267 267

36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 123 to 124 of the financial statements.

(a) Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
Chinese Mainland, a portion of the profits of the
Company's subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland has
been transferred to the statutory surplus reserve
funds which are restricted to use.

36. f#fA

FEBRAFENUMEENFES
BRHBFHENMBFHRERFEI123EE
BIABGEEmEHRERDIIR

(a) EEBBRAE
1RI% R E Py B9 7 RS R AR -
A ABERER MBI B AT 8
BAFBEBECRBAE
AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

(b) Share based payment reverse

(c)

The share-based payment reverse comprises the
fair value of shares awarded which are yet to be
vested, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to treasury share reserve and
capital reserve when the related share awards are
vested, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related share awards expire or be forfeited.

Actuarial reserve

The actuarial changes reserve comprises the
remeasurements arising from changes in
demographic assumptions, financial assumptions
and experiences adjustments, as further explained
in the accounting policy for defined benefit plan in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

(b) B={n {37k f#

(c)

EHRRERARAE

A7 5 R 17 5 B4 1 o B B Y 22
BROAREE SUNMHRE
Bt 5£2. 470 DURR 10 9 "R BY & 51 I
RPE—DERE - ZRIBERER
FRNREBBFEREEFR
DREBRERANR  HEHERRK
PEBERIOINFERERE
FHE e

mEHEAE
BEEDRELETERADR
BB RRAERAENE
£ M EH 5t 8 > B R
RIE2 4R REBFH NG
SBRRE— S R

TECCFERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material TREFINEBMBEBBEERIFEFERERDN
non-controlling interests are set out below: KEEMBRBNFE !

Percentage of equity interest held HIFIEREFIFAEN

by non-controlling interests: B RELEA
Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. IERMmREEREREAR

(“Jian Gong Hospital”) (M2 =8k) 20.0% 20.0%
Runneng Medical Management HEEBEEERBRARE

Co., Ltd (“Run Neng”) (TEBE)) 35.0% 35.0%
Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital HEETERERBREAT

Co., Ltd. (“Huaiyin Hospital (DB )

Management”) 20.0% 20.0%
China Resource Wugang (Hubei) ZHEEE CH1b) B iE

Hospital Management Co., Ltd. BRAR (TZEBRHE)

("CR Wugang”) 49.0% 49.0%
China Resources Healthcare EHERE (ER £EARAR

(Liaoning) Group Co., Ltd. (TEEHE=REEER))

(“CR Liaoning Healthcare Group”) 23.9% 23.9%

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit/(loss) for the year allocated
to non-controlling interests:

Jian Gong Hospital

Run Neng

Huanyin Hospital Management

CR Wugang

CR Liaoning Healthcare Group

Total comprehensive income
allocated to non-controlling
interests:

Jian Gong Hospital

Run Neng

Huanyin Hospital Management

CR Wugang

CR Liaoning Healthcare Group

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interest:

Jian Gong Hospital

Run Neng

CR Wugang

Balances of non-controlling
interests at the reporting date:

Jian Gong Hospital

Run Neng

Huanyin Hospital Management

CR Wugang

CR Liaoning Healthcare Group

= A
Igl\m

RAFsER R MY 5E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (FRBAEIEBEE » UARESTIR)

JEIERERE DA

FEANE, (FB8) !
=5 11,290
T BE 17,220
R EBE (70,444)
%JF% ﬂﬂ 23,558

DEEEIFERERNEE

U A AR %E
B= R 11,310
TEHE 17,220
2B (70,444)
Bl 23,313
EHEEREE 78,866
EIFER RS (TRE
BE R 8,303
T BE 1,050
== E I 3,567
RREH ZIEIER TSGR
==Y 124,393
T BE 159,888
B 53,207
B i 165,318
EHRBREEEHR 650,671

EHRRERARAT

7209
12,145
(24,132)
24,654
37,012

7262
12,145
(24,132)
24,542
40,739

121,386
143,718
123,651
145,572
571,805

TR CFEWS
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. BEERIEIZERERZIER
EMNEAT @

LB AR MBER R EH 5
TemRBEZCHEIEERARN AT BT
SHATZ R -

Huaiyin CR Liaoning
Jian Gong Hospital Healthcare
Hospital Run Neng ~ Management CR Wugang Group
EHEE
B=EBR T ERBL R BEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETFTT ARETT ARETRT
Revenue e 906,642 687,824 69,652 1,125,687 3,440,842
Total expenses, net BEZTE (850,094) (638,624) (421,872) (1,078,110) (3,110,860)
Profit for the year ERTIE 56,449 49,200 (352,220) 48,077 344,558
Total comprehensive income FEZEWBALE
for the year 56,548 49,200 (352,220) 47577 329,982
Current assets REEE 522,923 517,327 136,008 637,510 1,694,482
Non-current assets FRBEE 294,736 120,926 245,141 286,250 2,769,493
Current liabilities REBE (192,103) (168,258) (104,418) (484,738) (1,404,891)
Non-current liabilities S iEI=L (3,593) (13,173) (10,694) (101,638) (336,613)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RETEEME/ ()
operating activities REREFHE 73,71 76,179 (61,999) 174,632 605,741
Net cash flows (used in)/from REEE FIR) /i
investing activities ReREsHE (37,859) (89,379) 6,459 (150,417) 747,158
Net cash flows used in MEEEMARE
financing activities TERE (36,749) - - (59,444) (1,354,529)

Net decrease in cash and cash ~ BHE&RIREFEYF R/
equivalents (867)

(13,200) (55,540) (35,229) (1,630)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MBI R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIESWITH 37 A EAJEIERERSZIER
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING EffEAT @
|NTERESTS (continued)

Huaiyin CR Liaoning
Jian Gong Hospital Healthcare
Hospital Run Neng ~ Management CR Wugang Group

£HEY
REER BE  REER  EMRE  RE%E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  ARMTT  ARMTR  AREBTR

Revenue Wi 758,622 639,678 185,008 985,971 1,911,652
Total expenses, net BRETFE (722,576) (604,979) (305,666) (935,657 (1,754,736)
Profit for the year FEFE 36,046 34,699 (120,658) 50,314 154,861
Total comprehensive income FEZABALE

for the year 36,311 34,699 (120,658) 50,086 156,916
Current assets MBEE 663,204 465,399 317249 619,854 1,665,308
Non-current assets ERBEE 291,695 136,519 495,524 206,260 3,840,071
Current liabilities nBaE (342,551) (170,601) (147737) (474,969) (1,701,566)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (5,419) (20,696) (46,779) (54,059) (362,584)
Net cash flows (used in)/from REEE FTR) /A

operating activities RemessE (7711) (213,477) (76,936) (29,981) 200,562
Net cash flows used in REEZBMARERE

investing activities BE (471,598) (19,782) (5,831) (64,529) (426,857)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RETEME/ FTA)

financing activities ReRgss 177449 (12,530) (19,275) (19,733) (194,260)

Net decrease in cash and cash ~ HERRELZEY
equivalents FRED (301,860) (245,789) (102,042) (114,243) (420,555)
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AR e MBI R M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 38. HEIIZEFITHEFEAH
COMMON CONTROL

On 25 June 2023, the Group acquired equity interest of 122023568250  AEBE B R R B
below subsidiaries from fellow subsidiaries. Details of NEUEE LT MY B 2 B BB HE - B UK
the acquired subsidiaries are as follows: BRBARNFBUT
Voting rights/ Total cash
effective consideration
Name of the company equity interests Principal activities RMB'000
RERE
1zs
NCIEZY R/ BRI FEEE AR%T T
CR Liaoning Healthcare Group 76.10%/76.10% Hospital and 3,503,219
corporate

management and
supply chain services

EHRERREER L UNCIR g
& 5 AR 75
Shenzhen Development 100.00%/100.00%  Supply chain services 139,383
RNEEKE AR
Jiangxi Medical Group 80.00%/80.00% Hospital and 256,282
corporate

management and
supply chain services

IRBEER BIREABSEMM

e % AR 75
As Jiangxi Medical Group, CR Liaoning Healthcare HINW IABEEE EHEERESE
Group and Shenzhen Development (collectively, ERFINEXERE KBRTE&HE
the “Combined Entities”) and the Group are under BB BAEREERSHABRBES
common control of China Resources Healthcare BREEEBRAR (MFEBER)) HE
Group Limited (“CR Healthcare”) before and after the el A RIS W IERS E M E » AL
business combination and the control is not transitory, WEIEEEEE EHEERESE
the acquisition of Jiangxi Medical Group, CR Liaoning BRFINEEREFRRATRZHE
Healthcare Group and Shenzhen Development was EHIBRNERGH

considered as a business combination involving entities
under common control.
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VoPN:

iR e MR AR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

38. HEEFITHEHSH @

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER

COMMON CONTROL (continued)

The financial performance previously reported by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 has
been restated to include the operating results of the
combining entities from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities first came
under common control (i.e. 2 June 2022), where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination, as set out below:

ANEBELRNEE2022612831H 1k

FEIBHF BT

REKEY UE

BETXFRHEGHERERFZ25 BN
EXEEHBERBEXRZHRBZESR BB

(BN20224%E682H)
BHER:

DR (L8 HA R
mAsmEH G HE

CR Liaoning Jiangxi
Healthcare Shenzhen Medical
The Group Group  Development Group Elimination The Group
KEE 353 FIEERE TRERERE i KEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETR ARETE ARETR
(as previously (as
reported) restated)
(FERIFIR) (87
REVENUE 6 5,620,461 1,911,662 22,372 418,211 (71,409) 7901,287
Cost of sales HEMAK (4,649,321) (1,624,519) (14,777) (378,244) 71,409 (6,595,452)
Gross profit E 971,140 287133 7595 39,967 - 1,305,835
Other income Het A 185,938 37270 158 5,521 - 228,887
Other gains and losses, net ~ EftliE KEEFE (160,100) (2,049) (41) (1,678) - (163,868)
Selling and distribution expenses $4 & & 2 #5 & A (19,532) - - - - (19,532)
Administrative expenses THRER (628,750) (159,335) (248) (20,328) = (808,661)
Financial costs BHBER (48,763) (12,972) - (9,413) = (71,148)
Impairment losses on financial  £BREAEEREHE
and contract assets, net X (37264) 14,537 - (5,079) - (27.806)
Impairment loss on property,  ¥1¥ BERRERESE
plant and equipment - (510) = = - (510)
Impairment loss of goodwill  BERERSE (108,324) - - - - (108,324)
Share of profits and losses of:  FE{GFE K518 :
A joint venture —H&ERT (4.217) - - - - (4,217)
Associates BERE 92,285 - - - - 92,285
PROFIT BEFORE TAX HRATAE 242,413 164,074 7464 8,990 - 422,941
Income tax s (83,071) (9,213) (2,376) - - (94,660)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFNE 159,342 154,861 5,088 8,990 - 328,281
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hi2EWA
INCOME
- re-measurement gains on  —REBHBINEH 2
defined benefit plans g (457) 2,055 - 8 - 1,606
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE HRE2EWALE
INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 158,885 156,916 5,088 8,998 - 329,887
Attributable to FEfh
Owners of the Company AREEBA 138,576 116,177 5,088 7186 = 267,027
Non-controlling interests R 20,309 40,739 - 1,812 = 62,860
158,885 156,916 5,088 8,998 - 329,887
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (continued)

38. HEEFITHEHSH®W

EEKLF 2022412831 H AR
MERRELES > UBETXME
EHERBEZERKER BIEBRERE)
N BHRRZEEERINEERE

The financial position previously reported by the
Group as 31 December 2022 has been restated to
include the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities recognised at the carrying value based on the

controlling shareholder’s financial statements (i.e.CR
Healthcare) as set out below:

& :

CR Liaoning Jiangxi Inter-
Healthcare Shenzhen Medical company
The Group Development Group elimination The Group
AEE FIELRE NG|k AEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETR
(as previously (as
reported) restated)
(FERIFIR) (E7)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRaEE
Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1¥ R RRE 1,933,225 2,634,834 - 419,633 = 4,987692
Right-of-use assets TREEE 357708 66,989 = 5,287 = 429,984
Goodwill kS 2,339,498 1,048,741 - 351,961 - 3,740,200
Other intangible assets AtEpEE 68,657 - - - = 68,657
Investments in associates REEREAZEE 980,453 - - - - 980,453
Receivables from invest operate RERE-EE-HX
transfer (“10T") hospitals (TioT)) Bz z YR IE 54,965 - - - - 54,965
Financial assets at fair value ~ MARBEEEHES
through prof HAER (UARER
HERHEHHABR])
NEeREE 65,604 - - - - 65,604
Other financial assets at Btz g At 2N
amortised cost SHEE 526,586 - - = = 526,586
Deferred tax assets REREEE 26,303 - - - - 26,303
Prepayment to related parties  JBfJF R 5 2 FE - 3,166 - 2,117 = 5,283
Other non-current assets EtIERBEE 76,269 86,341 = 2,950 = 165,560
Total non-current assets FRYEELH 6,429,268 3,840,071 - 781,948 - 11,051,287
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories & 217347 120,286 - 29,842 - 367475
Trade and bills receivables EREZRERENER 796,107 537,050 1,238 156,275 = 1,490,670
Contract assets BHEE 21,872 = = = = 21,872
Prepayments, deposits and other BTFUE RS &
receivables HtE ks 312,842 58,362 218 9,209 - 380,631
Due from related parties PR A TR 22,670 909,942 9,921 129,430 (9,515) 1,062,448
Other financial assets at HEtg g At 2R
amortised cost THEE 324,301 - - - - 324,301
Restricted and pledged bank ~ [RFIHFIEEIFRITER
deposits 1,152 - - 17727 - 18,879
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 2,977543 39,668 11,706 71,094 = 3,100,011
Total current assets MEEERE 4,673,834 1,665,308 23,083 413577 (9515) 6,766,287
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MBI R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RSB HEEPES - LARKSIT)

38. HEEFITHEHSH @

CR Liaoning Jiangxi Inter-
Healthcare Shenzhen Medical company
The Group Group  Development Group elimination The Group
EBRE ]| IF
PN REE EERE BEEE  NRMEH PN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT AREBTr ARETr AR®Tx ARETR ARET:
(as previously (as
reported) restated)
(7R3 (E7)
CURRENT LIABILITIES Pk )=kE]
Trade and bills payables EREZTERENEE 916,921 580,524 - 236,852 = 1,734,297
Other payables and accruals ~ HtERFIEREER 745,871 813,287 6,886 132,948 = 1,698,992
Due to related parties ET BB A RB 147007 121,881 183 44,422 (9,515) 303,978
Interest-bearing bank HERITHER
borrowings 1,012,756 177625 - 120,255 - 1,310,636
Lease liabilities HESR 35,052 3,462 - 4 = 38,518
Deferred income FEIEWA 2,488 - - - = 2,488
Tax payable EaRE 30,614 4,787 - - = 35,401
Total current liabilities TBREEE 2,890,709 1,701,566 7069 534,481 (9,615) 5,124,310
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BB EFE 1,783,125 (36,258) 16,014 (120,904) - 1641977
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERTBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,212,393 3,803,813 16,014 661,044 - 12,693,264
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ JE&I&E
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t & $R1TEM 1,007636 3,600 - 6,027 = 1,017263
Leased liabilities HESR 32,189 317 - - - 35,306
Retirement benefit obligations R IKEFIE(E 51,763 317675 = 5,420 = 374,858
Deferred income FEIEWA 23,734 15,799 - 1,916 = 41,449
Deferred tax liabilities RILRIESE 71,316 - - - = 71,316
Provision B 1,431 22,393 - 60 - 23,884
Amounts due to related company {3 BiE#A 5] 2 FUE - - - 449,017 - 449,017
Other payables and accruals ~ H B FIEREER
(non-current) €E) 26,271 = = = = 26,271
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEE 1,214,340 362,584 - 462,440 - 2,039,364
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,998,053 3,441,229 16,014 198,604 - 10,653,900
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of ZATEAE A
the Company GRS
Share capital (AN 267 2,737242 - 200,000 (2,937242) 267
Reserves Tt 6,461,622 703,987 16,014 (1,396) 2,325,717 9,505,944
6,461,889 3,441,229 16,014 198,604 (611,525) 9,506,211
Non-controlling interests R 536,164 - - - 611,525 1,147,689
Total equity el 6,998,053 3,441,229 16,014 198,604 - 10,653,900
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (continued)

The cash flows previously reported by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been restated to
include the cash flows of the combining entities from
the earliest date presented or since the date when
combining entities first came under common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination, as set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZEFH THEFSH @

NEBIAINEE20225128318 1k
FEIRNBES RS EKES > UE
BETITXmEEcHERBEREEZSBH
EXEEHEBERZHEEZEG HE
Jv(;E (L/(E%M%FE%%E) E"]EE@/MLE g
MmAmEFRS B !

CR Liaoning Jiangxi Inter-
Healthcare Shenzhen Medical company
The Group Group  Development Group elimination The Group
KEE BREE RIEE£LE IABEEE  AFMEH KEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RM RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TRm . AREFT ARETR
(as previously (as
reported) restated)
(5cAi5I3R) (E31)
Net cash flows from operating & EEFHEREREFH
activities 626,583 200,562 4,804 31,639 - 863,588
Net cash flows from/(used in) ~ REEEIFTR/ (FTF) e
investing activities MEFE 57342 (426,857) 5,000 (129,506) = (494,021)
Net cash flows (used in)/ REEH A /FERe
from financing activities MEFE (33,167) (194,260) - 3,736 - (223,691)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) R RR&EEMIEM/
IN CASH AND CASH () 3%
EQUIVALENTS 650,758 (420,555) 9,804 (94,131) - 145,876
Cash and cash equivalents at iR ERIEEZEBY
beginning of period 2,324,051 460,223 1,902 165,225 - 2,951,401
Effect of exchange rate changes, BX 85 £ 3%
net 2,734 - - - - 2,734
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Bk R & RIR £ S BY)
AT END OF PERIOD 2,977543 39,668 11,706 71,094 - 3,100,011

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB121,314,000 and RMB121,314,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for office properties (2022: RMB6,882,000 and
RMB6,882,000).

9. RAEHETREWMRAVME

(a) EBIFRERH

FROAEEEABRAYERES
ZHERZEREEERTEE
BEENIERSE NS AE A
E#121,314,000cH AR ¥
121,314,0007T (2022%F : AR
6,882,000 F1 A £ 166,882,000
JT) °
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. AR RMERRMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued) (@)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) REMBEHEENER
financing activities EEy
2023 20234
Interest-
bearing
bank Lease Other
borrowings liabilities Liabilities
TR
WITRER HE&E H&E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT
At 1 January 2023 722023F181H 2,327,899 73,824 30,151
New leases WHE - 121,314 -
Changes from financing ~EBR&REH
cash flows (218,813) (46,468) -
Foreign exchange =)
movement 53,634 - -
Interest expense FERX 109,810 5,052 1,406
Interest paid classified as DEAZEZEEERM
financing cash flows BFE (109,810) (5,052) (1,406)
At 31 December 2023 $22023%12831H 2,162,720 148,670 30,151

4
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REHEMERRNME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued) ()
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) REEMETBELENER
financing activities (continued) 8w
2022 20224
Interest-
bearing
bank Lease Other
borrowings liabilities Liabilities
sHERTT
RN HE&aE HthaE|
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFx AR®ETT
At 1 January 2022 20221818 1,665,899 62,475 =
New leases WHE - 6,882 -
Addition #=m = - 30,625
Changes from financing EEBREHEH
cash flows (6,030) (30,387) (474)
Foreign exchange (=)
movement 161,612 - -
Interest expense MEFAX 51,110 4,791 495
Interest paid classified as DiEAZBERE K
financing cash flows BAFE (51,110) (4,791) (495)

Increase arising from WEE, SHEBAR
acquisition/consolidation £ BN

of subsidiaries 20,000 30,727 -
Lease termination HE&IE - (3,807) =
Business combination HEZEG THERSH

under common control 486,418 7,934 -

At 31 December 2022, 120228128318 (%)
as restated 2,327899 73,824 30,151
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

9. RAEHEREWMRMME
0y

(c) HEREMH4EEE

UTRBEERBMEFTEENE
EREMHEE !

2023 2022
20234

20224
(restated)
(E7)
RMB'000
ART T

RMB'000
ARBTT

Within operating activities KEEHN 9,403 7,686
Within financing activities MEEEA 51,520 35,178
60,923 42,864

40. COMMITMENTS

Contracted, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment

BEIAIERER
BRYE BB RRE

40. 7RI

2023 2022
20234 20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB'000
ABRBTIT

RMB'000
AEBTT

312,252 167,147

EHRRIERARAE T -—FERE
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(@) In addition to the balances, arrangements and
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

Healthcare services BER®%
Subsidiaries controlled by China I EIZEEER AR
Resources Company Limited (TrhEZE)) PR

("CR Co)* il EN=IR
Hospital management service EREEIRE
Subsidiaries controlled by B8] 2= RS 4
CR Co. il NG
An associate BERE
Other income Hettlgt A
Subsidiaries controlled by F B 2 T P 4 5
CR Co. il 2EN=
Purchases of goods FEEM
Subsidiaries controlled by B8] 2 R 4
CR Co. il =N
Investment income on financial YA ABEEHHEE
assets at FVTPL HABGHNEREERE
WA
Subsidiaries controlled by B8] 2= RS 4
CR Co. il N
Interest income on bank RTERFERA
deposits
Subsidiaries controlled by F B 2 T P 4 5
CR Co. il 2EN=
Other purchases and expenses EthixERE A
Subsidiaries controlled by B8] 2 R 4
CR Co. il =N
Lease payments HERR
Subsidiaries controlled by o [ 2 T Py 42
CR Co. i[RI NE
* CR Co. is the ultimate holding company of the Group.

(@) PFRAEHFHIREEM D PAIEBIAS
B ZHERRZHIBIN AEE
FARHEBBMONERZZUNT !

2,415 1,655 A

58,245 23,065 B
2,666 21,429

23,984 (7) €

1,056,968 769,648 D

- 7262 E

2 137 E

76,874 25,025 F

20,532 24,509 G

* PEEEASFTEENRRIERAT
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. FAMAERS @
(continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related (b) EARAEKTS BRI RERL
parties: BR -
Due from related parties PEW B 5 7B

2023 2022
20234 20224F
(restated)

(E%1))
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

Subsidiaries controlled by H B ZE BP9

CR Co. =N
Trade in nature BoME 22,660 24,308 H
Non-trade in nature EEZHE 9,553 1,043,423 I
32,213 1,067,731
The amounts due from related parties are FEWREE A EAEEKR -2 8
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one FBR—FERER
year.

EHREIIRERAR S FERS

4
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related
parties: (continued)

Due to related parties

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. A H X 5 @

(b) EARAEETS YR KREIZELES
8@

FETRIH 5 7B

2023 2022

20234 20224

(restated)

(E27)

RMB'000 RMB'000

AE®BFT AREF T

Subsidiaries R = P I I Y
controlled by CR Co. M@ B

Trade in nature BS54E 348,674 288,535
Non-trade in nature EEZMHE 20,507 464,460 J

369,181 752,995

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Bank balances

Subsidiaries controlled by  H7 B0 ZE 8 Ffr 1= 1 A9
CR Co. I ERNG]

EARBELSMAESERF -8
FRABENRERE -

RITHE B
2023 2022

20234 20224
(restated)

(&%)
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT

1,008 221,212 E

The bank balances carried interest at a rate of
0.20% (2022: 0.25%-4.20%) per annum.

BITEGIIREFNX0.20%
(20224 : 0.25% F4.20% ) &t
Bo
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c)

Notes:

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

41. FABBE R 5 @

(c) ﬁ%EEEEAEZﬁ

2023 2022

202345 20224

(restated)

(&7

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT AREF T

Short term employee benefits ZHIEEEF 12,868 19,609

Post-employment benefits BHEERN 450 481

Equity-settled share-based RS B LR

payment expense RN - 442
Total compensation paid to key MRETEBEEAEZTH

management personnel HrbNAEZER 13,318 20,532

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive's emoluments are included in note 10 to
the financial statements.

The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing
Connected Transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (“Connected Transaction(s)”) but were fully exempted
from the relevant disclosures and other requirements, including,
announcements, circulars and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements and annual reports in accordance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) (the “Relevant Requirements”)
pursuant to rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

EERBANMNEE—TFIB
YN R e

My5E

A HEREBA T2 ER T EBHRAESEL
WHRA ((EHRA) FUABRIEENFE
MERS (MFEXS))  BRELTRAE
14A76(VRE T2 R RETAMKERH
thRE BEAS BRERBURRAER
TE R R (TARMERY) ©
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Notes: (continued)

Save as the transactions between the Combined Entities and
the related parties prior to 25 June 2023, the corresponding
related party transactions amounting to RMB38,339,000 and
RMB3,302,000 constituted Continuing Connected Transactions,
which were governed by the Supply Chain Cooperation Framework
Agreement dated 29 December 2022 entered into between the
Company and CR Pharmaceutical Group for fiscal year 2023, and the
cooperation agreement dated 19 March 2021 entered into between
Hubei Runkang Healthcare Management Co. Ltd. GHICHEREE
A R/AT)and Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co.,Ltd. GEIIITHE&
B A BR/AF)) for fiscal year 2023 and 2022, respectively, and were
subject to Relevant Requirements. The Relevant Requirements with
respect to these transactions had been complied with.

The corresponding related party transactions amounting to
RMB23,638,000 in 2023 constituted Continuing Connected
Transactions which were governed by 2023 Medical Supplies Sales
contracts to the member hospitals of Aerospace Medical, and were
subsequently approved by the Board of the Company on 8 February
2024.

Save as the transactions between the Combined Entities and the
related parties prior to 25 June 2023, the corresponding related
party transactions constituted Continuing Connected Transactions,
which were governed by the original pharmaceuticals, medical
device and medical consumables supply framework agreement
dated 18 November 2022 entered into between the Company and
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH") for fiscal
year 2023, and were subject to the Relevant Requirements. The
Relevant Requirements with respect to these transactions had been
complied with.

The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing
Connected Transactions, which were governed by the original
strategic cooperation agreement dated 18 November 2022 entered
into between the Company and China Resources Bank of Zhuhai
Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank"”) and China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd.
("CR Trust”) for fiscal year 2023, and were subject to the Relevant
Requirements. The Relevant Requirements with respect to these
transactions had been complied with.
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2023 FERAATHENBEER
120225125298 5T ML FESE & 1EAE SR
5% LU R 120234 52022 4 {f B 4F E #4234
b HEEREERRA B EEYIHEKES
BIRABN2021E38 19851 X & 1EH =
BT BETHBER ; MZEXHEET
HHRAER

2023F £ 355 A R #23,638,0007T I8 R RE
AR ERIFERERS R HMKXE
BEREBIRN2023FBEYEHE SO
17> MREB 2024 F2A8AEANTEEG
il

PREHTEREBIRAR 5 2 B52202346H25H
2 HIETIR Z 5 HERARRE 5 X H B
BRER S BiR2023EHBEERAAT
HEw (EE) ARAS (FEEBEE)) 12022
FNH18HI I NRE R BER MR E A
EMUEEERBERT LAETHERE
K MZEXZBETHERAER

HEAMB AR Z2ERSBRER S > B
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sEARAE (T#EBET)) 120224118 18H
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Notes: (continued)

The corresponding related transactions amounting to
RMB14,405,000 in 2023 (2022: RMB2,949,000) constituted
Continuing Connected Transactions, which were governed by the
strategic cooperation agreement dated 11 January 2023 entered
into between China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting
Co. Ltd. GEHEBEREEEHBMIRAE) and China Resources Digital
Holdings Company Limited GEE# R IZRBIRAE]) for fiscal year
2023, and were subject to the Relevant Requirements but were
exempt from circular and independent shareholders’ approval
pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such relevant
requirements had been complied with.

The corresponding related transactions amounting to RMB8,970,000
in 2023 constitute Continuing Connected Transactions, which were
governed by Bengang Hospital Property Services Agreement dated
31 July 2023 entered into between Bengang Hospital and Runjia
Property Service (Shenyang) Co. Ltd CE{EMZERT (B BRA
&]), and were approved subsequently by Board of the Company on
8 February 2024.

Save as the transactions between the Combined Entities and the
related parties prior to 25 June 2023, the remaining transactions in
2023 and 2022 constituted Connected Transactions which were fully
exempted from the Relevant Requirements.

The related party transactions amounting to RMB4,459,000 (2022:
RMB4,405,000) in 2023 constituted Connected Transactions, which
were governed by the Lease agreement dated 23 May 2019 entered
into between CR Hospital Management & Consulting as Lessee and
the Fengtai branch of China Resources Land Honging (Beijing) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. GETE EHhcA = (JER) EithEihZE R %
BIRATE A% /AF, which is a branch company of a subsidiary of
CR Land) as lessor, and were subject to the Relevant Requirements
but were exempt from circular and independent shareholders’
approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such
relevant requirements had been complied with.

MisE (&)

R2023F A AR 14,405,0007T (2022
£ AR#2,949,0007T) MERARAEK 525
HRFERER S BR2023EBEE R
EHEREEBANERA T EEEHRER
BRATR2023F1 A1 BT LB S
WHEANIT BETHEBAZER BRELHR
AIS514A.76(2) {5 28 S i <P B bR R B ST AR R
HAEZER; MZERZFEETHBAER.

1£2023F B # A K 18,970,000 K 1E R RE
BAE BB ERRERS  RAMRERR
SHEMERYE (85 BRARN20234F
7A31 BT UM AID BB E R A
17> WHERIN20245F 28R EARBREEE
Hfo

brEHHE IS BRA N 5 2 B2 20234F6H25H
ZHTEITRIR 90 0 20234 % 20224 B H £
RAEMBAER S W2 5 ST 18R

EXKe

122023F BB AR4,459,0007T (2022
F . AR 4,405,0007T) UABRAREEE 52 5
BARMERS  URENEBREESN (F
AEBEAN) REBEMAR (ER) B ER
BBERABZE AN LA (EHEMTENE
REIZDAE) (E#REHEAN) 1K201945823
BT UWHEERENT BETHEBAESR
BIRE EHRBIE14A 76 E R RETE
REBIUIREIEZER; MEERXZEE
SFHEBAERK-

ERBRIZRAMRAR —T_—FERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra B RRM

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

Notes: (continued) MisE © ()

Among the total outstanding amounts due from related parties
as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 which are trade in nature,
RMB6,950,000 and RMB1,910,000 were management service
charge receivable, which were governed by the continuing
connected transaction cooperation agreements dated 29 December
2022 and 17 September 2020, respectively, entered into between
the Company and CR Pharmaceutical Group, and were subject to
Relevant Requirements. The Relevant Requirements with respect to
these transactions had been complied with.

Among the total outstanding amounts due from related parties as
of 31 December 2023 which are non-trade in nature, RMB755,000
(31 December 2022: RMB781,000) were deposits paid pursuant
to the lease agreement dated 23 May 2019 entered into between
CR Hospital Management & Consulting as lessee and the Fengtai
branch of China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. EBEH#ASR JbR) BHEREFRAE
54328 which is a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land)
as lessor. The corresponding related party transactions were subject
to the Relevant Requirements but were exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2)
of the Listing Rules, and such relevant requirements had been
complied with. Other remaining amounts as of 31 December 2023
were incurred in relation to the transactions with connected parties
of the Company which were fully exempted from the Relevant
Requirements.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

Notes: (continued)

Among the total outstanding amounts due to related parties as of
2023 which are non-trade in nature, an amount of RMB454,000
of 31 December 2023 was expenditure on property management
fees, while the remaining amounts as of 31 December 2023 were
incurred in relation to a connected transaction under the agreement
of the Subscription Agreement entered into by Wugang Hospital
and Runjia Property Services (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. CEII#I#R (&
) BBR/AF), which is subject to the relevant requirements but
were exempt from circular and independent shareholders’ approval
pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such relevant
requirements had been complied with. Other remaining amounts as
of 31 December 2023 were incurred in relation to the transactions
with connected parties of the Company which were fully exempted
from the Relevant Requirements.

MisE (&)

$R2023F 2 EBE M ERFEECRB S
HIEMEEEE D 22023E 12831 B EHIE
ARMEAB4,000c M EBEE W TR
2023£ 12831 B EREE TS oL $ 48 BE P 82
HMMERD (B8) BRASATEI LR
HEETHRMEXZMES  BETHEMEE
Ko BIRIE EHRAISE14A.76(2) R E R R E
TFEAEBURERMEZER; MEERS
EESTAHBER 2023128319 E
BRENMAATEBABEALTZRGESE T
BRXSERERRETHEBMERK.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42. BoEEM TR
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RREBARZENESHTANETE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wr

period are as follows:

2023 20234
Financial assets THEE
IERE]
assets at
FVTPL — Financial
Mandatorily assets
measured  at amortised
as such cost
UAnEE
FTERH
st A
BmHER g i
BE — AL A 5T 2 Y
BEIX L2 EREE ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AR#F T ARF T
Receivables from 10T REIOTE fe 2 FEUR
hospitals I8 - 37434 37434
Trade and bills receivables FEWL B 5 FRIE K FE UL
B - 1,535,652 1,535,652

Financial assets included in 5t ATE{IRIE ~ {R55
Prepayments, deposits and & K& HthfEURFRIE

other receivables NEMEE - 246,737 246,737
Due from related parties & UK BA Bk 75 =R IB - 32,213 32,213
Financial assets at FVTPL UrnBEFEEH

SE ABRNE
RhE E 49,084 - 49,084
Restricted and pledged bank BRI 2K IETT

deposits FR - 44,285 44,285

Cash and cash equivalents RE&EKRIREEEY - 1,236,097 1,236,097

49,084 3,132,418 3,181,502

256  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MY E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42. IO BEEMITHE @
CATEGORY (continued)
2023 (continued) 2023ﬂE (€=))
Financial liabilities ETHEE
N ERIE]
liabilities
at amortised
cost
g D |DUIN
2
TRIBE
RMB'000
AR®BFT
Trade and bills payables FE(S B 5 B K BT E % 1,731,495
Financial liabilities included in other st A E A& TRIB K fE T & A
payables and accruals NEMEBE 874,774
Due to related parties FE(S BB 5 =R 1B 369,181
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s+ B IR{TEMN 2,162,720
Lease liabilities MEaE 148,670
5,286,840

4
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42. AT AR @
CATEGORY (continued)
2022 20225
Financial assets (restated) ETHEE (FF))

I ERIGE]

assets at
FVTPL — Financial
Mandatorily assets
measured  at amortised
as such cost

MR BEs
EEHES
H A 5 4
THEE -  WAFERN
el TMEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Receivables from 0T hospitalsZ& BI0TE& [z > FEUX

EEE] - 54,965 54,965
Trade and bills receivables JFE UK & 57 7018 e FE LR
ZiE - 1,490,670 1,490,670

Financial assets included in 5t ATB{ITRIE « (R:5
Prepayments, deposits and & K EHthfEL FIE

other receivables NEmMEE - 335,098 335,098
Due from related parties & UK BA Bt 75 =18 - 1,067,731 1,067,731
Financial assets at FVTPL UrAnBETE2BHE

BE T ABTNE
MEE 65,604 - 65,604
Other financial assets at Hh i@ A5t 2

amortised cost NEmMEE - 850,887 850,887
Restricted and pledged bank BRI 2K ETT

deposits FR - 18,879 18,879
Cash and cash equivalents IRE&EKRBEEEY - 3,100,011 3,100,011

65,604 6,918,241 6,983,845
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

2022 (continued)

Financial liabilities (restated)

42. BoEEMT R w

20225 (@)
ETHEE (EF))
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost

PR P

St
SR
RMB’000
ANRHT 7T

Trade and bills payables B Z R IE R ETEE 1,734,297

Financial liabilities included in other st A E A& TRIB K fE T & A
payables and accruals NEmER& 874,403
Due to related parties JFE 1<) B8 B 75 FR 1B 752,995
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s+ B IR{TEMN 2,327,899
Lease liabilities MEaE 73,824
5,763,418

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, restricted and pledged
bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, balances with related parties, the current
portion of other financial assets at amortised cost,
trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, payables to the Sponsored
Hospitals and the current portion of interest-bearing
bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

43. TRITANAABERLR
BERER

EEENETRERFESFEY IR
FIMEMNERIFRITER  BRE S
BRERRE STARNRE - REE
o B FE USRI B < R B E R R
FRER Hith B A ENE
MEENRDBL BNEZHNER
FEN R4 5t A B MBS RRIE K Rt
ERNEREE BAENEERR
B Kt BIRITERNRENE D > B
RELETHIRBREE  FIUER
AEBEEAREE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB AIEHES » UAREIIR)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of receivables from |OT hospitals,
the non-current portion of other financial assets at
amortised cost and interest-bearing bank borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The directors of the Company
consider there is no significant difference between the
carrying amounts of these financial assets and financial
liabilities and their fair values.

The fair value of the listed financial asset at FVTPL is
based on quoted market prices.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
assets at FVTPL at the end of the reporting period falls
into level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

THEEREENAREERENR
5 (BHBEELERIN hEHBERE
M TEMNEEAAR LT HEMR
RWARFERREE :

REIOTE B 2 8 W kI8 Fe B 1% #
HRASEBNEREER BIRITHE
M IERBEE DA REE > HHRA
BAEBALUER 15 8 BB &R &R 2 57
HARRE T BIRER pI S A R AGIFFRHI R
RETRERFA B -ARTEFDH
ZEETHMEERTMAERNREESR
BRENAANBELEERER-

UrnBEStEEEEZH ABT
tHERMEENAABEERN TSR

5o

BaMETRMEERNBRSBARNANE
BFfEBANEBEREBRINE K-

1R2023F12831H » &AE B X (A
DAnBESENERMEE (20224F

i) o

EFR - cHREENEREBEETE —
BMME_Rz2BAEFEELAAEES
ENEE WRAELE - RNSE
(20224 : )
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The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, restricted and pledged
bank deposits, other financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at FVTPL, payables to the Sponsored
Hospitals and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as receivables
from |OT hospitals, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, balances with related parties, trade and
bills payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and lease liabilities, which mainly
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its interest rate risk. The Group mitigates this
risk by closely monitoring the movements in interest
rates and reviewing its available credit facilities and
their utilisation regularly.

AEENTEESRTIAGERE KRR
= EEY  REVEN S EIFRITER
HMBRBHEA AT ENEREE U
ARBEFEEHEHFABENE
RUEE B RN ERRE MU KE
BRITTER - BEEMITANTER
NEREEBENEERTES £&
EEEHMEBEMEENER  F
MR BIOTE 2 FEWAIE  FEWNE 5
IRk FEUW R R  5E A TR RRIE ~ R
EREMBUWRIENEREE - L5
BMANGH BNESZREREMNE
Bt ARMBNMERESERN
TREE UNKEEEE TB2EEK
BHEEEES-

rEEEMTIAEENTEZRAREF
KEE SIMNERE S EERR - REBE
TRBMREnEBREAR EFEEE
TRESEESERBRVER  HM
e

2 @ B

AEEASHNTHEANXEHABEE
HEAREEABFTHANXNERBIRITE
REB-AEETEERTESHMT
B PHEMNXER cEEBBEEY
EEMXEHUTHEEHIRBEE
BENEERABRIREERRR-
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact on interest-bearing bank
borrowings).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R B EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

44. B EMEEBERKE
(48)
MERE @
TEERTEMAHMBERETE
BIER T AEENRATHE BB
Wit B RITEER) H A KA R A
ENBISURLE

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in basis in profit
points before tax
i Gyl R pE
wan, Geiz) g, Ceib
RMB'000
AE®EFT
2023 20234
Interest-bearing bank borrowings st BIRTTER 50 (10,764)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  sH EIRTTER (50) 10,764
2022 20224
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t BIR1TE™ 50 (11,621)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  sHEIR1TER (50) 11,621

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from operating and financing
transactions of operating units in currencies other than
the unit’s functional currencies.

S BE L B

FEEERZEBAR ILERKE
2 o B AT B (3 DU TH AE S ME LA S B
EEETICENRERS
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BRI EZEEFEREBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Foreign currency risk (continued) 4 EE & B )
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRETTEMBHMEERFTAE
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible HNBERT AEERAGFE (RE®
change in HK$ exchange rates, with all other variables BEENMBBEHNAAEBEES NRS
held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due HAREBTEXRSEESEFHIERK
to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and 4o
liabilities).
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in HK$ rate before tax
BITER M ATF]
@0, CRiZ) 18, CRib)
% RMB'000
AE®BFT
2023 20235
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR R B TEZE 5 1,011
If the RMB strengthens against WARBRBTHE
the HK$ (5) (1,011)
2022 20224
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR BT E 5 (98,282)
If the RMB strengthens against the W AR RBTHE
HK$ (5) 98,282
Credit risk EE Rz
The Group mainly transacts with recognised and AEETEUARTREERFNE=
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances are FETRZ - BRREBEGREERIRE
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's BEE MAEBENIRERRREILASE
exposure to bad debts increased during the year mainly FERWKE ESHERMAFTIEM:
due to acquisition/consolidation of hospitals, which are ELEEREEERBRENEBREMRER
subject to tighter regulation of medical insurance. =

EWBMIRARAT —T-SAERE 263



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R B EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. A EEEHEREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) ()
Maximum exposure and year-end staging R = B P By SF 45 B ER
The tables below show the credit quality and the TRFVWEREAEBEFEERENEE
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's BEkEeEERR  TEERNEH
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due B CGRIFEEMENTERABLER
information unless other information is available without RERARBINERTES » &R
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification 1223 1HNFEREEDE -2
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross ESRRIETHEERREE-.

carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2023 202341253 1H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
THEAEE
518 2 HEREEEE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
B1PEEL B2PEEL EIPEE  REAE =
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTFT ARETT

Receivables from |0T hospitals 2 HI0TE x> FE UL 1B

- Not yet past due — MR EHA 37,434 15,541 - = 52,975
Trade receivables* FEU & 5 i~ - - - 1,981,230 1,981,230
Bills receivables W E g

- Not yet past due — [H KA 132 - - - 132
Contract assets BEHEE - - - 21,603 21,603

Financial assets included in STATEIRIEREE R
prepayments, deposits and HihEWRIEN SR EE

other receivables

— Normal** — —fg** 256,171 - - - 256,171

— Doubtful** — Rimxx - - 87,085 - 87,085
Due from related parties FE WL RR B 75 1B

— Normal** — —fig** 9,553 - - 22,660 32,213
Pledged and restricted deposit 2 &R R & 14+ K

— Not yet past due — 1R EHA 44,285 - - - 44,285
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY

— Not yet past due — [ REHA 1,236,097 - - - 1,236,097

1,583,672 15,541 87,085 2,025,493 3,711,791
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

A 35 R BT 5E

(RSB HEEPES - LARKSIT)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BERGEBEBEERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022 (restated)

12-month
ECLs
1218 8
THHAEE
E518

Stage 1
1P
RMB'000
AR®T T

Receivables from 10T hospitals & 81072z = F& U =018

()

BRa RS R ELERE @

12022F12531H

Lifetime ECLs

EHIFRHEERRE

(E%Y)

Simplified

approach Total
[ER Rz =
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETx ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT

Stage 2 Stage 3
S 2PEER FEIEEL
RMB’'000 RMB'000

- Not yet past due — MRBE 54,965 15,541 - = 70,506
Trade receivables* FEUR B 5 I~ - - - 1,920,456 1,920,456
Bills receivables FE W = #

- Not yet past due — R EER 6,698 = = = 6,698
Contract assets BREE - - - 29,120 29,120
Financial assets included in FFABNRIE - RBEK

prepayments, deposits and HEKWRIEN /M E E

other receivables

— Normal** — — g 347,763 - - - 347763

— Doubtful** — RIE** - - 37355 - 37355
Due from related parties F&E UK RA B 75 RR 1A

— Normal** — —fg** 1,043,423 - - 24,308 1,067,731

— Doubtful** — RIE** - - - - -
Other financial assets at Hiiz @ At 2N

amortised cost EREE

— Not yet past due — MRBEA 850,887 - - = 850,887
Pledged and restricted deposit 2 K1 A BRI M4 170

- Not yet past due — MRBE 18,879 - - = 18,879
Cash and cash equivalents HeERIREEEY

— Not yet past due — & AR 3,100,011 - - - 3,100,011

5,422,626 15,541 37355 1,973,884  7455,384
o For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies * AL EEAMCRES ENRKRE S RIE

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 25 and 26 to the financial
statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and amounts due from related
companies is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to
be “doubtful”

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

RENEE BRBEERNER DRI
PSRRI sE25 %264 5F ©

> FPARAMMIERESRAMEWRREN S
7 7 DU FE W B B A B RRIB SN R HR b
BREBENRAZEMEE QBB

Bl o[ SFE
o

ENEEEERRATR

FRAEBREKRE S REMEER
EERBNE— D ELHBEEMBER

RMTEE25HHEFE o

EHRRIERAIRAR

T CFERS
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

44. BHEEREIEBERBEK

266  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Group's exposure to liquidity risk
arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of
financial assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
risk to a shortage of funds by considering the maturities
of both its financial liabilities and financial assets.
Note 2.1 explains management'’s plan in managing the
liquidity needs of the Group to enable it to continue to
meet its obligations as they fall due.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank borrowings. The Group aims to maintain
sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand/
less than

1 year
BER/
DRIE
RMB'000
AR®BFT

€
MENE = AR

NBELRABIERAERRNE SRR
BUBTHMBEENAR - AEE@
BN AHETRBEIERESHEE
MEaENIfA#HE - A5BE8E
ExRmafNeREENZIMAKRE
EETERVER -T2 15REE
BEEXAEERPESTE  EHAE
FEAT BB S(ERETEl

FERNEREBBERARTERE
ESMEBUNBEETHE ZBRIFT
- AEBSHEERFEANREERER
THFEY LUne RS EEHE K

REBEGERRERMR REPREE
HEEmasnzBERaT

1to 5 years Over 5 years Total

1E545E
RMB'000
AREFT

SEL E
RMB’000
AREFT

att
RMB'000
AREFT

Trade and bills payables eI 8 B IB R (T 2k 1,731,495 - - 1,731,495

Financial liabilities included in 5t AELfffE {3 TR IE R fE 5t
other payables and accruals ERANEMER 854,265 - - 854,265
Due to related parties & 13 R B 75 =R 1B 369,181 - - 369,181
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t & $B1T & 2K 1,303,953 910,193 - 2,214,146
Lease liabilities HE&E 37,856 85,684 14,904 138,444
4,296,750 995,877 14,904 5,307,531
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR M EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

44.

B 75 L B ' IR AR IR B ER

()
TRHESERE @

On demand/

[CEERGEN
1 year 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total

BER/
DIE 1255 BEL L =
(CHEIC)] (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&7) (F7) (&E7) (E7)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARHET T AEBTT
Trade and bills payables ENEZMIBERENEE 1,734,297 - - 1,734,297

Financial liabilities included in st A E B TIER
other payables and accruals EstERANEREE 874,402 = = 874,402
Due to related parties FESRABE H TIE 303,978 = = 303,978
Interest-bearing bank borrowings st 8 $RITHE R 1,355,659 1,074,910 = 2,430,569
Lease liabilities HEAE 41,667 33,534 7,581 82,782
4,310,003 1,108,444 7581 5,426,028
Equity price risk P = BN B B

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
an equity investment included in financial assets at
FVTPL (note 21) as at 31 December 2023. The Group's
listed investment is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and is valued at a quoted market price at the
end of the reporting period.

e = B AR LB 2 FH 50 1 2 15 8RN M3 A1)
ELHEEENEHENNEARISLN
BETHNELR ANEBNERER
BB R B 522023FE 12831 H 5t A
UrnEBEtEEEEHtAERZN
THMEENRALE ([{:321) o A&
BN EHEREREBMF LT B
R ERARUTIBREEE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BRI EIEEEREBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&
Equity price risk (continued) REEmENRERR @
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity TRERTEMEHMEERFTAE
to every 5% change in the fair value of the equity BERMRBEEEr ERREAKREETR
investment, with all other variables held constant and EHERNEEE REAREN R AE
before any impact on tax, based on its carrying amount BESEH5%NWERHE D

at the end of the reporting period.

Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)

of equity in profit
investment before tax

RERE GAIE NS
BREE  1Em Ceb
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TR

2023 20234
Investment listed in: BE FhmRn .
Hong Kong — Financial assets at 58 — UraBEFTERH
FVTPL SBE AERNSREE 49,084 2,454/(2,454)
2022 20224
Investment listed in: K& EmR:
Hong Kong — Financial assets at 58 - UnaBEstEEH
FVTPL Bt ABTNEREE 65,604  3,280/(3,280)
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Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of interest-bearing liabilities (excluding payables to
hospitals sponsored by the Group) divided by total
assets. The adjusted gearing ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2023 was 15.8% (2022: 13.1%).There
were no changes in the Group's approach to capital
management for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

BEXREHE

FEEESEENTEZERARESR
EEFEBEEE RREBERL
FONUSFEBU RSB ARREE

FEBRERELRGERE THEFECHENR
MEE B AR E E Y E R EBF T
R DMRHRAREREE FEF
B ERRRIKMARE REIR
RETHEITHRMD

AEERBEEESR FEEENME
EEEMBRMIE BRUBEEN
EE B BE R H B A4 48 - REE 522023
F12831 HH KB EAEIREEA15.8%
(20224 1 13.1%) - & E2023%F128
31HX2022F12H31HIEFE » &
EMNEAEE AT EES -
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

45. ZREI X EMB AT RIFTE

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to
the Company
KARIELREZ BT

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
stk
REEM

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BEIKBRRE,/
AEftER

2023

20234
%

Principal activities

TEEH

China Resources Hospital PRC/Chinese RMB500,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding and
Management & Consulting Co. ~ Mainland™®? hospital management
Ltd.

EHBREEAAGRAT FE/HEREY?  AR500,000,0007 REERKERER

Jian Gong Hospital PRC/Chinese RMB420,552,600 80.00 80.00  General healthcare

Mainland® services

=Bk hE/REREY AR#420,552,6007 RABRR

Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical ~ PRC/Chinese RMB3,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Pharmaceutical Mainland®
Co., Ltd.

TREBRERBERRAR FE /Bl i AE#3,000,0007T GPO%%

Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical PRC/Chinese RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Devices Co., Ltd. Mainland®

TRBRERBRRMERAT  HE/PERM AE#4,000,0007T GPO%%

Phoenix Baokang Healthcare PRC/Chinese USD5,000,000/ 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Hospital Management Mainland™®@ USD8,000,000
Co., Ltd.

BERRBRERERAR FE/ AL Ay 31 5,000,000 7T,/ BRI

8,000,000 7T

Shenzhen Yukangrun Hospital PRC/Chinese RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland®

FTREREREEERAT  HE/PERM AR 10,0007t REZR

China Resource Hospital PRC/Chinese USD100,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Investment (China) Co., Ltd. Mainland™®@ services

EBBERLE (PE) BRAE  HE/REAM 100,000,000 7T BREERB

China Resources Hospital PRC/Chinese USD10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland® services

EHBREBEERAT FE/ HE R 10,000,000%& 7T BREERY
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 45. AT T ENRBATIMNES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY @

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
Gl AV a]
RE

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BRIRBERE/
HAMER

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to
the Company
AREIEIEREZBDLT

2023

20235
%

Principal activities

IBEH

China Resources Hospital Holding PRC/Chinese RMB52,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Company Mainland? services
EHERERERAT HE /R E R AE52,000,0007T EREERE
Run Neng PRC/Chinese RMB318,818,000 65.00 65.00  Hospital management
Mainland? services
e HE/RERM?  AR318,818,0007T BlREERE
Jinan Bei Cheng Hospital PRC/Chinese RMB338,000,000 100.00 100.00  General healthcare
Mainland? services
EfELRER FE/RERM? AR 338,000,0007T RABRRS
Huaikuang Hospital* PRC/Chinese RMB118,548,005 100.00 100.00  General healthcare
Mainland services
BRI FE,/RE R AE#118,548,0057T RABRRS
Beijing CEEC Hospital PRC/Chinese Nil/RMB300,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
Mainland services
ITRPAERER e/ R ER AR®ER/ REBERH
AE300,0007T
Guangdong CEEC Power PRC/Chinese Nil/RMB17.680,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
Hospital* Mainland services
BETERSHBR e/ R ER AR®ER/ REBERH
AR 17680,0007T
Guangxi Hydropower Hospital* PRC/Chinese Nil/RMB25,000,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
Mainland services
BEAKE B e/ R ER AR®ER/ REBERH
AR #25,000,00075
Huai’An Huaiyin Hospital PRC/Chinese RMB700,000,000 80.00 80.00  Hospital management
Investment and Management Mainland? services
Co., Ltd.
REZTERBRREERE HE/FRERM?  AEK700,000,0007 B EBIR
BRAH

EHRRIERAIRAR

T CFERS
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45. ZREI X EMB AT RIFTE
e

45. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to
the Company
ARG EZ AL

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
SRR/
Prd=E ik

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BREIMERRE,/
ZER

Principal activities

FREH

Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital PRC/Chinese RMB43,361,500/ 80.00 80.00  General healthcare
Company Limited Mainland® RMB56,800,000 services

EZmERBRARAR FE/EN?  AR#43,361,5007,/ GREBERB

AR #56,800,0007C
Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital* ~ PRC/Chinese RMB83,600,000 100.00 100.00  General healthcare
Mainland services
BR= AR & FE/RER AR 83,600,0007T GREBERB
Xuzhou Mining Hospital* PRC/Chinese RMB103,000,000/ 100.00 100.00  General healthcare
Mainland RMB135,040,000 services
RN hE/RERY  AR103,000,0007T, REBER
AR #135,040,0007C

China Resources Wugang (Hubei) PRC/Chinese RMB433,042,000 51.00 51.00  Hospital management
Hospital Management Company ~ Mainland services
Limited*

EBESA (W) BRER /B AR #433,042,0007 BB
BRAFN

China Resources Wugang General PRC/Chinese RMB10,000,000 51.00 51.00  General healthcare
Hospital* Mainland services

EBRMRRER RE/ HEIRH, AR #10,000,0007 RABRRS

Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group) PRC/Chinese RMB10,000,000 51.00 51.00  General healthcare
Corporation No. 2 Staff Mainland services
Hospital*

HEE (£ 28 RE/ HEIRH, AR #10,000,0007 RABRRS
FIRTER

Liaoning Healthcare Industry PRC/Chinese RMB3,090,962,200 76.10 76.10  Hospital management
Group Co., Ltd. Mainland®

REARBEZERERAT  PE/HERMY  AEES090,962,2007T BirEE
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45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SRR M EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Fushun Mining Bureau General
Hospital of Liaoning Health
Industry Group*

FEUREELERRBABR

Benxi Iron and Steel General
Hospital of Liaoning Health
Industry Group*

FEURBEELEAAERBR

Tie Coal Group General Hospital
of Liaoning Health Industry
Group®

FELURBRELERGRABR

Liaoning Healthcare Industry
Group Shenmei General
Hospital*

FELURBEELERLREABR

Fuxin Mining General Hospital of
Liaoning Health Industry Group*

FELUREEEER
BHERRR

Nuclear Industry General Hospital
of Liaoning Health Industry
Group®

FELHREEEER
RIERRR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
Gl AV a]
RE

PRC/Chinese
Mainland

i,/ FE R

PRC/Chinese
Mainland

i,/ FE R

PRC/Chinese
Mainland

i,/ FE R

PRC/Chinese
Mainland

HE/ RE R
PRC/Chinese

Mainland
HE/ RE R

PRC/Chinese
Mainland

i,/ FE R

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BRIRBERE/
HAMER

RMB595,780,000

AE#595,780,0007T

RMB584,350,000

AE#584,350,0007T

RMB514,770,000

AE514,770,0007T

RMB15,180,000

AE#15,180,0007T
RMB534,088,900

AR #534,088,9007T

RMB47840,000

AR #47840,0007T

4

5. SATEEMBATNFE

()

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to
the Company
AREIEIEREZBDLT

2023 Principal activities

2023F IBEH

%
76.10

76.10  Provision of general

healthcare services
REGEBERE

76.10 76.10  Provision of general

healthcare services
REGEBERE

76.10 76.10  Provision of general

healthcare services
REGEBERE

76.10 76.10  Provision of general

healthcare services
REGEBERE

76.10 76.10  Provision of general
healthcare services

REGEBERE

76.10 76.10  Provision of general

healthcare services

REGESBERE

EHREIIRERAR S FERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R B EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B&BHEIEHEIN » LUARETIR)

45. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 45. AT FENEATFRE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY )

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to
the Company
ARG EZ AL

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
SRR/
Prd=E ik

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BREIMERRE,/
ZER

2023

20234
%

Principal activities

FREH

157 Hospital of Liaoning Health ~ PRC/Chinese RMB15,680,000 76.10 76.10  Provision of general
Industry Group* Mainland healthcare services
FELRBELEE-RtEBR HE/TERM AE#15,680,0007T REGEBERY
General Hospital of PRC/Chinese RMB50,000,000 80.00 80.00  Provision of general
Pingxiang Mining Industry Mainland®? healthcare services
Group Co., Ltd.*
TABEEREREEAR /B A2 AE#50,000,0007T REGABERS
BRI
Fengcheng Mining Bureau PRC/Chinese RMB20,000,000 80.00 80.00  Provision of general
General Hospital* Mainland healthcare services
SRBEBRERE R HRE/ HERH, AR 20,000,0007% REGREBERS
Xinyu Mining Industry Hospital* ~ PRC/Chinese RMB12,980,000 80.00 80.00  Provision of general
Mainland healthcare services
Gt Sy HRE/ HERH, AR #12,980,0007¢ REGREBERS
Leping Mining Bureau First Staff ~ PRC/Chinese RMB50,320,000 80.00 80.00  Provision of general
Hospital* Mainland healthcare services
LYRBEEESHIER HRE/ HERH, AE50,320,0007T REGREBERS
Ruizhou Hospital* PRC/Chinese RMB27960,000 80.00 80.00  Provision of general
Mainland healthcare services
B HE/RE A AR #27960,0007 REGABERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAF5ER AR MY 5E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIGHAEI » UAREIIR)

(1) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

enterprises under PRC law.

(2) These subsidiaries are registered as companies with limited under
PRC Law.

@ These institutions, as not-forprofit hospitals, cannot be registered
as companies under PRC law. The sponsors of these not-for-profit
hospitals have respective obligations to contribute the start-up
capital to such hospitals. Such start-up capital, once contributed,
shall not be withdrawn by the sponsors. Given the charity nature of
the not-for-profit hospitals, the legal income of such hospitals shall
only be used in line with its purpose and within its business scope,
and where applicable, in accordance with the articles of association
of such hospitals, therefore, the net income is not distributable to
its sponsors as dividends, which is different from a shareholder who

owns the equity interests of a company.

The above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed
in note 13.

M ZEMBARDRBTEREZEEMAIEEE
o

(2) ZEMBARDRBTREZEEMABREE
N\

# ZERBERIFEN R FEIRETEE
BRERFARB - ZEFRENBHRNBMA
BEEBRZERBEIATNBELR IRE
R—EEN BWARRERE - B IR E
FBRNEENE 2EBREERAR
FIERHEBNEEFBEAR QER) RE
ERBRNEMREEZMBERE Bk WA
FEARUDIKTRBAGRRE  HHEE—
BABREHRETRE

LAWB AT DRARBEERTE -

R EEBRTERELERSE
FEXEVBEHAEERESERENE
EBONERBMBAT - ERRS
RHEHMMNBASFBERERERB

PRTTEE ©

RIREMRE EFEFZRERPR
B E—H BN 13 ER -

ERBRIZRAMRAR —T_—FERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFsER R MY 5E

(FRBAEIEPEI > UARIBIIT)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

UTFR/ERARBERSHRZHMHR

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

MIERER -

NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER =Y E- L 14 20
Investments in subsidiaries RBATMNKE 6,141,740 6,131,741
Due from subsidiaries FE W Bt f8 A B =R I8 1,115,187 1,101,427
Total non-current assets FEMHE ELERE 7,256,941 7.233,188
CURRENT ASSET REEE
Cash and cash equivalents BE&EMIREHEEY 49,474 20,905
CURRENT LIABILITIES AR
Other payables and accruals HENRIBERESER 9,016 13,520
Due to subsidiaries AN NG 1,292,436 47169
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t BIR1TE™ 1,002,500 1,012,756
Total current liabilities e aEiERE 2,303,952 1,073,445
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BB EFEE (2,254,478) (1,052,540)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BMEERGEEE

LIABILITIES 5,002,463 6,180,648
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EREEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t B$R{TE ™ - 982,599
NET ASSETS BEFE 5,002,463 5,198,049
EQUITY HEm
Share capital SN 267 267
Reserves (note) fEE (FsH) 5,002,196 5,197.782
Total equity 4 fee 2 5,002,463 5,198,049

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MY E

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEIEHEEI » UARIET)R)

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47 AT RRTIRER @
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: B 5T
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: EATINEEBRENT

Share-

Share Treasury based
premium Capital share payment Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses

[z Rt RRAD (TR
RIDEERR R VN i i ES
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETR ARBTn ARET:

At 1 January 2022 202251818 5,785,472 (6,260) (280,448) 34,009 (93,762) 5,439,011
Total comprehensive income FEXABALE
for the year - - - - (113,792) (113,792)
Equity-settled share-based B mEE ARG
payment arrangement [N 6732 - = = 2,164 = 2,164
Share vested under the Scheme 1R RBHIRND (41,300) - 73,870 (32,570) - -
Final 2021 dividend 2021 FERBARE (129,601) = = = - (129,601)
At 31 December 2022 and 2022812831 K
1 January 2023 20231518 5,614,571 (6,260) (206,578) 3,603 (207,554) 5,197,782
Total comprehensive income FEXANRALLE
for the year - - = = (153,233) (153,233)
Final 2022 dividend 2022 KRR (42,353) - - - - (42,353)
At 31 December 2023 22023%12831H 5,572,218 (6,260) (206,578) 3,603 (360,787) 5,002,196
48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 48. TSR R}
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised R RIN2024F3B190HEEEF
for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2024. HE R IR -

EWBRIRARAT —ToSAERE 277



278

IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

MERE - IREER RS I st

2023
20234

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - IN ACCORDANCE WITH

For the year ended 31 December
HZE12B31HILLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019
2022%F 20214 20204 20194

(Restated)

RMB'000

(E51)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBETT ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TRT ARETR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS fa&#4&
Revenue Wi 10,107,500

7901,287 4,447477 2,750,650 2,115,320

Profit before tax HAlFE 492,921
Income tax credit/(expense) FREMIEHE,/ (BH) (165,031)

422,941 270,475 418,185 541,299
(94,660) 155,389 (97,864) (140,665)

328,281 425,864 320,321 400,634

265,855 417915 310,131 390,865
62,426 7949 10,190 9,769

Profit for the year FEMNB 327,890

Attributable to: BUF AL
Owners of the parent ISYNCIESZ=DN 257,680
Non-controlling interests ~ JF¥ERR#E s 70,210
327,890

328,281 425,864 320,321 400,634

2023
20234

As at 31 December
1’12831
2022 2021 2020 2019
20224 20214 20204 20195

(Restated)

(7))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTR AR®TR ARETR

RMB'000

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEK&E

17817574 10,467602 8,963,193  7873,981
7,163,674 (3,621,157)  (2,622,739) (1,733,806)

7,013,066 10,653,900 6,846,445 6,340,454 6,140,175

Total assets wEE 13,654,192
Total liabilities FEN=R 6,641,126
Attributable to: DR ALFEM:
Owners of the parent ISUNSIEZZ=DN 5,812,061
Non-controlling interests  FEIZRRHER 1,201,005

9,606,211 6,450,776 6,105,456 5,903,700
1,147,689 395,669 234,998 236,475

7,013,066 10,653,900 6,846,445 6,340,454 6,140,175

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed certain business
combinations under common control in June 2023. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been restated to include the combining entities from
the date when the Group and the combining entities first
came under common control (i.e. 2 June 2022).

AW EMBERRM IS E  ~EH
R2023F6 AT A THEZES THEES
Bt B E2022F 12831 B IEEEMMBIRE
BEEY UBEEEaHERE NS EEE
HI B 5 (BN20226E6828) UEHNESHER -
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"Aerospace Medical”

"Articles of Association”
or "Articles”

“"Audit Committee”

“"Award Shares”

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
“BV|”

“CG Code”

“Chairman”
“Chief Executive Officer”
“Chief Financial Officer”

“China” or “"PRC"”

“China Resources Group”

“Companies Ordinance”

“Company” or “our Company”
or “China Resources
Medical”

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

“CR Bank”

“CRCL

DEFINITIONS

Beijing Aerospace Medical Co., Ltd.* (JtRMKEEHFRAE), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, which CRC
beneficially owns 51% of its equity materials

the articles of association of our Company adopted on September
30, 2013 and as amended from time to time

the audit committee of the Board

such Shares awarded pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the
maximum number of which shall not exceed 5% of the total issued
capital of the Company as at August 31, 2018 and the maximum
number of which to each selected participant is 1% of the total
issued capital of the Company as at August 31, 2018

the board of Directors of our Company
the British Virgin Islands

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 (formerly
Appendix of 14) to the Listing Rules

the chairman of our Board
the chief executive officer of the Company
the chief financial officer of the Company

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this
report, Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong
Kong

CRCL and its subsidiaries

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (ZE ;B 88 i
I EPBE/AT]), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on February 28, 2013

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, or where
the context requires, refers to China Resources Company Limited
(FEZERMABRAE) (formerly known as China Resources National
Corporation (FEIZEM4E/AF])) or CRH or CR Healthcare (as the
case may be)

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd., a municipal bank
headquarters in Zhuhai and a subsidiary of China Resources
Company Limited

China Resources Company Limited* (FEZEBHERAT), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability and a state-
owned enterprise under the supervision of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council in
the PRC

EHEEITRERAT R SFERS



DEFINITIONS
(£

M x8E

MHEME2AR)) ~ TERRMAA

S TARA

MZRI AR 15 )

= -
THBEREE]
MeEEATAL
EEE]

eS|
BEEMBE
TFRE

MEEHEE)
/NSRS

IRAB) S ZEHEE)

MR AR ER

FEEHIR1T)

R E

ERMRBRARAR —HRPEEMMIINERAS  AHEE
HHEAL1 %M

FABFL2013F9H 308 H AN IE A EHEST BV A EAZ AR A

EXEEZEEY

BREROEBABETNZERG  HEeBEABBEAR2ERN
2018%8H31H Eé’*ﬁﬁzzlii'%lﬁ%% e BRSEEBRNZE
A LR #2018F8831H B & ITRALEEAN %

TRBEFE

REBERRES

EHRAMERCT (RIAEBMT &+ 0) PREII X E G TA

EFEEER

NFHBE

rABEEYHE

i ARAME  RAREME > FRELE RPIBTHERS
%

PEERRENBAF
RARRHES] s MR U E A 5 EARIE B L FI 556228 R B R A

FEHBEERBRAR > —EN2013FE2H28BTMAESHEEMMA L
NERSEAF

BAELTRAUVAEFZANRE REXEME ETHEFERQ
5 FIBPEERREAR) NEFERARNERRE GRARBRM
E)

KBEMBRITROARAE  —REBAN KBS HAIH TR FEIRT
TRPHEFERATDZMNEAT

FEEFFRAF —RNFEAZMALNERAT  BZPEE
CEEEEREEEZEeEENEAELRE
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“CR Digital”

“CR Digital Group”

“CR Healthcare”

“CRH"

“CR Hospital Holdings”

“CR Hospital Investment”

“CR Hospital Management &
Consulting”

“CR Land”

“"CR Mixc"

"CR Pharmaceutical”

“CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial”

“CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial Group”

DEFINITIONS
(£

FEHHRERARE/AT (China Resources Digital Holdings Company
Limited*) (formerly known as RS ZRFHEERAQE), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRCL

CR Digital together with its subsidiaries

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, and a subsidiary of CRH

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited and the
indirect holding company of CR Healthcare

China Resources Hospital Holdings Company, a company established
in the PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

China Resources Hospital Investment (China) Co., Ltd.* GEMHE R
B (PE) BRASE), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting Co. Ltd.* (Z£4
BEprBIREH B PRAT) (formerly known as Beijing Phoenix United
Hospital Management Consulting Co. Ltd., Beijing Phoenix United
Hospital Management Co., Ltd. and Beijing Phoenix United Hospital
Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on November 6, 2007, and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

China Resources Land Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1109), and a
subsidiary of CRH

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Ltd., a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1209), and a
subsidiary of CR Land as well as CRH

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3320), and a subsidiary of CRH

China Resources Pharmaceutical Commercial Group Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability,
which is a subsidiary owned as to approximately 80.13% by CR
Pharmaceutical

CR Pharmaceutical Commercial together with its subsidiaries

EMBRERARAT —T—FERES



DEFINITIONS
(£

MEE A8

MEHRIEE)

MEER R

MEHERAT)

FEEHBERER]

MEHBRRE)

T2 B I R 2

(250 2

MERERER]

MEE B %)

MERBREmE)

MEHBEBEER)

ERRERABRAS AIRERESRRERRQR) » —HRPEE
M BERAR EATEERIZ2ENBAR

FEHBHEREMB AR

EHREERARAR —HREBAEMAULNBRAT LR EH
EEZWEBRT

E£H &R ARAE —BRNEBEMALNABRAE  BHEEHR
BRABNEENB AR RERRRENEZIZERAS

EHBRERABRAR —XNPEEMNINERAT  EHER
Bl ZME AT

EWRKERE (E) ARAT —RRPERIZEREEAT &
AR Z2ANBERF

EHEREEAABRAD GIBILIREEAKSEBREEEAFRA
EREEMERBEEARATDKIIRBEMGBREERNA
[RAT) » —fEFt2007FE N A6HRBPEIERMUINABREET AR
R/ERBEENRB AT

EHEMARQF —HRHASESEMAINEREELF HR
PR ER LT (BRMHALIE1109) > U AEBER QS ZHEBAS

ZHRRLEERAR —BNBENSERAINEREEAT
HIA BB R EIR b (R HK311209) » It AW E R EE
ARZHEAT

EHBEERBERAT —BREBEMALNBRAT  ERMHNC
B XPT TR £ (BR1D5%3320) ' T RAEREBRM AT ZHWE AT

EHBRERXERARAS —BRNTEEMAINEREELF
I 7% R EE A B E S RX80.13% Z B AR

EHBERXERENBAR
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“CR Technology”

“CR Trust”

“Director(s)”

"Eligible Persons”

“Equity Transfer Agreement |”

“Equity and Debt Transfer
Agreement 1"

“FY2022"

“FY2023" or “Reporting Period”

“Group’ “our Group”
“we” of “us”

“"HK$"” or “HKD" and
"HK cent(s)" or “cent(s)

"

“Hong Kong”
“Huaikuang Hospital”

“Huaiyin Hospital”

“Hubei Runkang”

DEFINITIONS
(£

China Resources Healthcare Technology Development (China)
Co., Ltd.* (EHREMREXEZRE (PR BMRAH), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and a wholly owned
subsidiary of CR Healthcare

China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd.* GEHEEREETEAERA
@), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a
subsidiary of CRH

the directors of our Company or any of them

any of the (i) key management personnel including the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (ii) employed experts as
nominated by the Board; and (iii) core employees of the Group

the equity transfer agreement entered into between CR Hospital
Investment and LR Management regarding the LH Equity Acquisition
on February 22, 2023

the equity and debt transfer agreement entered into between CR
Hospital Investment and CR Technology regarding the JE Equity and
Debt Acquisition on February 22, 2023

the financial year ended December 31, 2022

the financial year ended December 31, 2023

our Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollar and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Huaibei Miner General Hospital* (165 T 4822 fx)

Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital Company Limited* GEZ m /&R RIRA
FR/A 7)), a company established in the PRC with limited liability

Hubei Runkang Healthcare Management Company Limited, a

company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a
subsidiary of the Company

EWRAERARAT S —FERE



DEFINITIONS
(£

FEERER B

MEEHE5E)

== 4

B8R AL

Mg R 7|

Mgt R E R

F2022FF L E |

[2023FEFEE T
MR 25 HA RS

TR&EE)
M T AL
&%)

I B8 B8 Bt |
b4 i=3

G0 E R

ERRENFELYRE (FE) BRAD —RRPERTZEREE
AR BEBREZ 2EHBAT

ERREREGEFBERLRF —RPEFREMALNBRAT WA EE
HEBRABZKBAR

FABDEREFUEM—NUES

ERONEREEAS BRFEENEEAEREERE (IHEFTIR
LNREER ; KlilAEEBNZOEE

EHERRERFENEER BB BT AA TS
— A=+ B RS GE

EHBRRERERNKIIEREGEWEBMIIIAHES-F
TEETAT T HMIREREREERZ

HE2022F 12831 H LM BEE

HZE2023F 12831 H It HEE

KRB REK B AT

DRR/BTRA BEBEZEER

PEEBRFHITHE

EICHE T AR B f

HEZTERBRARAR —MERRERILINERAF

HMILHRBREERAREEAR —RINFPEEMRLNBRAR
WRERABZHERT
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“IAS”
“IFRSs”
“10T”

“IOT Hospitals”

“"JE Member Medical
Institution(s)”

“JE Subject”

“JE Subject Group”

“Jian Gong Hospital”

“Jing Mei Hospital”

“Jing Mei Hospital Group”

“LH Member Institution(s)”

“Liaoning CR Healthcare”

“Liaoning CR Healthcare
Group”

“Listing Date”

DEFINITIONS
(£

International Accounting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards
the “invest-operate-transfer” model

third-party hospitals and clinics, which we manage and operate under
the 10T model

medical institution(s) under the JE Subject and their respective
subordinate organizations

CR Healthcare (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.* GEBE#EE CIF) BRAE), a
company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability

JE Subject, its subsidiaries from time to time and JE Member
Medical Institutions

Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd.* QR R = EIARAE), a
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on
May 12, 2003 and a subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor,
Beijing Construction Worker Hospital Qb R /2% T A BF), before
its reform

Jing Mei Hospital* (355 R & £ B 42 B2 fr)

collectively, Jing Mei Hospital and its affiliated hospitals and
community clinics

institution(s) under Liaoning Health Industry and their respective
subordinate organizations

China Resources Healthcare (Liaoning) Group Co., Ltd.* (ZERE#ERE
(=) £EEAERAT), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability

Liaoning CR Healthcare, its subsidiaries from time to time and LH
Member Institutions

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the
Stock Exchange, i.e. November 29, 2013

EWRAERARAT S —FERE



DEFINITIONS
(£

MR & 5t 2R

M PR R 5 o 5 2 Al
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“Listing Rules”

“LR Management”

“Model Code”

“Nomination Committee”
“OT"

“OT Hospital”

"PMM"
“Remuneration Committee”

“RMB”

DEFINITIONS
(£

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

LR Management Company Limited, a company established in Hong
Kong with limited liability

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing
Rules

the nomination committee of the Board

the “operate-transfer” model

third-party hospital which we manage and operate under the OT
model

pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
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“SAR”

“Selected Participant(s)”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Award Scheme”

“Share Option Scheme”

“Shenzhen CR Healthcare”

“Stock Exchange”

“Stock Hospitals”

“UMP Healthcare Holdings”

“U.S. dollar” or "US$”

“Wugang Hospital”

“Wugang Hospital Group”

"WRYK"

DEFINITIONS
(£

Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Eligible Persons selected by the Board in accordance with the terms
of the Share Award Scheme

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

share(s) with par value of HK$0.00025 each in the capital of our
Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board on July 7 2014, as
amended by the Board on May 25, 2015 and August 31, 2018,
respectively

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed by our Shareholders on September
30, 2013

Shenzhen China Resources Healthcare Industry Investment Co., Ltd.*
(RYIZ=HREREEEKREBRATE), a company established in the
PRC with limited liability

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the medical institutions of the Group other than the LH Member
Institutions and the JE Member Medical Institutions

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (Bt & BEEBE AR AT, a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 722)

United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of
America

China Resources Wugang General Hospital* (5 & $ 482 22 fr)
collectively, Wugang Hospital, Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group)
Corporation No. 2 Staff Hospital* (B Zif# (£E) AR5 BT E
) and certain affiliated hospitals and community clinics
ItREHERREEREAT (Beijing Wan Rong Yi Kang Medical Co.

Ltd.*), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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“Yan Hua Hospital”

“Yan Hua Hospital Investment
Management Agreement”

“Yan Hua IOT Agreement”

“Yan Hua Phoenix”

“Yuenianhua Rehabilitation
Hospital”

*

DEFINITIONS
(£

Yan Hua Hospital* (3t RFE1CE&FR)

the hospital investment management agreement dated February
4, 2008, which was supplemented in April 2008, December 2010,
June 2011, July 2013, September 2013 and October 2013, and were
entered into between CR Hospital Management & Consulting, Yan
Hua Hospital and Yan Hua Phoenix

the hospital management right and investment framework
agreement dated February 1, 2008 and the hospital investment
management agreement dated February 4, 2008, both of which were
supplemented in April 2008, December 2010, June 2011, June 2013,
July 2013, September 2013 and October 2013, entered into by CR
Hospital Management & Consulting with Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital Group

Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
ERFHECEEBEREEEIEBMRAF), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of the PRC on July 18, 2005

Nanning Yuenianhua Rehabilitation Hospital Co. Ltd.* (BB HIREEE
EE1E BB E/AF]), a limited company established under the laws of
the PRC and a for profit hospital focusing on rehabilitation specially

Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese entity is provided for identification purpose only.

In this report, the terms “associate’ “connected person’| “connected transaction’ “subsidiary” and
“substantial shareholder” shall have the same meanings ascribed thereto under in the Listing Rules, unless

the context otherwise requires.
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